ISSN 1225-5602



The National Academy of Sciences Republic of Korea

2019 - 2020

The National Academy of Sciences 2019-2020

Compiled and published by The National Academy of Sciences Republic of Korea Printed in Seoul.

Address: 59 Banpo-daero 37-gil Seocho-gu, Seoul 06579, Republic of Korea Telephone: +82-2-3400-5257 Fax: +82-2-535-8836 E-mail: nationalacademy@korea,kr Website: www.nas.go,kr

CONTENTS

FOREWORD

. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.	Purpose ·····	7
2.	Function	7
3.	History	7
4.	Organization ······2	20

. MAJOR ACTIVITIES

1.	The NAS Award	25
2.	The International Symposium	25
3.	The Korea-Japan Science Forum	26
4.	The NAS Seminar and Conference	27
5.	The NAS Research Grants	27
6.	Collaborations with Foreign Academies	28
7.	Affiliated Research Institutes	29
8.	Participations in International Conferences	29
9.	The NAS Research Foundation	31
10.	NAS Publications	32
11.	Supporting Outstanding Books for Basic Science Promotion	33
12.	List of the NAS Award Recipients (1955~2019)	35

CONTENTS

MEMBERS

1.	Executives	43
2.	List of Members	44
3.	List of Honorary Members	178
4.	Former Presidents and Vice-Presidents	194
5.	Deceased Members	198

APPENDICES

1. The National Academy of Sciences of the Republic of Korea Act 209
2. Regulations on the NAS Award
3. Regulations on the NAS Publications Committee
4. Regulations on the Provision of the NAS Academic Research
and Policy Research Grants226
5. Regulations of the NAS International Exchange &
Cooperation Committee229
6. Regulations on International Academic Activities Participation
Support Project231
7. Regulations on the Election of the NAS Honorary Members 233

Plane Figure of the NAS Building

237

INDEX

239



Foreword

Dong Ki Kim Ph.D. President (April 1, 2018-March 31, 2020)



The National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea (hereinafter the NAS) as the most prestigious representative academic institution in Korea, pursues promoting academic research and creativity in scientific development. Thus, the NAS has been participating in various international academic activities held by many international academic organizations such ISC Science Council), UAI as (International (Union Académique Internationale) and PSA (Pacific Science Association). The NAS, in conjunction with the National Institute of Korean History, has been involved in the UAI-patronized project of the English translation of Veritable Records of the Joseon Dynasty since 2017.

The NAS has also established a collaborative relationship with 14 foreign academies. As a good example of international academic collaboration, the Korea-Japan Academic Forum has been ongoing over the past 14 years with the Japan Academy. This year, the Korea-Japan Academic Forum was held in Seoul on September 18 through 20 with the theme of Philosophy and Biology. Both academies are looking forward to more active and closer cooperation for future programs. The NAS will actively implement mutual academic exchanges and support research collaborations with its foreign counterparts.

This book is to provide general information about the major activities

of the NAS and profiles of its members. By providing an output of scholarly publications, developing joint research projects to generate knowledge that can be used as a foundation for policy makings, and collaborating with international, national and local organizations, the NAS will meet the challenges of the coming years.

II. GENERAL INFORMATION

- 1. Purpose 7
- 2. Function 7
 - 3. History 7
- 4. Organization 20



The purpose of the National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea (hereinafter, the NAS) is to contribute to academic development by recognizing and supporting outstanding scholars who have accomplished remarkable academic achievements, and by promoting academic research as well as its related activities.



Function

- · Policy advice and proposals for national academic promotion
- Academic research and support
- Domestic and international academic exchanges, and hosting academic symposia
- Conferring the NAS Award
- Executing the Public Project Supporting Outstanding Academic Books to promote basic sciences
- Other activities related to academic promotion

3. History

1952. 08. 07	The Culture Protection Act was promulgated (Law No. 248).
1952. 10. 04	The Preparatory Committee was formed for the Inauguration of the NAS.
1953. 04. 14	Decree on the Registration of Writers and Artists was promulgated (Presidential Decree No. 773).
1954. 03. 25	The first regular members of the NAS totalling 50 were selected: 25 for the Humanities & Social Sciences Division and 25 for the Natural Sciences Division.
1954. 06. 12	 The First General Assembly of the NAS was held. Members of the Board of Directors were elected. Dr. Il Sun Yun was elected first President (re-elected for a 5-year term).

- Divisions and Subdivisions were formed, and their membership quota was determined.
- Several members were selected to draft the Regulations of the NAS.
- **1954.** 07. 17 The National Academy of Sciences (NAS) was inaugurated.
- **1955.** 07. 17 The First NAS Award was awarded. (The 64th NAS Award was awarded in 2019.)
- **1957. 11. 18** The NAS joined the Pacific Science Association (PSA). (The 23rd PSA Inter-congress was held in 2016, Taipei, Taiwan)
- 1957. 12. 02 The Culture Protection Act was amended (Law No. 459).The Minister of Education became responsible for the management of the NAS.
 - The legal basis was provided for the establishment of the Secretariat of the NAS.
- **1959. 09. 23** Decree on the organization of the Secretariat of the NAS was promulgated (Presidential Decree No. 1515).
 - The Secretariat initially consisted of three divisions: General Affairs Division, Science Promotion Division, and Research Division. At present it consists of two divisions: General Affairs Division and Academic Promotion Division.
- 1960. 02. 03 The Culture Protection Act was amended (Law No. 546).
 Members were classified into two types: those appointed and those selected through recommendation.
 The quota of membership expanded from 80 to 100.
- **1960. 05. 04** The 1st International Symposium was held. (The 45th International Symposium was held in 2018.)
- **1960. 06. 28** Dr. Pyong Do Yi was elected the 7th President of the NAS (re-elected for a ten-year term).
- **1961. 09. 26** The NAS joined the International Council of Scientific Unions (ICSU).
- **1970. 11. 11** The Committee on Pollution was established.
- **1973. 10. 05** The NAS joined the International Foundation for Science (IFS).
- **1977. 06. 08** The NAS joined the Union Académique Internationale (UAI). (The 89th UAI General Assembly was held in 2017 in Tokyo, Japan.)

1981. 04. 13	 The Culture Protection Act was amended (Law No. 3435). Membership quota ceiling changed: 30 senior members, 100 regular members and 500 associate members. The term of the regular and associate members was up to the age of 70.
1981. 07. 29	Dr. Tai Whan Shin was elected the 18th President of the NAS.
1983. 02. 11	Dr. Tai Whan Shin, President of the NAS, was elected President of the Pacific Science Association (PSA).
1983. 07. 09	Dr. Chong Sup Shim was elected the 19th President of the NAS (re-elected for a subsequent two-year term).
1984. 05. 10	The Korean Language Research Institute was founded.
1985. 08. 12	The Secretariats of the Academies of Sciences and Arts were merged (Presidential Decree No. 11738).
1985. 11. 25	Ground was broken for the construction of the Academies of Sciences and Arts.
1986. 04. 16	The Research Foundation of the NAS was established.
1987. 09. 26	The NAS joined the Federation of Asian Scientific Academies and Societies (FASAS). (The 7th FASAS Council Meeting and the 4th ASTC was held in 2012 in Colombo, Sri Lanka.)
1988. 08. 26	Dr. Ton Kak Suh was elected the 22nd President of the NAS (re-elected for a one-year term).
1988. 12. 31	 The NAS Act was promulgated (Law No. 4045). The current Culture Protection Act was abolished. Membership quota expanded from 100 to 150. Membership term: 4 years (renewable).
1990. 05. 28	The Protocol for Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Israel Academy of Sciences and Humanities was signed.
1992. 07. 31	The Accord for Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and Académie des Sciences de Institut de France was signed.
1992. 08. 26	Dr. E Hyock Kwon was elected the 24th President of the NAS (re-elected for a one-year term).
1992. 11. 26	Dr. E Hyock Kwon was elected Vice-President of FASAS.
1993. 01. 06	The Cooperative Relations Protocol between the NAS and the

National Academy of Sciences of the U.S.A. was signed.

- **1993. 04. 05** The Protocol for Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Chinese Academy of Sciences was signed.
- **1993. 07. 01** The Protocol for Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences was signed.
- **1993. 10. 05** The Protocol for Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Royal Society of London was signed.
- **1995. 01. 05** The Cooperative Relations Protocol between the NAS and the British Academy was signed.
- **1995. 02. 15** The NAS joined International Geosphere-Biosphere Programme (IGBP). (The 30th SC-IGBP Meeting was held in 2015 in Laxenburg, Austria.)
- **1996. 08. 26** Dr. Hyun Jae Lee was elected the 26th President of the NAS.
- **1996. 10. 03** The Letter of Cooperation between the NAS and the Norwegian Academy of Sciences and Letters was signed.
- **1997. 06. 24** The Protocol for Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Royal Swedish Academy of Letters, History and Antiquities was signed.
- **1997. 12. 24** The Protocol for Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Mongolian Academy of Sciences was signed.
- **1998. 03. 12** The Letter of the Academic Exchange and Cooperation between the NAS and The Royal Swedish Academy of Sciences was signed.
- **1998.** 07. 10 Dr. Hyun Jae Lee was elected the 27th President of the NAS.
- **1998. 11. 05** Memorandum of Agreement on Scientific Exchange between the NAS and the Japan Academy was signed.
- **2000. 05. 14** The NAS joined The Science Council of Asia (SCA). (The 18th General Assembly was held in 2018 in Tokyo, Japan.)
- **2000. 05. 15** The NAS joined Inter Academy Panel (IAP). (The IAP General Assembly was held in 2019 in Incheon, Korea)
- **2000. 08. 26** Dr. Ho Wang Lee was elected the 28th President of the NAS.
- **2002.** 07. 12 Dr. Ho Wang Lee was elected the 29th President of the NAS.

II. GENERAL INFORMATION

2003. 03. 12	Regulations on the Election of Honorary Members of the NAS were established.
2003. 07. 15	Regulations on the Election of Honorary Members of the NAS were formulated.
2003. 12. 01	Selection and Distribution of 'Outstanding Science Books' were made.
2004. 05. 12	Academic Symposium to commemorate the 50th Anniversary of the NAS Founding was held at the NAS.
2004. 05. 13	The 4th Science Council of Asia (SCA) Conference was hosted by the NAS in Seoul, Korea.
2004. 08. 28	Dr. Tae Kil Kim was elected the 30th President of the NAS.
2005. 05. 13	The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
2005. 11. 07	International Academic Exchange Visit to Tokyo.
2006. 04. 03	International Academic Exchange Visit to Tokyo.
2006. 04. 17	International Academic Exchange Visit to Kyoto.
2006. 05.08, 15	International Academic Exchange Visit to Hokkaido.
2006. 05. 12	The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
2006. 08. 26	Dr. Tae Kil Kim was elected the 31st President of the NAS.
2006. 09. 20	The 1st Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Tokyo, Japan.
2006. 10. 20	The 33rd International Academic Symposium was held at the NAS.
2007. 05. 11	The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
2007. 09. 27	The 2nd Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Seoul.
2007. 10. 12	The 34th International Academic Symposium was held at the NAS.
2008. 03. 20	International Academic Exchange Visit to Tokyo.
2008. 05. 09	The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
2008. 05. 25	The NAS Delegation attended the Union Académique Internationale (UAI) Conference.
2008. 05. 26	The NAS Delegation attended Science Council of Asia (SCA)

2008. 08. 26	Conference. Dr. Sang Joo Kim was elected the 32nd President of the NAS.
2008. 09. 24	The 3rd Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Japan.
2008. 10. 13	The NAS Delegation joined the Council Meeting of Federation of Asian Scientific Academies and Societies (FASAS).
2008. 10. 17	The 35th International Academic Symposium was held at the NAS.
2008. 10. 20	The NAS Delegation attended the International Council for Science (ICSU).
2008. 11. 02	The Chinese Science Academy Delegation visited the NAS for Academic Exchange.
2008. 12. 01	President of the National Academy of Sciences of Belarus visited the NAS for Academic Exchange and Cooperation.
2008. 12. 05	President of the Australia Academy visited the NAS for Academic Exchange.
2009. 02. 28	The NAS Delegation attended the 11th Pacific Science Inter- Congress held by the Pacific Science Association (PSA).
2009. 04. 15	President of the Czech Republic Science Academy visited the NAS for Academic Exchange and Cooperation.
2009. 03. 11	The Chinese Science Academy Delegation visited the NAS for International Academic Exchange and Cooperation.
2009. 05. 14	The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
2009. 05. 15	The NAS Delegation attended the Union Académique Internationale Conference (UAI).
2009. 09. 28	The 4th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Seoul.
2009. 10. 09	The NAS Delegation attended the Council Meeting of FASAS.
2009. 10. 12	The NAS Delegation visited the Chinese Academy of Sciences & Chinese Academy of Social Sciences for International Academic Exchange and Cooperation.
2009. 10. 12	The NAS Delegation attended the ICSU Conference.
2009. 10. 23	The 36th International Academic Symposium was held at the NAS.
2009. 11. 23	The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
2010. 01. 01	The International Academic Organization Project of active

participation in various international researches was launched.

- **2010. 07. 08** The Letter of Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Croatian Academy of Sciences and Arts was signed.
- 2010. 08. 26 Dr. Sang Joo Kim was elected the 33rd President of the NAS.
- 2010. 09. 28 The 5th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Tokyo, Japan.
- **2010. 10. 22** The 37th International Symposium on Biotechnology in Agriculture and Fisheries was held.
- **2010. 11. 12** The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2011. 03. 18** The Letter of Scientific Cooperation between the NAS and the Göttingen Academy of Sciences and Humanities was signed.
- **2011. 09. 26** The NAS delegation attended the 30th General Assembly of ICSU.
- 2011. 09. 27 The 6th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Seoul.
- **2011. 10. 06** The Third World Academy of Sciences (TWAS) Secretary General visited the NAS for academic exchange.
- **2011. 10. 21** ICSU delegates (the Chair of the Regional Committee for Asia and Pacific and the Director of the Asia and Pacific Secretariat) visited the NAS for academic exchange.
- **2011. 10. 25** The NAS delegation attended the International Conference hosted by the Mongolian Academy for its 50th Anniversary.
- **2011. 11. 11** The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS..
- **2011. 11. 16** The President of the NAS attended The 5th World Science Forum on the Changing Landscape of Science: Challenges and Opportunities in Budapest, Hungary.
- **2011. 12. 05** The NAS delegation visited the Chinese Academy of Sciences for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- **2011. 12. 12** The NAS delegation visited the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- **2012. 01. 22** The NAS delegation attended the 86th General Assembly of Union Académique Internationale (UAI).
- **2012. 04. 09** Dr. Nancy Lewis, President of the Pacific Science Association (PSA), visited the NAS for Academic Exchange and Cooperation.
- **2012. 05. 10** The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.

2012. 06. 12	Memorandum Agreement on Scientific Exchanges between the NAS and the Göttingen Academy of Sciences and Humanities was signed.
2012. 06. 13	Memorandum of Understanding on Scientific Exchanges and Cooperation between the NAS and the National Institute of Korean History was signed.
2012. 07. 02	Delegation from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences visited the NAS for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
2012. 07. 10	The NAS delegation attended the 12th General Assembly of The Science Council of Asia (SCA).
2012. 08. 26	Dr. Young-Sik Park was elected the 34th President of the NAS.
2012. 09. 26	The 7th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Tokyo, Japan.
2012. 10. 19	The 39th NAS International Symposium on Climate Science for Human Survival was held at the NAS.
2012. 11. 09	The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
2012. 11. 12	Delegation from the Chinese Academy of Sciences visited the NAS for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
2013. 02. 24	The NAS delegation attended the 7th General Assembly of InterAcademy Panel (IAP).
2013. 05. 07	The NAS delegation attended the 13th General Assembly of The Science Council of Asia (SCA).
2013. 05. 10	The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
2013. 05. 12	The NAS delegation attended the 87th General Assembly of Union Académique Internationale (UAI).
2013. 05. 21	The NAS delegation attended International Geosphere-Biosphere Programme (IGBP) on Global Water System Project.
2013. 07. 08	The NAS delegation attended the 12th Pacific Science Inter-Congress hosted by the Pacific Science Association (PSA).
2013. 08. 13	The NAS delegation attended the 4th General Assembly of InterAcademy Medical Panel.
2013. 09. 26	The 8th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Seoul, Korea.
2013. 10. 09	The NAS delegation visited the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.



- **2013. 10. 10** The NAS delegation attended the 29th General Assembly of International Social Sciences Council (ISSC).
- **2013. 10. 18** The 40th NAS International Symposium on Moral Education at the Crossroads—in our Age of Highly Advanced Science and Technology—was held at the NAS.
- **2013. 10. 28** The NAS delegation visited the Chinese Academy of Sciences for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- **2013. 11. 08** The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2013. 11. 25** Vice President of the NAS attended The 6th World Science Forum on "Science for Global Sustainable Development" in Rio de Janeiro, Brazil.
- **2014. 03. 25** President of Australian Academy of the Humanities visited the NAS Korea to discuss mutual cooperation.
- **2014. 03. 05** The NAS delegation attended Water, Food, Climate and Energy Conference of International Social Sciences Council (ISSC).
- **2014. 03. 14** Dr. Sook-II Kwun was elected the 35th President of the NAS.
- **2014. 04. 28** Delegation from Science Council of Japan visited the NAS.
- **2014. 05. 14** Academic Symposium and grand ceremony to commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the NAS Founding was held at the NAS.
- **2014. 05. 15** The NAS delegation attended IAC/IAP/IAMP Joint Session.
- **2014. 05. 24** Delegation from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences visited the NAS for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- **2014. 05. 29** President and vice president and delegation of the Royal Institute of Thailand visited the NAS.
- **2014. 06. 04** The NAS delegation attended the 3rd UNESCO Conference on Technologies for Development.
- **2014. 06. 17** The NAS delegation attended the 14th General Assembly of The Science Council of Asia (SCA).
- **2014. 08. 27** The NAS delegation attended Science Advice to Governments conference hosted by International Council for Science (ICSU).
- **2014. 08. 30** The NAS delegation attended the 31st General Assembly of ICSU.
- **2014. 09. 04** The NAS delegation attended the 67th General Assembly of World Association For Public Opinion Research (WAPOR).

2014. 10. 01	The 9th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Tokyo, Japan.
2014. 10. 23	The 41st NAS International Symposium on Convergence of Science and Techonology with Humanities was held at the NAS.

- **2014. 10. 28** The NAS delegation attended Science Education Programme conference hosted by InterAcademy Panel (IAP).
- **2014. 11. 03** Vice President and delegation of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences visited the NAS to Korea to discuss further cooperation.
- **2014. 11. 14** The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2015. 05. 15** The Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2015. 05. 16** The NAS delegation attended the 15th General Assembly of The Science Council of Asia (SCA).
- **2015. 05. 24** The NAS Delegation attended the 88th General Assembly of Union Académique Internationale (UAI).
- **2015. 07. 07** The NAS delegation attended Our Common Future Under Climate Change conference hosted by International Council for Science (ICSU).
- **2015. 09. 13** The NAS delegation attended the 3rd World Social Science Forum hosted by International Social Sciences Council (ISSC).
- 2015. 09. 28 The NAS delegation attended IAP/IAC/IAMP Joint Session.
- **2015. 10. 07** The 10th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Seoul, Korea.
- **2015. 10. 15** The NAS delegation attended UAI Standing Committee as a bureau member.
- **2015. 10. 23** The 42nd NAS International Symposium on Interdisciplinary Explorations of Language in Our Age was held at the NAS.
- **2015. 10. 26** The NAS delegation visited the Chinese Academy of Sciences for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- **2015. 11. 04** President of the NAS attended The 7th World Science Forum on "The Enabling Power of Science" in Budapest, Hungary.
- **2015. 11. 09** The NAS Delegation visited the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- **2015. 11. 13** The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2015. 12. 08** The NAS Delegation visited the Royal Institute of Thailand for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- 2016. 01. 27 The NAS delegation attended UNISDR Science and Technology

II. GENERAL INFORMATION

Conference.

- **2016. 02. 10** The NAS delegate participated in UAI Standing Committee.
- **2016. 02. 28** The NAS delegate attended IAP General Assembly.
- **2016.** 04. 01 Dr. Sook-Il Kwun was elected the 36th President of the NAS.
- **2016. 05. 03** The NAS delegation participated in Future Earth 4^{th} International Symposium on a High CO₂ World.
- **2016. 05. 13** The NAS Academic Seminar was held at Sung Kyun Kwan University in Suwon.
- **2016. 05. 30** The NAS delegation attended the 16th General Assembly of The Science Council of Asia (SCA).
- **2016. 06. 13** The NAS delegation attended the 23rd Pacific Science Congress held by the Pacific Science Association (PSA).
- **2016. 09. 22** The NAS delegate participated in UAI Standing Committee.
- **2016. 09. 25** The NAS delegate attended IAP for Research Board Meeting.
- **2016.** 09. 27 The NAS delegate attended IAP for Health General Assembly.
- **2016 09. 29** The 11th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Tokyo, Japan.
- **2016. 10. 21** The 43rd NAS International Symposium on Past, Present, and Future of Liver Transplantation was held at the NAS.
- **2016. 10. 24** The NAS delegation attended ISSC-ICSU Joint General Assembly.
- **2016. 11. 11** The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2016. 12. 12** Delegation from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences visited the NAS for International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation.
- **2017. 01. 12** The NAS delegate participated in PSA Strategy Workshop.
- **2017. 02. 08** The NAS delegate participated in UAI Standing Committee in Paris, France.
- **2017. 05. 12** The NAS Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2017. 06. 12** The NAS delegate participated in UAI Standing Committee in Vienna, Austria.
- **2017. 06. 14** The NAS delegation attended the 17th General Assembly of The Science Council of Asia (SCA).
- 2017. 06. 17 The NAS delegation attended 18th IEA World Congress 2017.

2017.	08.	06	The NAS delegate attended World Humanities Conference organized by UNESCO and CIPSH.
2017.	08.	21	The NAS delegation participated in the 10 th International Carbon Dioxide Conference.
2017.	09.	21	The 12th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Seoul, Korea.
2017.	09.	18	The NAS delegation participated in the 3 rd COSPAR Symposium.
2017.	10.	20	The 44 th NAS International Symposium on Democracy in Crisis was held at the NAS.
2017.	10.	22	The NAS Delegation attended the 89th General Assembly of Union Académique Internationale (UAI).
2017.	10.	24	The NAS delegation attended ICSU-ISSC Joint General Assembly.
2017.	11.	10	The Policy Research Seminar was held at the NAS.
2017.	11.	07	The NAS delegation attended The 8th World Science Forum on "Science for Peace" in Dead Sea, Jordan.
2018.	04.	01	Dr. Dong Ki Kim was elected the 37th President of the NAS.
2018.	04.	16	The NAS delegation attended the Nexus Conference 2018 organized by ICSU.
2018.	05.	11	The NAS Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
2018.	05.	16	The NAS delegation attended the 38 th Annual Conference of the International Association for Impact Assessment (IAIA).
2018.	07.	03	The NAS delegation attended the 1 st General Assembly of the International Science Council (ISC).
			* ISC was formed after the merger of the International Social Science Council (ISSC) and International Council for Science (ICSU).
2018.	07.	15	The NAS delegation attended the 19 th World Congress of Sociology organized by ISA.
2018.	09.	05	The NAS delegation attended Congress FOOD 2030: Towards sustainable agri-food systems organized by Future Earth.
2018.	09.	19	UAI Standing Committee was held at the NAS.
2018.	09.	25	The NAS delegate participated in the ISSC World Social Science Forum 2018.
2018	10.	04	The 13th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Tokyo, Japan.



- **2018. 11. 09** The Specific Research Project Academic Conference was held at the NAS.
- **2018. 11. 27** The NAS Delegation attended the 6th OECD World Forum on Stastics, Knowledge, and Policy organized by IAP.
- **2018. 11. 28** The NAS delegation attended the G-STIC 2018 Conference organized by Future Earth.
- **2018. 12. 05** The NAS delegation attended the 18th General Assembly of the Science Council of Asia (SCA).
- **2018. 12. 21** The NAS delegate attended the International Conference on Science, Technology, Engineering and Management in Bangkok, Thailand.
- **2019. 02. 13** The NAS delegate participated in UAI Standing Committee in Paris, France.
- **2019. 03. 18** The NAS delegation attended Geoscience and Society Summit in Stockholm, Sweden.
- **2019. 03. 21** The NAS delegate attended the annual conference of Association for Asian Studies (AAS).
- **2019. 04. 09** The NAS delegate attended the General Assembly and Conference organized by IAP.
- **2019. 05. 10** The NAS Academic Seminar was held at the NAS.
- **2019. 06. 07** The NAS delegate participated in UAI Standing Committee in Tunis, Tunisia.
- **2019. 06. 17** The NAS delegation attended the 2019 IMBeR Open Science Conference organized by Future Earth.
- **2019. 06. 18** The NAS delegation attended the 13th International Conference of the European Society for Ecological Economics.
- **2019. 08. 13** The NAS delegate attended the International Network for Government Science Advice (INGSA) Asia Capacity Building Workshop in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
- **2019. 9. 16** The NAS delegate attended the Ocean Obs 19 organized by ISC.
- 2019. 9. 19 The 14th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Seoul, Korea.

4. Organization

Table of Organization



승 General Assembly

As the top decision-making body, the General Assembly deliberates over and resolves the highest priorities for managing the NAS, such as approving newly elected members, ratifying the NAS Award recipients, electing president and vice-president, and legislating and amending rules. It is held in March and July, and also whenever deemed necessary.

↔ Division Meeting

The NAS consists of two divisions: the Humanities & Social Sciences Division and the Natural Sciences Division. Division meetings are held to elect new members and division directors, and select NAS Award recipients.

↔ Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of 4 executive directors (President, Vice-President, 2 Division Directors) and 11 Subdivision Heads. The Board reviews and votes on the matters delegated by or proposed to the General Assembly and also such matters as deemed necessary by the President. Both President and Vice-President are elected by the General Assembly and their term of office is two years and renewable once. Directors of the Humanities & Social Sciences Division and the Natural Sciences Division are elected at the respective Division meetings and their term of office is one year and renewable once. Subdivision heads are elected by the members of each Subdivision and their term of office is one year and renewable once.

↔ Subdivision Meeting

All members of the NAS belong to a subdivision based on their field of study. Each subdivision holds 7 meetings a year to discuss academic research matters as well as screen new NAS member candidates and NAS Award candidates.

↔ The Screening Process of the NAS Award

The recipients of the NAS Award are selected through a 3-step screening process: the preliminary screening by each Subdivision, the divisional review by the Screening Committee of the two divisions, and the final decision by the Comprehensive Deliberation Committee. Each Screening Committee is composed of 15 or less members and the Comprehensive Deliberation Committee of President, Vice-President, 2 Division Directors and 11 Subdivision heads.

International Exchange & Cooperation Committee

The International Exchange & Cooperation Committee deals with the tasks related to the NAS affiliated international academic organizations and activities such as collecting materials and data on international academic awards.

Operation Committee

The Publication Committee consists of president, vice-president, two division directors, and eleven members from each subdivision. The Committee is in charge of the NAS publication: setting up a basic plan, appointing writers and referees, and overseeing other editorial matters.

🔶 Ethics Committee

The Ethics Committee consists of vice-president and eleven members from each subdivision. It is to take a disciplinary measure against a member who has damaged the honor and dignity of the NAS.

↔ Secretariat of the NAS

Secretariat of the NAS consists of General Affair Division and Academic Promotion Division, is affiliated to the Ministry of Education, and carries out the administrative affairs of the NAS.

Ⅲ. MAJOR ACTIVITIES

- 1. The NAS Award 25
- 2. The International Symposium 25
- 3. The Korea–Japan Science Forum 26
- 4. The NAS Seminar and Conference 27
 - 5. The NAS Research Grants 27
- 6. Collaborations with Foreign Academies 28
 - 7. Affiliated Research Institutes 29
- 8. Participations in International Conferences 29
- 9. The establishment of NAS Research Foundation 31
 - 10. NAS Publications 32

11. Supporting Outstanding Books for

- Basic Science Promotion 33
- 12 List of the NAS Award Recipients (1955~2019) 35

01 The NAS Award



The NAS Award was established in 1955, in accordance with the Culture Protection Act, to further the advancement of science in Korea. The National Academy of Sciences presents the NAS Awards to Korean scholars and scientists who have made significant contributions to the development of sciences

through research and academic pursuits. A total of up to 6 from Humanities & Social Sciences Division and the Natural Science Division are awarded each year.

As of 2019, a total of 247 scholars received the NAS awards. Awardees are presented with the Letter of Citation and an emblem, plus a cash prize of 100,000,000

won (approximately USD 84,000).

The selection of recipients is made in accordance with the "Regulations of Award of the National Academy of Sciences Prize." All the successive recipients of the NAS Award are listed).

The NAS will make an effort to increase the number of recipients.



2 The International Symposium

The NAS holds its annual International Symposium in October. The symposium is intended for the exchange of academic knowledge and promotion of goodwill among scholars of the world. The 1st International Symposium was held in 1960 and the 45th International Symposium in 2018. The 45th International Symposium was held on October 19, 2018, in the Grand Conference Hall of the NAS, with "Recent Advances in Molecular Cell Biology" as its theme.



3 The Korea–Japan Science Forum

The NAS holds the Korea-Japan Science Forum to enhance the academic activities and to promote the mutual understanding and cooperation between the two academies. Under the theme of "Philosophy and Biology", the 14th Korea-Japan Science Forum was held in Hoam Faculty House of Seoul National University from September 18 to 20, 2019. The 15th Korea-Japan Science Forum will be held in Tokyo, Japan from September 23 to 25, 2020.



The Korea-Japan Science Forum Participants, 2019

04 The NAS Seminar and Conference

To promote the development of science in Korea and to advise the Government for the formulation of enlightened policies the NAS hosts one academic research seminar and one Specific Research Project Academic Conference every year. The objective of the seminar and conference is to derive maximum advantage from the latest results of scientific researches as well as the expertise and professional knowhow of the NAS members. The academic seminar and the Specific Research Project Academic Conference are held in May and November, respectively. Besides these two seminar and conference, each subdivision seminar is held once a year in April or May.



Academic Research Seminar, 2019

05 The NAS Research Grants

As a measure of continuous support for research activities of the members, the NAS Research Foundation provides selected NAS members with research grants every year. A total of 13 research projects are carried out annually—9 projects from subdivisions, 2 projects for the Academic Research Seminar, and 2 projects for the Specific Research Project Academic Conference. Each project

is funded by a grant of a fixed amount. Results or findings of these projects are presented either at the Subdivision Seminars or at the Policy Research Seminar. They are also published in the Journal of the NAS and distributed to domestic and overseas academic organizations. Findings of Specific Research Project Academic Conference are conveyed to relevant ministries of the Government for their reference and utilization.

6 Collaborations with Foreign Academies

The NAS is making every effort to establish collaborative relationship with foreign academies for the development and exchanges of sciences. In 1990 cooperative relations protocols were established between the NAS and the Israel Academy of Sciences and Humanities and in 1992 between the NAS and Académie des Sciences of France. In 1993 the NAS signed similar protocols with the Chinese Academy of Sciences, the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, the National Academy of Sciences of the United States, and the Royal Society of London. Cooperative relationship was also established between the NAS and the British Academy in 1995 and between the NAS and the Norwegian Academy of Science and Letters in 1996. Again in 1997 the NAS signed protocols for academic cooperation with the Royal Swedish Academy of Letters, History and Antiquities and with the Mongolian Academy of Sciences. In 1998 the NAS exchanged a letter of cooperation with the Royal Swedish Academy of Sciences and the Memorandum of Agreement on academic exchanges with the Japan Academy. In 2010 the NAS signed a memorandum of understanding for scientific cooperation with the Croatian Academy of Sciences and Arts. In 2011, a letter of intent was exchanged between the NAS and the Göttingen Academy of Sciences and Humanities and a follow-up cooperative agreement was signed in 2012. Most recently, the NAS signed a memorandum of understanding for scientific cooperation with the Australian Academy of Humanities in 2016.

Affiliated Research Institutes

07

In 1990, protocols for academic cooperation were signed between the NAS and various research institutes including the Academy of Korean Studies and the Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology. In 2012, the NAS established a cooperative agreement with the National Institute of Korean History for joint research projects. *The English Translation of the Veritable Records of the Joseon Dynasty* is currently underway as part of UAI-patronized projects. Active academic discussions and exchanges of information often take place at international, as well as national, levels.

8 Participations in International Conferences

To help promote international academic cooperation and enhance academic programs at home, the NAS participates in the meetings of various international academic organizations on behalf of the Republic of Korea.

These organizations include Pacific Science Association (PSA), International Science Council (ISC, created in 2018 from a merger of the International Council for Science and the International Social Science Council), the International Foundation for Science (IFS), Union Académique Internationale (UAI), InterAcademy Partnership (IAP, IAMP, IAC), and Science Council of Asia (SCA).

- 1) The NAS joined International Foundation for Science (IFS) in 1973 and it took part in its triennial general meeting from 1978 to 1997.
- 2) The NAS joined International Council for Science (ICSU) at its 9th general meeting in 1961, and has ever since been dispatching two delegates to its general assembly held every three years.
- 3) The NAS delegation attends Pacific Science Association (PSA) Congresses, PSC (Pacific Science Congresses) and PSIC (Pacific Science Inter-Congresses), contributing to the promotion of academic exchanges in the region since the NAS joined PSA at its 9th meeting in 1957. Dr. Tai Whan Shin was elected as PSA President in 1983. Korea held its 16th General Meeting in Seoul in 1987. Dr. Sang-Dai Park was elected Vice-President of PSA in 2016.

- 4) Since it joined Union Académique Internationale (UAI) in 1977, the NAS has been sending two delegates to its meeting every year. As part of UAI's research activities, the NAS published *A Korean Language Atlas* in 1993. Another research project *English Translation of the Veritable Records of the Joseon Dynasty* was accepted as a UAI Enterprise in 2012. Dr. Tae-Jin Yi was elected bureau member of UAI in 2015.
- 5) Since 1995, the NAS has actively participated in International Geosphere-Biosphere Programme (IGBP) activities. The NAS supported the 9th SC-IGBP Meeting and International Workshop in the Asia region held in Seoul respectively on October 18–22 and November 11–13, 1996.
- 6) Since the NAS joined InterAcademy Partnership (IAP) in 2000, it has been sending its delegates to attend its conference.
- 7) The NAS joined InterAcademy Medical Panel (IAMP, now IAP for Health) in 2000, and has been participating in the IAMP's general assembly.
- 8) Since the NAS joined the Science Council of Asia (SCA) in 2000, its delegates have been attending the SCA's general assembly meetings and conferences. Dr. Ho Wang Lee was elected president of SCA in 2003. The 4th SCA Conference was hosted by the NAS at Westin Chosun Hotel in Seoul in 2004.
- 9) The NAS joined International Social Science Council (ISSC) in 2010, and has been actively participating in the ISSC's general assembly and symposia.
- 10) The NAS joined International Science Council (ISC) in 2018 as the International Council for Science (ICSU) and the International Social Science Council (ISSC) have merged to form the International Science Council. Dr. Jisoon Lee was elected a member of Advisory Bodies (Committee for Finance and Fundraising) of ISC in 2019.

In the years ahead the NAS will attempt to actively take part in research projects conducted by aforementioned 8 international academic organizations. Through these international activities the NAS hopes to share, more than anything else, the vision of promoting human welfare with international science organizations.



OP The establishment of NAS Research Foundation

The NAS Research Foundation was established in April 1986 to provide substantial assistance for the NAS members' academic activities. The basic assets of the Foundation were created with contributions from the NAS members as well as from economic organizations. The President of the NAS serves as Chairperson of the NAS Research Foundation. Directors include former NAS Presidents and public personages. The major programs of the Foundation are to provide the NAS members with research grants, to subsidize their academic meetings and exchanges with foreign scholars, to help them participate in international conferences, and to support their academic publications.

As a measure of active support for international academic activities in which NAS members participate in their own individual capacity to achieve the synergy effect with exiting projects and intensify cooperation with international academies, the "International Academic Activities participation" support project promotion plan was set by the NAS Research Foundation in February 2018.

This plan includes the support for NAS members participating in various international academic activities such as presentation of research papers, provision of lectures as guest, and participation in designated debates at international academic conferences. The NAS Research Foundation allocates 2,000,000 won per selected member to subside for the participation of international academic activities. The promotion plan will be announced in February through the subdivision meetings and the application form with activity report by the recommended members through the meetings for the recipient selection will be reviewed by the committee of international academic affairs in December.

10 NAS Publications

To facilitate various academic publications and to review the papers contributed to the *NAS Journal*, the NAS has created "Regulations of the NAS Publications Committee".

- The NAS Journal, published annually, consists of two volumes: one for the Humanities and Social Sciences and the other for the Natural Sciences. The Journal carries two theses from each of the eleven subdivisions of the NAS. Since its first issue that came out in 1959, fifty-five volumes have so far been published.
- 2) The NAS publishes a series of "*Trends and Issues of Academic Research*" (in Korean) to provide scholars an in-depth perspective of current trends and controversial issues of academic research and to shed light on the future research in orientation. The first one of this series which appeared in 2011 for the Humanities and Social Sciences Division was on Economics and Business Administration and the second one on Philosophy, Psychology, and Pedagogy.
- 3) NAS Academic Research Series is to unite and furnish members' research results for the next generation. Started in 2017, it will be issued every two years. Authors are expected to promote academic communication with young scientists.
- 4) Proceedings of International Symposium, available in Korean and English, have been published since the 3rd International Symposium held in 1975. They are also distributed to foreign academies, major universities and institutes at home and abroad.
- 5) *Proceedings of Korea-Japan Science Forum*, available in Korean and Japanese, was first published in 2006. Since the 2nd Korea-Science Forum in 2007, it has been published every other year when the NAS hosts the Forum.
- 6) *The Report on International Academic Exchanges and Cooperation* has been published every year since 2010. As the NAS participates in the international conferences of various international academic organizations on behalf of the Republic of Korea, it includes the participants reports, current global academic issues and the research paper presented in the conferences.
- The NAS Monthly Newsletter has been published since July 1993: it contains members' articles, report of international academic exchange, and notice of the NAS official schedules.
- 8) *The NAS Bulletin* is issued every year. The Annual Bulletin contains a brief introduction of the NAS and its major annual project reports. The outcomes of membership seminars and individual activities are also included. In 2019 the 59th issue of the Bulletin was published (its first one in 1957).
- 9) *The NAS Brochure* is published every other year to provide brief information on the NAS activities and its members. It is available in Korean and English separately.
- 10) *The NAS Catalog* provides understanding about the NAS in detail. This book is published every odd year in English.

11 Supporting Outstanding Books for Basic Science Promotion

The NAS has been undertaking the 'Program of the Selection and Distribution of Outstanding Books' delegated by the Ministry of Education as part of the Ministry's Basic Sciences Promotion Project. Books in the fields of Humanities, Social and Natural Sciences, and Korean Studies are eligible for selection. Through a process of rigorous evaluation the NAS annually selects some 300 outstanding books. The NAS allocates maximum amount of nearly 8,000,000 won per book to purchase those selected ones and distributes them to universities, public libraries, and research centers throughout the nation.



Year	Recipient	Specialty
1955	Yun, II Sun Choi, Hyun Bae Chyung, Moon Ki	Pathology Korean Language Ichthyology
1956	Yi, Pyong Do Yang, Ju Dong Chung, Tae Hyun	Korean History Korean Literature Botany
1957	Lee, Hi Seung	Korean Language
1959	Jeong, In Seung Yu, Chin O Park, Tong Kil Hyun, Shin Kyu	Korean Language Constitutional Law Geological Mineralogy Forestry
1960	Park, Chong Hong Cho, Pok Song Lee, Pyong Ki Ree, Tai Kyue Lee, Chong Ryun	Philosophy Entomology Korean Literature Physical Chemistry Medicine
1961	Kim, Sun Kyung Kim, Ke Sook Kim, Myung Son Cho, Baik Hyun	Chemistry Philosophy Medicine Agricultural Chemistry
1962	Kim, Chul Soo Chin, Pyung Ho Kim, Yun Kyong Kim, Sang Ki Choi, Ho Chin	Physics Surgical Medicine Korean Language Oriental History Economics
1963	Kang, Yung Sun Lee, Kwang Soo Cho, Yun Je Shin, Sok Ho Kim, Ho Jik	Biology Medicine Korean Literature Korean History Zymological Chemistry
1964	Lee, Sung Nyong Kim, Chol Cho, Ui Sol Kim, Du Hon Yun, II Jung Park, Seung Mann	Korean Linguistics Medicine Western History Ethics Electrical Engineering Breeding & Crops
1965	Choh, Soon Tahk Kim, Che Won Lee, Min Jai Lee, Chae Koo	Physics Archaeology Botany Pathology

12 List of the NAS Award Recipients (1955~2019)

Year	Recipient	Specialty
1966	Kim, Doo Jong Chung, Kwang Hyon Ryu, Hong Ryeol	Medicine Civil Law Korean History
1967	Lee, Sang Eun Park, Chol Jae Son, Chi Moo	Philosophy Physics Geology
1968	Shin, Ki Suk Ki, Young Suk	International Politics Microbiology
1969	Koh, Sung Jae Park, Won Sun Ahn, Tong Hyuk Chai, Re Suk Lee, Hi Jun	Economic History Commercial Law Applied Chemistry Nutritional Science Civil Engineering
1970	Kim, Dong II	Applied Chemistry
1971	Koh, Hyong Kon Zo, Ki Zun Han, Koo Dong	Philosophy Economic History Pharmacy
1972	Kim, Ok Joon Kim, Dong Hwa Kim, Hyo Rok Han, Sim Sok	Geology Philosophy Commercial Science Internal Medicine
1973	Sim, Jae Wan Woo, Lin Keun Lee, Chun Yung Choi, Chae Hee Chun, Poong Chin	Korean Literature Natural Products Chemistry Agricultural Chemistry Ethics Chemistry
1974	Kim, Hyong Gyn Koh, Byong Ik	Korean Linguistics Asian History
1975	Kim, Chun Sop Lee, Mun Ho Pahk, Chung Ki	Philosophy Internal Medicine Mathematics
1976	Cha, Sang Won Kim, Soo Jin	Chinese Literature Mineralogy
1977	Choe, Tae Young Kim, Chang Whan Kim, Chong Suk	Philosophy of Law Entomology Mine Engineering
1978	Kim, Joon Bo Cheong, Chang Hi Kim, Zae Geun Rha, Sae Jin	Agricultural Economics Stratigraphy Naval Architecture Anatomy & Physical Humanics

III. MAJOR ACTIVITIES

Year	Recipient	Specialty
1979	Seo, Byong Seol Son, Wou Sung Han, Woo Keun Kim, Sam Soon Choi, Hyung Sup	Medical Parasitology French Literature Korean History Applied Mycology Metallurgical Engineering
1980	Lee, Ho Wang Chun, Hae Jong	Microbiology East Asian History
1981	Kim, Boong Ku Kim, Choon Min Kim, Won Yong	French Literature Plan Ecology Archaeology
1982	Lee, Ki Baik Pac, Pong Youl Kwon, E Hyock Auh, Chun Suk Lee, Sang Koo Shim, Chong Supp	Korean History Theoretical Physics Preventive Medicine Pedagogy International Economy Wood Science
1983	Kim, Byung Chol Kim, Chol Choon Lee, Woo Choo Paik Woon Hah Nam, Heung Woo Park, Ha Wook	English & American Literature Ancient History of Korea Pharmacology Entomology Criminal Law Applied Chemistry
1984	Cha, Chu Whan Lee, Kwang Rin Yoon, Dong Suk Lee, Sang Sup Lee, Hi Bong Kwon, Nyong Dae	Chinese Literature Korean History Steelmaking Engineering Pharmaceutical & Biochemistry Civil Law & Korean Legal History Physics
1985	Lee, Du Hyun Ju, Jin Soon Lee, Kyun Sang	Korean Folklore Nutrition Architecture
1986	Cha, Ha Soon Lee, Man Gap	Western History Sociology
1987	Kim, Tae Kil Kim, Yong Sook Choi, Q Won Yoon, Chang Sup Rim, Han Jong	Ethics Korean Literature Chemistry Architecture Medical Parasitology
1988	Kim, Kyu Young Min, Doo Ki Kim, Ouk Keun Kim, Hoon Soo Kim, Jin Soo	Western Philosophy Asian History Economics Biology Medicine

Year	Recipient	Specialty
1989	Lim, Seok Jae Park, Choon Ho Kim, Bong Kyun Moon, Gook Jin	Psychology International Law Geology Legal Medicine
1990	Min, Seong Ki Lee, Tae Young Shim, Bong Sup Lee, Man Young	East Asian History Bio–Organic History Bio–Chemistry Bectronics & Communication
1991	Kim, Jong Chol Lee, Sang Man Ohh, Bong Kug	Educational Administration Petrology Animal Science
1992	Shim, Jyong Sup Joo, Chung No Chi, Je Geun	Polymer Chemistry Bio-Chemistry Pathology
1993	Lee, Ki Moon Yoon, Nung Min Yun, Taik Koo Kim, Sang Joo	Korean Linguistics Organic Chemistry Cancer Pathology Metallurgy
1994	Jung, Kyu Bok Rim, Won Taik Park, Sehie	Korean Classical Literature Economics Mathematics
1995	Suh, Cheong Soo Choi, Sam Kwon Bahk, Yong Whee	Korean Linguistics Polymer Chemistry Radiology & Nuclear Medicine
1996	Nam, Kwang Woo Chin, Hong Sup So, Chil Sup Kang, II Koo	Korean Linguistics Art History Economic Zoology Metallurgy
1997	Lee, Don Whui Yang, Seoung Gil Joh, Jang Whui Kweun, Wook Hyun	Pedagogy Nuclear Physics Electronic Physics Electrical Engineering
1998	Han, Jun Sook Shin, Yong Ha Lee, Hyun Goo Park, Sang Dai Kim, Jin Bok	Philosophy Sociology Chemistry Molecular Biology Medicine
1999	Joh, Gung Ho Lee, Seong Moo Shim, Sang Chul Moon, Yin Hyong Rho, Man Kyu	Psychology Korean History Chemistry Metallurgy Physics

III. MAJOR ACTIVITIES

Year	Recipient	Specialty
2000	Cho, Dong—II Kim, Shin Hong Cho, I Whan Kang, Suk Ho Kang, Hyen Sam	Korean Classical Literature Physics Polymer Chemistry Industrial Engineering Genetics
2001	Pak, Un Jong Lee, Byeong Gi Park, Seong Hoe	Philosophy of Law Information & Communication Immunopathology
2002	Soh, Kwang Hie Lee, Kiyong Lee, Yong Hie Rho, Hyune Mo Ro, Sung Tack	Philosophy Linguistics Physics Molecular Genetics Mechanical Engineering
2003	Lee, Kyung Shik Choi, Hyeong In Han, Min Koo	English Literature Mathematics Electrical Engineering
2004	Kuk, Young Lee, Hu Chul Cho, Sung Ho	Physics Materials Science & Engineering Physics
2005	Lee, Nam In Kwon, Byong Tak Lee, Jang Moo	Philosophy History of Korean Economy Machine Dynamics
2006	Lim, Hong Bin Lee, Sung Jin Je, Won Ho Park, Yong Han Kim, Sung Chol Oh, Woo Taek	Korean Linguistics Education Psychology Physics Marine Geology Macromolecule Engineering Physiology
2007	Jung, Jin Ha Hwang, Seon Keun Choi, Yang Do	Physics Material Engineering Genetic Engineering
2008	Kang, Sin Hang Oh, Keum Sung Yoon, Kyung Byung Kim, Dong Gyu	History of Korean Chinese History Artificial Photosynthesis Neurosurgery
2009	Lee, Han Goo Shin, Sung Chul Nam, Hong Gil Cho, Chong Su	Physiology of Society & History Physics of Magnetism Biochemistry, Microbiology Polymer Engineering
2010	Lee, Dae Gil Hong, Soon Hyung Kim, Kyung Jin Nam, Chang Hee	Mechanical Engineering Material Engineering Neurobiology Physics

Year	Recipient	Specialty
2011	Oh, Saeng Geun Seo, Se Won Lee, Gil Sung Song, Jin Won	20th–century French Literature Structural & Molecular Biology Mathematical Engineering Microbiology
2012	Huh, Soo-Youl Cho, Min haeng Choe, Joon Ho Yoo, Jung Yul Kim, Sung Hoon	Economic History Chemistry Biology Mechanical Engineering Microbiology & Immunology
2013	Kim, Chong-Keon Choi, Sang Dun Lee, Yong II Choi, Jung-Yun Han, Jae Yong	English Literature Molecular Science & Technology Sedimentary Geology Clinical pediatric cardiology Animal Molecular Genetics
2014	Cho, Nam Hyun Lee, Kyung Shik Park, Choong Seok Kahng, Byungnam Park, Byeong Uk Lee, Sin-Doo	Korean Modern Literature Korean Society and Economic History Korean History of Political Thought Statistical Physics Statistics Electronic Physics
2015	Ahn, Hwi Joon Im, Hyug Baeg Lee, Keun Lee, Yoong–Nam Kim, Se–Kwon Shin, Changsoo	Korean Art History Political Science Economics Vertebrate Paleontology Marine Biochemistry & Biotechnology Geophysical Prospecting
2016	Choi, Byonghyon Park, Sam Ock An, Soon–II Kaang, Bong–Kiun Lee, Chongmu Lee, Yong–Hwan	English Translation of Korean Classics Human Geography Climate Dynamics Neurobiology Material Engineering Phytopathology, Fungus Genomics
2017	Park, Seong Jong Kim, Seung Kuk Lee, Hyun-Woo Woo, Kyung Sik Lee, Kwang-Bok Kang, Chang-Yuil	Korean Language History (吏讀) Sociology Solid State Physics Paleoclimatology Communication Engineering Medicine Immunology
2018	Lee, Min Haeng Kim, Byung-Yeon Keum, Jong Hae Lee, Sang Yeol Ahn, Jong-Hyun Choi, Doil	German Language and Literature North Korean Economy Algebraic Geometry Plant Biology Materials Science and Engineering Horticultural Crop Genomics
2019	Kim, Young-whan Lee, Jong-eun Lee, Phil Ho Kim, Jihyun Yun, Kyong-Ku	Law Philosophy Western Political Thoughts Organic Chemistry Microbiomes Civil Engineering

- 1. Executives 43
- 2. List of Members 44
- 3. List of Honorary Members 178
- 4. Former Presidents and Vice-Presidents 194
 - 5. Deceased Members 198

Executives

- President: Kim, Dong Ki (term: 2018. 4. 1. 2020. 3. 31.)
- Vice-President: Park, Sang-Dai (term: 2018. 4. 1. 2020. 3. 31.)
- Director, Humanities & Social Sciences Division: Oh, Byung Nam (term: 2018. 4. 1. - 2020. 3. 31.)
- Director, Natural Sciences Division: Lee, Soon Hyung

(term: 2019. 4. 1. - 2020. 3. 31.)

• Subdivision Heads

Н	umanities & Social Sciences Division
	(term: 2019. 8. 26 2020. 8. 25.)
Subdivision	Chairperson
Subdivision I Subdivision II Subdivision IV Subdivision V Subdivision V	Park, Chong-Hyun (Ancient Greek Philosophy) Cho, Ju Kwan (Russian Literature) Lee, Ki Dong (Korean History) Kim, Sang Yong (Civil Law) Paik, Wanki (Public Administration) Jeong, Ki-Jun (Economics)

(term: 2019. 8. 26. - 2020. 8. 25.)

Subdivision	Chairperson
Subdivision	Park, Sung Hyun (Statistics)
Subdivision	Lim, Burn Jang (Sport Science)
Subdivision III	Lee, Byeong Gi (Information and Communications)
Subdivision IV	Ko, Jea Seung (Dentistry)
Subdivision V	Kim, Yoon Soo (Wood Science & Engineering)

List of Members

Humanities & Social Sciences Division

Subdivision I



- Date of Birth November 11, 1925
- Elected Date July 26, 1986
- Specialty Pedagogy

1949	Graduated from Seoul National University (B.A.)
1951-52, 62-64	Studied at the University of Chicago, U.S.A. (M.A., Ph.D.)
1952-1978	Professor and Dean, Seoul National University
1978-1982	President, Chungbuk National University
1982-1992	Professor, Hallym University
1992-1996	President, Hallym University
1996-present	Chair Professor, Hallym University

Cho, Tae Kyung, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 30, 1932
- Elected Date July 12, 1996
- *Specialty* Psychology
- 1957 Graduated from College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University (B.A.)

1957	Admitted to Graduate School, Seoul National University
1960-1965	Studied at Heidelberg University, Germany (Dr. Philosophy)
1966-1997	Full-time Instructor, Assistant Professor, Associate Professor,
	Seoul National University
1985-1986	President, The Korean Psychological Association

Chung, Chin Hong, D.Min.

• Date of Birth	November 23, 1937
• Elected Date	July 9, 1999
• Specialty	Religion (Phenomenology of Religion)
1960	Graduated from Seoul National University (B.A.)
1960-1965	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1965-1969	Instructor, Seoul Women's College and Ewha Womans
	University
1969-1971	United Theological Seminary, U.S.A. (STM)
1972-1981	Instructor, Seoul National University
1977-1978	Assistant Professor, Duksung Women's University
1978-1980	President, Korean Association of Religious Studies
1978-1982	Associate Professor, Dean of Academic Affairs, Myong Ji
	University
1979-1981	San Francisco Theological Seminary, U.S.A. (D.Min.)
1982-2003	Professor, Seoul National University
1991-1994	Director, Institute of Religion and Culture, Seoul National
	University
1992-1994	President, Korean Association for the History of Religion
2003-2008	Distinguished Professor, Hallym Academy of Sciences, Hallym
	University
2008-2011	Distinguished Professor, Ewha Academy for Advanced
	Studies, Ewha Womans University

2011-2016 Distinguished Professor, Ulsan University

Cha, Jae-Ho, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth March 1, 1934 • Elected Date July 16, 2004 Specialty Psychology (Social Psychology) 1952-1956 Department of Psychology, Seoul National University, B.A. 1956-1962 Graduate School, Seoul National University, M.A. in Psychology 1964-1967 Fulbright Student at University of Arizona, Tucson; M.A. in Psychology (Animal Psychology) 1966-1971 University of California at Los Angeles; Ph.D. in Psychology (Social Psychology), U.S.A. 1971 Lecturer, California State University of Los Angeles and California State College of Dominguez Hills, U.S.A. 1973-1974 Senior Research Associate, Korean Institute for Research in the Behavioral Science, Seoul 1974 Temporary Advisor, World Health Organization (WHO), Geneva, Switzerland 1974-1999 Professor, Department of Psychology, Seoul National University 1977-1978/1980-1982 President, Division of Social Psychology, Korean Psychological Association 1977-present Board Member, Korean Social Sciences Research Council 1980-1983/1989-1991 Chairman, Department of Psychology, Social Science College, Seoul National University 1982-1983 President, Korean Psychological Association 1983-1984 Visiting Professor, University of California at Los Angeles, U.S.A. 1986-1988 Director, Student Guidance Center, Seoul National University

Zoh, Myeong-han, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 6, 1938
- Elected Date July 15, 2005
- Specialty Cognitive Psychology

1961	Graduated from Seoul National University (B.A.)					
1969-2003	Professor, Seoul National University					
1971	Graduated from Seoul National University (M.A., Ph.D.)					
1976-1977	Research Fellow, Harvard University, U.S.A.					
1983-1984	Visiting Professor, Brown University, U.S.A.					
1988-1989	President, Korean Society of Cognitive Science					
1994-1995	President, Korean Psychological Association					
1996-1997	Visiting Adjunct Professor, University of Massachusetts,					
	Amherst, U.S.A.					
2003-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University					

Oh, Byung Nam, M.A.

- Date of Birth Oct. 14, 1940
- Elected Date July 15, 2005
- Specialty Aesthetics

1959-1963	Graduated from the Department of Aesthetics, College of Liberal arts and Sciences, Seoul National University
1963-1965	M.A., Aesthetics, School, Seoul National University
1970-2006	Professor, Seoul National University
1983-1985	Graduate work, Department of Philosophy, Graduate School, University of Illinois at Chicago, U.S.A.
1990-2000 1993-2000	Chairman, The Korean Society of Aesthetics Delegate of Korea, The International Association for Aesthetics

Lee, Don Hee, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth September 28, 1937
 Elected Date July 14, 2006
- Specialty Philosophy of Education

1956-1960	Seoul National University (B.A. in Education)
1960-1964	Seoul National University (M.A. in Education)
1968-1972	Wayne State University, Michigan, U.S.A. (M.A. in Philosophy)
1972-1974	Wayne State University (Ph.D. in Philosophy of Education)
1974-2003	Assistant, Associate, Full Professor of Education, Seoul National
	University
1985-1987	Dean, College of Education, Seoul National University
1995-1997	President, Korean Educational Development Institute
1998-2000	President, Korean Association of Educational Studies
2000-2001	Minister of Education, Republic of Korea
2002-2004	President, Korean Social Sciences Research Council
2003-present	Professor Emeritus of Education, Seoul National University
2003-2008	Headmaster, Korean Minjok Leadership Academy
2009-2012	Chair Professor of Education at Dankook University
2013-2016	Chairperson, Sookmyung Educational Foundation
2016-2017	President, Kimpo University

Lee, Sung Jin, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth June 6, 1934
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2007
- Specialty Educational Psychology, Applied Behavior Analysis

1957 Graduated from Seoul National University (B.A. in Ed. Psychology)

1961-1963	George Peabody College (M.A. in Clinical Psychology)					
1963-1967	Studied at the University of Kansas (Ph.D. in Ed. Psychology)					
1968	Certified Clinical Psychologist, State of Kansas, U.S.A.					
1970-1999	Professor, College of Education, Seoul National University					
1972-1975	President, Korean Association of Educational Psychology					
1974-2012	President, Korean Institute for Research in the Behavioral					
	Sciences (KIRBS)					
1982-1986 Executive Secretary, International Committee for Compa						
	Behavioral Study in Population					
1983-1985	President, Korean Counselors Association					
1984	Chairman, 'Value of Children' Session, World Population					
	Conference, București, Romania					
1988	Certified Counseling Psychologist, Korean Psychological					
	Association					
1996-1998	Member, The Presidential Commission on Educational Reform					
1999-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University					
2000-2002	President, Korean Society for the Applied Behavior Analysis					
2006	NAS Award, The National Academy of Sciences					

Keel, Hee-Sung, Ph.D.

- Elected Date July 10, 2009
- Specialty Buddhist Philosophy

1961-1965	B.A., Department of Philosophy, Seoul National University
1968-1971	M.Div., Yale Divinity School, Yale University, U.S.A.
1971-1977	Ph.D., Graduate School, Harvard University, U.S.A.
1977-1982	Assistant Professor, Department of Religion, St. Olaf College
1982-1984	Assistant Professor, Department of Philosophy, Seoul National
	University

1984-2004	Professor, Department of Religious Studies, Sogang University						
2004-present	Professor Emeritus, Sogang University						
2006-2007	Guest Professor, Faculty of Theology, Leuven(Louvain) University,						
	Belgium						
2007-2008	Roche Chair in Interreligious Research, Nanzan University,						
	Japan						

Soh, Kwang-Hie, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth May 5, 1934
- *Elected Date* July 9, 2010
- Specialty Western Philosophy

1953-1957	College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul Nat'l Univ.							
1957-1967	Graduate School, Seoul Nat'l Univ.							
1967-1999	Professor of Philosophy, Seoul Nat'l Univ.							
1977	Ph.D. from Graduate School, Seoul Nat'l Univ.							
1980-1981	Visiting Professor at Köln and Freiburg Univ., Germany							
1986-1988	President, Society of Philosophical Studies							
1989-1992	A Member of Committee, Prize of Cultural Merits of Seoul							
1991-1992	President, Korean Philosophical Association							
1991-1992	Chairman, The 1st. HAN-MINZOK Philosophers Meeting							
1991-1993	Dean, College of Humanities, Seoul Nat'l University							
1992-1993	A Member of Committee, Deliberate on the Honorary Dr.							
	Degree (Ministry of Education)							
1993-1995	President, Committee of Examination & Valuation in							

- Humanities-Social Sciences (Ministry of Education) 1996 Seowoo Cheolhak Prize (Transl. of Heidegger's Sein und Ze
- 1996Seowoo Cheolhak Prize (Transl. of Heidegger's Sein und Zeit)1997-2008President, The Memorial Meeting of Philosopher Yul-Am
- 2002 Baek-Sang's Authorship Prize, Hankuk Ilbo (*Philosophy of Time*)
- 2003 Prize of Author, The National Academy of Sciences, Republic

of Korea (Philosophy of Time)2009-presentPresident, The Authorship Prize of Philosopher Cheong-Song

Youn, Sa-Soon, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth • Elected Date • Specialty	December 19, 1936 July 13, 2012 Confucian Philosophy				
1957-1961	College of Liberal Arts, Korea University (B.A.)				
1961-1964	Graduate School, Korea University (M.A.)				
1975	Graduate School, Korea University (Ph.D.)				
1964-1973	Instructor, Korea University				
1973-1979	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Korea University				
1979-2002	Professor, Korea University				
1990-1993	President, The Korean Society of Confucian Studies				
1992-1994	President, The Society for Asian Philosophy in Korea				
1994-1995	President, The Korean Philosophical Association				
1994-2004	Vice-President, International Confucian Association (in China)				
2002-present	Professor Emeritus, Korea University				

Lee, Han Goo, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 10, 1945
- *Elected Date* July 11, 2014
- Specialty Western Philosophy

1964-1968Department of Philosophy, Seoul National University (B.A)1969-1981Graduate School, Seoul National University (Ph.D)

1980-2011	Professor of Philosophy, SungKyunKwan University						
1982-1983	Visiting Scholar, Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität Munich,						
	Germany						
1989-1990	Visiting Scholar, Brown University, RI, USA						
1993-1995	President, Korean Society of Analytical Philosophy						
1995-1995	Visiting Scholar, Tokyo Woman's University, Tokyo, Japan						
1999-2000	Visiting Scholar, University of Wisconsin-Madison, WI, USA						
2002-2004	President, Society of Philosophical Studies						
2004-2013	Editor in Chief, Philosophy and Reality						
2006-2006	Fellow, University of Wisconsin-Madison, WI, USA						
2006-2007	President, Korean Philosophical Association						
2010-2012	Director, Directorate for the Humanities and Social Sciences,						
	National Research Foundation of Korea						
2011-present	Emeritus Professor of Philosophy, SungKyunKwan University						
2013-present	Endowed Chair Professor of Philosophy, Kyung Hee University						

Park, Chong-Hyun, M.A.

- Date of Birth November 10, 1934
- Elected Date July 14, 2017
- Specialty Ancient Greek Philosophy

1955-1962	Department of Philosophy, Seoul National University (B.A.)
1962-1965	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1961-1969	Acted as an Entitled Literary Critic
1972-2000	Professor of Philosophy, Sungkyunkwan University
1983	Yolam Academic Prize
1987	Visiting Scholar, University of Athens
1991	President, Korean Society of Greco-Roman Studies
1992	Visiting Scholar, Balliol College, Oxford University
1999	The Grand Prize of Sungkyunkwan University's Family Prizes

2000	Seowoo Prize for Philosophy					
2000-present	Emeritus Professor, Sungkyunkwan University					
2003	Inchon Prize for Scholarship					
2007-present	Honorary	President,	International	Association	of	Greek
	Philosophy					

Humanities & Social Sciences Division

● Subdivision Ⅱ

Jung, Myong Hwan, Litt.D.

- Date of Birth June 18, 1929
- Elected Date August 12, 1981
- Specialty French Literature

1954	Graduated from College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul
	National University
1957-1961	Assistant Professor, Hankuk University of Foreign Studies
1961-1981	Professor, Seoul National University
1971-1972	Visiting Professor, University of Tokyo, Japan
1979-1980	President, Korean Society of French Language
1981-1999	Professor, The Catholic University of Korea
2018-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Lee, Ki Moon, Litt.D.

- Date of Birth October 23, 1930
- Elected Date November 20, 1982
- Specialty Korean Linguistics
- 1949-1953 Graduated from Department of Korean Language and Literature, Seoul National University
- 1953-1957 Studied at Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
- 1959-1961 Assistant Professor, Korea University
- 1960-1961 Visiting Scholar, Harvard University, U.S.A.

1962-1996	Professor, Seoul National University
1965-1967	Visiting Associate Professor, University of Washington, U.S.A.
1973	Graduate School, Seoul National University (Litt.D.)
1993-1994	Visiting Professor, University of Tokyo, Japan
1996-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Kim, Wan Jin, Litt.D.

• Date of Birth • Elected Date • Specialty	August 26, 1931 November 20, 1982 Korean Linguistics
1950-1954	Graduated from College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University
1955-1962	Studied at Graduate School, Seoul National University
1961-1971	Professor, Sogang University
1967-1969	Visiting Scholar, Harvard University, U.S.A.
1971-1996	Professor, Seoul National University
1973	Litt.D. at Graduate School, Seoul National University
1975-1976	Foreign Researcher, Tokyo Gaigodai, Japan
1987-1989	Dean, College of Humanities, Seoul National University
1995-1996	Dean, Graduate School, Seoul National University
1996-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1997-1998	Visiting Professor, Academy of Korean Studies

Chang, Suk-Jin, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth August 23, 1929
- *Elected Date* July 10, 1998
- Specialty Linguistics

1948-1955	English, Liberal Arts and Sciences College, Seoul National
	University (B.A.)
1955-1958	English, Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1958-1994	(Instructor/Assistant/Associate) Professor, Seoul National
	University
1962-1964	Linguistics, University of Hawaii, U.S.A. (M.A.)
1967-1972	Linguistics, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, U.S.A.
	(Ph.D.)
1975-1978	President, Linguistic Society of Korea
1976-1980	Director, Language Research Institute, Seoul National
	University
1980-1981	Visiting Scholar, Harvard University, U.S.A.
1989-1990	Visiting Scholar, Stanford University, U.S.A.
1994-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Lee, Kyung Shik, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 20, 1935
- *Elected Date* July 16, 2004
- *Specialty* English Literature

1955-1960	College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University (B.A.)
1961-1963	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1963-1964	University of Leeds (Postgraduate Diploma in English Studies),
	England
1965-2001	Professor, Seoul National University
1974-1975	Harvard-Yenching Visiting Scholar, Harvard University, U.S.A.
1975-1976	British Council Visiting Scholar, Cambridge University, U.K.
1976	British Council Visiting Scholar, Oxford University, U.K.
1985-1987	Dean of Academic Affairs, Seoul National University

1987-1988	Visiting Scholar, Cambridge University, U.K.
1990	Graduate School, Sogang University (Ph.D.)
1990-1992	President, The Shakespeare Association, Korea
1998	Translation Award
1999	Visiting Scholar, Cambridge University, U.K.
1999-2000	Honorary Fellow, The Huntington Library, California
2001-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2003	May 16 National Award
	The NAS Award

Cho, Dong-il, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth August 9, 1939
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- Specialty Korean Classical Literature

1962	B.A. in French Literature, Seoul National University
1966	B.A. in Korean Literature, Seoul National University
1968	M.A. in Korean Literature, Seoul National University
1968-1977	Instructor/Assistant/Associate Professor, Keimyung University
1976	Ph.D. in Korean Literature, Seoul National University
1977-1981	Professor, Yeongnam University
1981-1987	Professor, The Academy of Korean Studies
1987-2004	Professor, Seoul National University

Hong, Chai-song, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth May 2. 1946
- Elected Date July 12, 2007
- Specialty French Linguistics

1970	Graduated from Seoul National University (M.A.)
1975-1988	Professor, Yonsei University
1979-1982	Lecturer, U.E.R. Asie Orientale, University of Paris 7, France
1982	Linguistics, University of Paris 7, France (Ph.D.)
1988-2011	Professor, Seoul National University
1994	Invited Professor, École des Hautes Études en Sciences Sociales,
	Paris, France
1998-1999	Vice-President of Korean Society of French Language and
	Literature
1999-2007	Director, National Project Sejong for Development of
	Computational Lexicon of Contemporary Korean Language,
	Ministry of Culture and of Tourism
2002-2004	Director, Institute for Cognitive Science, Seoul National
	University
2004-2006	President, Korean Lexicographic Society
2005-2007	Director, Institute of Language Research, Seoul National
	University
2006-2008	President, Linguistic Society of Korea
2009-2014	President, Korean Research Group for Linguistic Typology
2011	Invited Professor, Université Paris Ouest La Défense, France
2011-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Kim, Hak-chu, Litt.D.

- Date of Birth January 18, 1934
- *Elected Date* July 10, 2009
- Specialty Chinese Literature

1952-1956 Dep. of Chinese Language and Literature, College of Liberal Art and Sciences, Seoul National University (B.A.)
1956-1957 Studied at Graduate School, Seoul National University
1956-1958 Assistant, College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National

	University
1958-1959	Perform Military Duties
1959-1961	Graduate School, National Taiwan University (M.A.)
1961-1965	Lecturer, College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National
	University
1965-1967	Full-time Lecturer, College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul
	National University
1967-1973	Assistant Professor, College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul
	National University
1973-1974	Visiting Professor, Princeton University, U. S. A.
1973-1978	Associate Professor, College of Humanities, Seoul National
	University
1975	Conferred Litt.D. Graduate School, Seoul National University
1975-1979	President, Korean Society of Chinese Language and Literature
1978-1999	Professor, College of Humanities, Seoul National University
1979-1983	President, Korean Society of Chinese Studies
1983-1989	Director, Institute of Asian Studies, Seoul National University
1992-1996	President, Korean Society of Chinese Classical Drama
1997-1998	Visiting Professor, Kyushu University, Japan
1999-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2001-2009	Distinguished Visiting Professor, Yonsei University

Lee, Chungmin, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth September 22, 1939
- Elected Date July 11, 2014
- Specialty Linguistics (and Cognitive Science)

1959-1963 B.A. in English, College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, SNU

1964-1967 M.A. in English Linguistics, Seoul National University

1968-1973 Ph.D in Linguistics, Indiana University, U.S.A.

1973-1974	Lecturer, Seoul National University
1974-2005	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Professor, SNU
1986-1988	(Visiting) Professor, UCLA, U.S.A.
1991, 2001, 2003	3
	Summers, Professor, Linguistic Society of America Institute
	(held at UCSC, UCSB, Michigan State University, respectively)
1997-1999	President, The Korean Society for Cognitive Science
2000 Winter	(Visiting) Professor, UCLA, U.S.A.
1999-2001	Director, Institute for Cognitive Science, SNU
2008-present	Honorary President, Intn'l Association for Cognitive Science
2010, 2011	Winters, Visiting Professor, City University of Hong Kong
2013	Life Achievement/Contribution Award, The Korean Society for
	Cognitive Science
1992-2002	Editor/Editorial Board, Journal of East Asian Linguistics, Kluwer
1997-2004	Editorial Board, Linguistics and Philosophy, Kluwer
1997-2005	Editor, Pragmatics, Journal of the Int'l Pragmatics Association
1999-present	Editorial board, book series Current Research in the Semantics/
	Pragmatics Interface (CRiSPI), Brill
2000-present	Editor-in-Chief, Journal of Cognitive Science, Institute for
	Cognitive Science, SNU/Intn'l Association for Cognitive Science
2005-Present	Board of Editors, Journal of Pragmatics, Elsevier
2011-2019	Editorial Board, Lingua, Elsevier, changed to Glossa (2016-)
	Ubiquity Press
2013-present	Editor, book series Language, Cognition, and Mind, Springer

Kim, Su-Young, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 14, 1943
- *Elected Date* July 10, 2015
- Specialty German Literature

1962-1969	College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University
	(B.A.)
1964-1967	Perform Military Duties
1969-1971	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1971-1972	Assistant, College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National
	University
1972-1975	Bonn University, Bonn, Germany
1975-1980	Duesseldorf University, Duesseldorf, Germany (Ph.D.)
1981-2009	Professor, Yonsei University
1985-86, 94-95	A.v. Humboldt-Foundation Visiting Scholar, Duesseldorf University,
	Duesseldorf, Germany
2002-2003	A.v. Humboldt-Foundation Visiting Scholar, Tuebingen
	University, Tuebingen, Germany
2009-present	Professor Emeritus, Yonsei University
2010	Awarded the Wooho Award for Humanities 2010, Wooho
	Cultural Foundation

Cho, Ju Kwan, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth June 5, 1953
- *Elected Date* July 14, 2017
- Specialty Russian Literature

1974-1981 1981-1983	College of Liberal Arts, Korea University (B.A.) Graduate School, Korea University (M.A.)
1984-1985	University Fellow, The Ohio State University, U.S.A.
1984-1988	Korean Government Fellow, Ministry of Education, ROK
1987	Graduate School, The Ohio State University (M.A.)
1991	Graduate School, The Ohio State University (Ph.D.)
1991-1992	Lecturer, Seoul National University
1993-2018	Professor, Yonsei University

1996-1998	Associate member, Gorky Institute of World Literature, A			
	Research Institute of the Russian Academy of Sciences			
1998-2000	President, Korean Association of Rusists			
2000	The Pushkin Medal Laureate, The Russian Government			
2001-2002	Visiting Professor, The Ohio State University, USA			
2007-2009	Assistant Dean, College of Liberal Arts, Yonsei University			
2012	Awarded the Ministry of Education and Science Award			
2015	Awarded the First Academy Award, Korean Association of Rusists			
2017	Awarded the Order of Honor by the President of Georgia			

Jang, Gyung-ryul, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth August 3, 1953
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2019
- *Specialty* English Literature

1973-1977	B.A. in English, College of Humanities, Seoul National		
	University		
1977-1979	M.A. in English, Graduate School, Seoul National University		
1980-1989	Full-time Instructor, Assistant Professor, Associate Professor,		
	Inha University		
1983-1988	Ph.D. in English, Graduate School, University of Texas at		
	Austin, U.S.A.		
1989-2018	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Professor, Seoul		
	National University		
1991-2010	Editor-in-Chief, Contemporary Criticism and Theory (Published		
	biannually in Seoul, Korea)		
1995-1996	Harvard-Yenching Visiting Scholar, Harvard University, U.S.A.		
1998-2002	Director, Center for English Languages and Cultures, Seoul		
	National University		
2004-2005	Visiting Scholar, University of Washington, U.S.A.		

2007-2009	President, The Criticism and Theory Society of Korea
2011-2012	Japan Foundation Visiting Scholar, University of Tokyo, Japan
2018-Present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Humanities & Social Sciences Division

Subdivision III

Kim, Yong Sop, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 8, 1931
- Elected Date July 14, 2000
- Specialty Korean History

1955	Graduated from College of Education, Seoul National University
1955-1957	Studied at Graduate School, Korea University
1959-1975	Professor, Seoul National University
1975-1997	Professor, Yonsei University
1977-1979	Executive-Director, The Association for Korean Historical Studies
1980-1983	Studied at Graduate School, Yonsei University (Ph.D.)
1984-1985	Visiting Professor, Universite Paris VII, France

Cha, Ha Soon, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth August 13, 1929
- Elected Date July 12, 2002
- Specialty European Intellectual History
- 1950-1956 Department of History, Seoul National University (B.A.)
- 1956-1958 Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
- 1961-1994 Professor, Sogang University
- 1965-1969 Graduate School, Brandeis University (M.A. and Ph.D.), U.S.A.
- 1977 Academic Dean, Sogang University

1978-1979	Fulbright Advanced Scholar, University of Chicago and Cornell			
	University, U.S.A.			
1982-1984	President, Korean Historical Association			
1986	Korean National Academy Award			
1987-1989	Dean, College of Liberal Arts, Sogang University			
1988-1990	President, Korean Society for Western History			
1989-1991	Senior Vice-President, Sogang University			
1992-1994	Director, Humanities Research Institute, Sogang University			
1994-2003	Trustee, Sogang University Corporation			
1994-present	Professor Emeritus, Sogang University			
1999-present	President, Korean National Committee of Historical Sciences			
2003	Sungkok Academic and Cultural Award			
2008	Inchon Award			
2008-2011	Director, Division of the Humanities and Social Sciences,			
	National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea			

Lee, Ki-Suk, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth November 30, 1940
- Elected Date July 15, 2005
- Specialty Human Geography

1959-1963	Graduated from College of Education, Seoul National University			
1966-1968	M.A. in Education, Seoul National University			
1970-1977	M.A., Ph.D., University of Minnesota, U.S.A.			
1977-1980	Assistant and Associate Professor, Ewha Womans University			
1980-1985	Assistant and Associate Professor, Seoul National University			
1985-2006	Professor, Seoul National University			
1991-1993	President of The Korea Section of Regional Science Association			
1994-2012	Korean Delegate for United Nations Group of Experts on			
	Geographical Names			

1999-2000	President of The Korean Urban Geographical Society
2001-2003	President of The Korean Geographical Society
2005-2009	President, The Society for East Sea

Lee, Ki Dong, M.A.

• Date of Birth	October 3, 1943
• Elected Date	July 15, 2005
 Specialty 	Korean History
1965	B.A. in the College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National
	University
1968-1970	M.A., Seoul National University
1976-1983	Assistant Professor, Gyoungbuk National University
1983-2009	Professor, Dongguk University
2004-2005	President, the Chin-Tan Society
2009-2015	Chair Professor, Dongguk University
2016-2017	President, Academy of Korean Studies

Kim, Young Han, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 25. 1943
- Elected Date July 15, 2005
- Specialty European History
- 1962-1966 Studied at the College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University (B.A.)
- 1967-1971 Studied at the Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
- 1977-1983 Studied at the Graduate School, Sogang University (Ph.D.)

1975-1984	Professor, Hanyang University			
1985	The 25 th Korea Book Award Sponsored by the Hanguk-Ilbo Co.			
1984-2009	Professor, Sogang University			
1990-1991	Visiting Scholar, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, U.S.A.			
1994-1996	President, Korean Historical Association			
1998-2000	President, Korean Society for Western History			
1999	Director, Sogang University Library			
2001-2003	Dean, College of Liberal Arts, Sogang University			
2002-2003	Director, Sogang University Archives			
2005-2007	Dean, Graduate School, Sogang University			
2006-2007	President, Dean's Association of Graduate Schools in Korea			
2009-present	Professor Emeritus, Sogang University			
2009	Received the Yellow Strips Order of Service Merit, Korean Government			

Lee, Sung Kyu, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	October 10, 1946
• Elected Date	July 15, 2005
• Specialty	Chinese History
1959-1965	Kyunggi Middle and High School
1965-1972	Department of History, Seoul National University
1966-1968	Army Service
1973-1975	Department of Asian History, Seoul National University
	(Master)
1975-1978	Ph.D. Course, Department of Asian History, Seoul National
	University
1978-1978	Full Time Lecturer, Sudo Women's Normal College
1979-1980	Full Time Lecturer, Dept. of Asian History, Seoul National
	University
1981-1985	Assistant Professor, Dept. of Asian History, SNU

1983-1984	Visiting Scholar, Harvard-Yenching Institute, USA			
1984	Ph.D., Seoul National University			
1985-1990	Associate Professor, Dept. of Asian History, SNU			
1990-2011	Professor, Dept. of Asian History, SNU			
1993-1993	Training in the Language Center, People's University, China			
1996-1998	President of Society for Asian History, Korea			
2003-2005	Director of Institute of Historical Research, SNU			
2005-2006	Director of Kyujanggak Archives, SNU			
2005-present	Academician of the National Academy of Sciences			
2009-2011	Committee Member, National Institute of Korean History			
2012-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University			

YI, Tae-Jin, Honorary Dr. of Literature

• Date of Birth	October	14,	1943
-----------------	---------	-----	------

- Elected Date July 12, 2007
- Specialty Korean History

1965	Seoul National University (B.A.)
1969	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1973-1977	Professor, Kyungpook National University
1977-2009	Professor, Seoul National University
1985-1986	Visiting Scholar, Columbia University, New York, U.S.A.
1988-1992	Director, Kyujanggak Archives, SNU
1992	Chairman, Department of Korean History, SNU
1997-2001	Councillor, Seoul National University
1998-2000	President, Chintan Hakhoe (Chintan Society)
2003-2004	President, Yoksa Hakhoe (Korean Historical Association)
	/Teaching Professor, Harvard University, U.S.A.
2003-2009	Councillor, National Institute of Korean History
2004-2005	President, Korean Association of Academic Societies (KAOAS)
2004-2006	Director, Institute of Korean Studies, SNU
--------------	---
2006-2008	Dean, College of Humanities, Seoul National University
2005	Academy of Korean Studies, Honorary Doctor of Literature
2009-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2010-2013	Chairman, National Institute of Korean History, R.O.K.
2015-2019	Bureau Member, Union Académique Internationale, Brussels,
	Belgium

Han, Sang-Bok, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth August 26, 1935
- Elected Date July 13, 2012
- Specialty Cultural Anthropology

1956-1961	Seoul National University (B.A. Sociology)
1957-1958	Served in the Korean Army
1962-1964	Seoul National University (M.A. Sociology)
1962-1965	Assistant to Chairperson (Dept. of Sociology), S.N.U.
1965-1967	Lecturer, Dept. of Archaeol. & Anthrop., S.N.U.
1967-1975	Instructor, Assistant Prof. of Anthrop., S.N.U.
1969-1972	Fellow, Harvard Yenching Institute, U.S.A.
1969-1972	Michigan State University (Ph.D. Anthrop.), U.S.A.
1973-1975	Chairperson, Dept. of Archaeol. & Anthrop., College of Liberal
	Arts and Sciences, S.N.U.
1975-1978	Chairperson, Dept. of Anthrop., College of Social Sciences, S.N.U.
1975-2000	Associate Prof., Professor of Anthrop., S.N.U.
1979-1981	President, Korean Society for Cultural Anthropology
1979-1981	Associate Dean, Collge of Social Sciences, S.N.U.
1980-1988	WEPRO Member, UNDP/World Bank/WHO/TDR/SER/SC,
	Geneva, Switzerland
1980-2000	Chairperson, Social Science Committee & Man and Biosphere

	Project of UNESCO
1983-1986	Director, Population and Development Studies Centre
1988-1989	Consultant, IDRC (International Development Research Centre), Canada
1990-1992	President, Korean Social Science Research Council
1993-1994	Visiting Professor, Stanford University, U.S.A.
1996-1998	Dean, College of Social Sciences, S.N.U.
1997-1999	President, Korean Rural Sociological Society
1999.3-9	Visiting Research Professor, U. of the Ryukyus, Japan
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2003-2004	Extraordinary Professor, Seoul Digital University
2013-Present	Member, Committee on Scientific Activities, Pacific Science Association

Choi, Byung-Hyun, Ph.D.

- Elected Date July 13, 2012
- Archaeology • Specialty

1972	Soongsil University (B.A.)
1981	Graduate School, Soongsil University (M.A.)
1990	Graduate School, Soongsil University (Ph.D.)
1983-1996	Professor, Hannam University
1992-1996	Director, The Museum of Hannam University
1996-2013	Professor, Soongsil University
1998-2013	Director, The Korean Christian Museum at Soongsil University
2006-2007	President, The Korean Archaeological Society
2013-present	Professor Emeritus, Soongsil University

Yim, Dawnhee, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 13, 1944
- Elected Date July 31, 2015
- *Specialty* Folklore

1968	Seoul National University (B.A.)
1977	University of Pennsylvania (Ph.D.), U.S.A
1981-2009	Assistant, Associate and Professor, Dongguk University
1986	Visiting Professor, Indiana University, U.S.A
1999-2004	International Jury, Masterpieces of Oral and Intangible Heritage of Humanity, UNESCO
2001-2015	Member, Vice-Chair, Cultural Committee, Cultural Heritage Administration, Republic of Korea
2003	Visiting Professor, L'Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris, France
2006-2008	President, Korean Folklore Society
2006-present	Editorial Board Member, International Journal of Intangible Heritage
2010-present	Distinguished Professor, Dongguk University
2011-2015	Vice-Chair, Board of Directors, International Information and
	Networking Center for Intangible Cultural Heritage in the Asia-Pacific Region under the auspices of UNESCO
2015-2016	President, Association for Intangible Heritage
2015-Present	Chair, Advisory Committee, International and Network Center for Intangible Cultural Heritage in the Asia-Pacific Region under auspices of UNESCO

Kim, Hodong, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth Feb. 10, 1955
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2019
- Specialty Central Asian History

1979	Seoul National University (B.A.)
1986	Harvard University (Ph.D.), U.S.A
1986-present	Assistant, Associate and Professor, Seoul National University
1994	Humboldt scholar, München University, Germany
2000-200	Visiting scholar, Harvard University, U.S.A.
2007-2010	Director, Center for Central Eurasian Studies, Seoul National
	University
2007-2008	Visiting scholar, The Swedish Collegium for the Advanced
	Studies, Uppsala, Sweden
2011-2013	President, Korean Association for Asian Studies
2013-2014	Director, Center for Historical Studies, Seoul National
	University
2015-2016	Visiting scholar, Institute for Advanced Studies, Princeton,
	U.S.A.
2016-present	Chairman, Korean Committee for International Historical Studies
2019-present	Distinguished Professor, Seoul National University

Park, Yongwoon, Ph.D

- Date of Birth May 28, 1942
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2019
- Specialty Korean History

1966 Seoul National University (B.A.)

1980	Korea University (Ph.D.)
1975-1981	Assistant Professor, Sungshin Women's University
1981-2007	Professor, Korea University
1992-1994	Museum director, Korea University
1993-1999	Committee member, Seoul Historiography Institute
2002-2003	President, The Association for Korean Historical Studies
2003-2006	Committee Member, National Institute of Korean History
2005-2006	President, The Society for Studies of Korean History
2007-Present	Emeritus Professor, Korea University

Humanities & Social Sciences Division

Subdivision IV

Kim, Jhong Won, LL.D.

- Date of Birth October 25, 1931
- *Elected Date* July 7, 1995
- Specialty Criminal Law

1954	Graduated from College of Law, Seoul National University (B.A.)
1957	Graduated from Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1959-1974	Professor, College of Law, Kyunghee University
1974-1977	Professor, College of Law, Hanyang University
1976	Graduate School, Seoul National University (Ph.D in Law)
1977-1987	President, The Korean Criminal Law Association
1977-1997	Professor, College of Law, Sungkyunkwan University
1981-1984	Dean, College of Law, Sungkyunkwan University
1983-present	Honorary Member, The Criminal Law Society of Japan
1997-present	Professor Emeritus, Sungkyunkwan University

Kim, Tschol Su, LL.D.

- Date of Birth July 10, 1933
- *Elected Date* July 12, 1996
- Specialty Constitutional Law

1956	Graduated from College of Law, Seoul National University (LL.B.)
1956-1960	Studied at Munich University, Germany
1962-1967	Instructor, Assistant Professor, Seoul National University

1966-1967	Visiting Scholar, Harvard University, U.S.A.
1967-1971	Associate Professor, Seoul National University
1971	Graduate School, Seoul National University (LL.D.)
1972-1998	Professor, Seoul National University
1985-1997	President, Korean Education Law Association
1987-1988	President, Korean Public Law Association
1988-1995	President, Korean Law Professors Association
1988-2009	Member of Advisory Committee, Korean Constitutional Court
1993-present	Chairman, Korean Constitutional Research Institute
1995-1999	Member of Executive Committee, International Association of
	Constitutional Law
1999-2005	Vice President, International Association of Constitutional Law
1995-2003	Member of Executive Committee, International Association of
	Legal and Social Philosophy
1998-2000	President, Tamna University
1998-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2002-2013	Chaired Professor, Myungji University

Koh, Sang Ryong, LL.D.

- Date of Birth April 22, 1939
- Elected Date July 11, 2003
- Specialty Civil Law

1964	College of Law, Sungkyunkwan University (LL.B.)
1965-1967	Graduate School of Law, Sungkyunkwan University (LL.M.)
1968-1971	Graduate School of Law, the University of Tokyo (LL.M.)
1971-1977	Graduate School of Law, the University of Tokyo (LL.D.)
1977-2004	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Professor of Law,
	Sungkyunkwan University
1983-present	Director, The Korean Commercial Arbitration Board

1986-1987	Visiting Scholar, the University of Tokyo, Japan
1990-1992	Dean, College of Law, Sungkyunkwan University
1992-1995	Dean of Academic Affairs, Sungkyunkwan University
1996-1997	Teaching Professor, School of Law, the University of Tokyo,
	Japan
1996-2003	Vice President, The Korea Law Professors Association Inc.
1996-2004	Vice President, The Korea Civil Law Association
1996-2010	Teaching Professor, Graduate School of Law, Waseda
	University, Japan
1998-2000	President, The Korean Association of Comparative Private Law
2004-2010	Professor of Law School, Daitowunka University, Japan
2004-present	Professor Emeritus, Sungkyunkwan University
2007-2008	Teaching Professor of Law School, the University of Tokyo, Japan

Kim, Nam Jin, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth • Elected Date • Specialty	August 8, 1932 July 14, 2006 Public Administrative Law
1951-1955	College of Law, Seoul National University (LL.B)
1956-1959	Graduate School, Seoul National University (LL.M.)
1959-1964	Instructor, Konkuk University
1965-1968	Research Fellow, Institute of Municipal Government
1969-1976	Professor of Law, Dankook University
1970-1971	Institute of Social Studies, Holland (Diploma)
1975. 8	Awarded Doctor of Jurisprudence (Dankook University)
1977-1982	Professor of Law, Kyunghee University
1980-1981	Guest Professor, Freiburg University, Germany
1983-1998	Professor of Law, Korea University
1998-2002	Invited Professor, Soonchunhyang University

2004-2006Invited Professor, Kangwon University2007-2008Invited Professor, Donga University

Chung, Dong-Yoon, LL.D.

	April 3, 1939
• Elected Date	July 14, 2006
• Specialty	Commercial Law (Corporations) & Civil Procedure
1957-1963	College of Law, Seoul National University (LL.B.)
1964-1980	Judge, Seoul District Court and High Court
1968-1970	Graduate School, Seoul National University (LL.M.)
1973-1976	Graduate School, Seoul National University (LL.D.)
1980-1981	Presiding Judge, Changhoong Branch Court (Kwangju)
1981-1982	Attorney at Law
1982-2004	Professor, College of Law, Korea University
1984-2006	Advisor, Ministry of Justice
1990-1994	Advisor, General Conditions Regulation Committee
1990-2014	Advisor, Federation of Korea Enlisted Corporations
1994-1996	Chairman, Korean Society of Commercial Law
1996-2000	Director, Korea Broadcasting Corporation,
1997-1999	Chairman, Korean Society of Civil Procedural Law
1997-2000	Member, Seoul Metropolitan City Planning Board
1999-2014	Advisor, General Conditions Regulation Committee
2000-2002	Dean, College of Law, Korea University
2000-2002	Dean, Graduate School of Legal Studies
2004-present	Professor Emeritus, Korea University
2005-2006	Chairman, Corporation Law Revision Committee
2005-2008	Advisor, Hwang, Mok, Park p.c. (Law firm)
2006-2008	Chairman, Korean Society of Civil Enforcement Law
2006-2012	Member, Personnel Committee, City of Seoul

2008-present	Legal Counsel, Buyoung Co. Ltd.
2009	Chairman, Electronic Procedural Law Enactment Committee
2011-2016	Distinguished Professor, Seoul Cyber University
2006-present	Member, National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea

Park, Byoung Ho, LL.D.

 Date of Birth Elected Date Specialty 	May 13, 1931 July 13, 2007 Korean Legal History & Family Law
1950-1955	Graduated from College of Law, Seoul National University (LL.B.)
1955-1958	Graduate School, Seoul National University (LL.M.)
1963-1996	Professor of Law, College of Law, Seoul National University
1967-1968	Director, Law Library, Seoul National University
1972-1975	Chief of Inquiry Section, Central Library, Seoul National University
1975	Graduate School, Seoul National University (Ph.D in Law)
1975-1978	Chief of Gyujanggak, Central Library, Seoul National University
1980-1982	Head, Department of Library, Research, Education, The
	Academy of Korean Studies
1986	Awarded the Prize for the studies of Legal Culture from Korean
	Bar Association
1987-1989	Director, Central Library, Seoul National University
1989	Awarded the Prize for the Arts and Sciences from Kumho
	Cultural Foundation
1989-1997	President, Korean Society of Legal History
1990-1992	Dean, College of Law, Seoul National University
1991-1995	President, The Society of Korean Historical Manuscripts
1992	Conferred the Order of Civil Merit of "Moran Medal"
1994-1995	President, Korean Society of Family Law
1996-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

1997-1998	Visiting Professor, The Academy of Korean Studies
1998-2000	Chairman & Member of the Board of Trustee, The Hanseung
	Educational Institution
2000-present	Visiting Professor, The Academy of Korean Studies
2004	Awarded the Prize for Land Law Studies from the Korean Land
	Law Association
2007	Awarded the Prize for the Studies of Korean Legal Culture from
	Youngsan Foundation of Law & Culture
2008	Conferred the Order of Civil Merit of "Mugungwha" Medal
2011	Granted Honorary Doctor of Literature from the Academy of
	Korean Studies
2012-present	President, Philam Academy

Kim, Sang Yong, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth Dec. 24, 1949
- Elected Date July 10, 2009
- Specialty Civil Law

1971	B.A. in Law, College of Law, Seoul National University	
1979	M.A. in Law, Graduate School, Dankook University	
1979-1981	Senior Research Fellow, Korea Research Institute for Human	
	Settlements	
1981-1986	Assistant Professor, College of Law, Choongbook National	
	University	
1983	Visiting Scholar, Law School(Boalt Hall), University	
	of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.	
1983, 1991, 2000, 2007, 2011		
	Visiting Scholar, Max-Planck-Institute for Comparative and	
	International Private Law, Hamburg, Germany	
1986	Ph.D. in Law, Graduate School, Seoul National University	
1986-1993	Professor, College of Law, Hanyang University	

1987 1990-2014	Visiting Researcher, Land Reform Training Institute, ROC(Taiwan)
1990-2014 1993-2015	Academic Advisor, Korea Legislation Research Institute
	Professor, Law School, Yonsei University
1994, 1997	Visiting Scholar, Trier University, Germany
2005, 2008, 201	7
	Visiting Scholar, Max-Planck-Institute for European Legal
	History, Frankfurt/M, Germany
2006	Research Awardee of the Alexander von Humboldt Foundation,
	Germany
2006-present	Director, Foundation of Suam for Encouragement of Scholarship and
1	Culture
2006-2007	President, Korea Land Law Association
2007	President, Korea Civil Law Association
2011	Visiting Scholar, Law School, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan
2011-2015	President, Korean-German Law Association
2013, 2014	Visiting Scholar, Faculty of Catholic Theology of München
	University, München, Germany
2015-present	Professor Emeritus, Yonsei University
2015	Visiting Scholar, Law School, Doshisha University, Kyoto, Japan
2015	Order of Okjo-Geunjeong
2016	Visiting Professor, Law School, Shandong University, Jinan,
	China
2016-present	Fellow, North-Korean Law Forum by Korea Legislation Research
	Institute
2017-present	Special Academic Advisor, Korea Legislation Research
I	Institute

Kim, Hyo-Jeon, LL.D.

- Date of Birth August 28, 1945
- Elected Date July 9, 2010
- Specialty Constitutional Law

1968	B.A., Sungkyunkwan University	
1970	M.A., Seoul National University	
1971-1973	Teaching Assistant at Seoul National University	
1974-1975	Lecturer at Seoul National University, Sungkyunkwan University	
1977-2010	Full-time Instructor, Assistant Professor, Associate Professor,	
	Professor at Dong-A University	
1981	LL.D., Seoul National University	
1982-1984	Gastprofessor at Freiburg University, West Germany (Alexander	
	von Humboldt Stiftung)	
1987-1988, 1993-1995		
	Dean of Faculty of Law, Dong-A University	
1996-1997	Visiting Scholar, University of California at Berkeley	
2002-2003	President of Korean Public Law Association	
2005-2006	Exchange Researcher, Waseda University, Japan	
2009	Dean, Law School, Dong-A University	

Lee, Hyung-kook, LL.D.

- Date of Birth January 24, 1938
- Elected Date July 11, 2014
- Specialty Criminal Law
- 1957-1961 College of Law and Political Science, Sungkyunkwan University (Bachelor of Law)
- 1961-1964 Graduate School, Sungkyunkwan University (Master of Law)
- 1975-1978 Heidelberg University (Dr.jur.), Germany
- 1979-1981 Associate Professor of Law, Kyunghee University
- 1981-2003 Professor of Law, Yonsei University
- 1995-1997 President, Korean Association of Criminology
- 1997-1998 President, The Korean Criminal Law Association
- 1997-1999 Dean, College of Law, Yonsei University
- 2003-2008 Invited Professor, Hallym University

Lim, Chong Yul, LL.D.

- Date of Birth December 5, 1943
- Elected Date July 22, 2016
- Specialty Labor Law

1962-1967	College of Law, Seoul National University (Bachelor of Law)
1967-1969	Graduate School, Seoul National University (Master of Law)
1979-1982	Graduate School, Seoul National University (LL.D.)
1977~1992	Professor of Law, Soongsil University
1982-1984	Visiting Professor, Frankfurt University, Germany
1992-2009	Professor of Law, Sungkyunkwan University
1999-2000	President, Korea Labor Relations Association

President, Korean Society of Labour Law
Chairperson(Status of a Minister), National Labour Relations
Commission
Member, Korea Tripartite Commission
Public Interest Commissioner, National Labour Relations
Commission
Professor Emeritus, Sungkyunkwan University

Kwon, Ohseung, LL.D.

- Date of Birth January 12, 1950
- Elected Date July 14, 2017
- Specialty Competition Law, Economic Regulation

1969-1973	College of Law, Seoul National University(LL.B)
1973-1975	Graduate School, Seoul National University(LL.M)
1975-1987	Graduate School, Seoul National University(LL.D)
1979-1980	Full time Lecturer, DongA University
1980-1992	Professor of Law, Kyung Hee University
1984-1986	Visiting Scholar, Freiburg University(sponsored by Humboldt
	Foundation), Germany
1989	Visiting Professor, Freiburg University, Germany
1992-2015	Professor of Law, Seoul National University
1998-1999	Visiting Professor, Harvard University, U.S.A.
1999, 2001, 200	2, 2005, 2010, 2012, 2014
	Visiting Professor, Mainz University, Germany
2000	Visiting Professor, Waseda University, Japan
2000-2006	President, Korean Competition Law Association
2004-2006	Director, Center for Asian Law
2006-2008	Chairman, Korea Fair Trade Commission
2008-2011	Director, Center for Competition Law, Seoul National University
	* * *

2011-Present	Chief Director, Center for Asian Law
2011-Present	Research Fellow, Competition Law Institute, East China
	University of Politics and Law, China
2012-2014	Director, Asia Pacific Law Institute, Seoul National University
2015-2018	President, Korean Competition Law Forum
2015-Present	Emeritus Professor, Seoul National University

Choe, Byoung Jo, Dr. jur.

• Date of Birth	February 23, 1953
• Elected Date	July 12, 2019
• Specialty	Roman Law, European Legal History, Civil Law
1971-1975	College of Law, Seoul National University (LL.B)
1975-1978	Graduate School, Seoul National University (LL.M)
1979-1985	Georg-August-University Göttingen, Germany (Dr. jur.)
1985-1996	Professor of Law, College of Law, Seoul National University
1996-2018	Professor of Law, School of Law, Seoul National University
1992, 2000, 200	6
	Visiting Scholar, Göttingen University (sponsored by Humboldt
	Foundation), Germany
2002	Visiting Scholar, UC Berkeley School of Law (Boalt Hall) (sponsored by Seoul National University), USA
2003-2005	Director, Law Research Institute, Seoul National University
2005-2009	Member, Presidential Committee for the Inspection of Collaborations for Japanese Imperialism
2010-2012	President, Korean Society of Greco-Roman Studies
2010-2014	President, Korean Society of Legal History
2010-2016	Managing Professor, Interdisciplinary Graduate Program in Classical Studies, College of Humanities, Seoul National University

2011-Present	Corresponding Member, Göttingen Academy of Sciences and
	Humanities, Germany
2018-Present	Emeritus Professor, Seoul National University
2019-Present	Chair Professor, Y'sU (Youngsan University)

Humanities & Social Sciences Division

Subdivision V

Lim, Hy Sop, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	May 3, 1937		
• Elected Date	July 10, 1998		
• Specialty	Sociology		
1955-1959	B.A., Seoul National University		
1959-1964	M.A., Seoul National University		
1965-1970	Ph.D., Emory University in U.S.A.		
1968-1970	Assistant Professor, West Georgia College, U.S.A.		
1970-1972	Research Professor, Population & Development Studies Center		
	and Lecturer, College of Liberal Arts & Sciences, Seoul National		
	University		
1972-1975	Associate Professor, Korea University		
1975-2002	Professor, Korea University		
1984-1986	Dean of Academic Affairs, Korea University		
1986-1988	President, Korean Sociological Association		
1993-1995	Dean, College of Liberal Arts, Korea University		
1996-1998	President, Korean Social Science Research Council/Dean,		
	Graduate School, Korea University		
1997-1998	President, Asian Social Science Research Council		
2002-present	Professor Emeritus, Korea University		
2014-2016	Director, Humanities & Social Sciences Division, National		
	Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.		

Kang, Sin Taek, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth May 7, 1933
- *Elected Date* July 9, 1999
- *Specialty* Public Administration (Administrative Theory; Public Budgeting)

1955-1959	B.A., in Political Science, Seoul National University
1959-1961	M.P.A. in Public Administration, Seoul National University
1960-1963	M.P.A. in University of the Philippines, Philippines
1963-1969	Teaching Assistant, Graduate School of Public Administration,
	Seoul National University
1965-1969	Ph.D. in Political Science, University of Pennsylvania, U.S.A
1969-1998	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Professor, Graduate
	School of Public Administration, Seoul National University
1977-1979	Associate Dean of Academic Affairs, Seoul National University
1982-1985	Dean of Academic Affairs, Seoul National University
1984	President, Korean Association for Public Administration
1988-1990	Dean, Graduate School of Public Administration, Seoul National
	University
1989-1991	Member of the Board of Management, Association of Development
	Research and Training Institutes of Asia and the Pacific (ADIPA)
1991-1993	Vice President, ADIPA
1998-2001	Chairman, Korea Research Institute of Public Administration
1998-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Ahn, Byung Joon, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth April 2, 1936
- *Elected Date* July 14, 2000
- Specialty Political Science and International Relations

1961	Graduated from Yonsei University (B.A.)
1966	Graduated from University of Hawaii, U.S.A. (M.A.)
1972	Graduated from Columbia University, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1972-1977	Associate Professor, Western Illinois University, U.S.A.
1978-2001	Dean, Social Sciences and Professor, Political Science, Yonsei
	University
1978-2003	Advisor to the Foreign, the Defence and the Unification
	Ministry, R.O.K.
1988-1989	President, The Korean Association of International Studies
1988-present	Council Member, The Seoul Forum for International Affairs, The
	Korea Committee for Pacific Cooperation, The Korea-Japan Forum
1995	Awarded the Order of Civil Merit of Moran Medal for
	distinguished record in private sector diplomacy, R.O.K.
1996	Visiting Professor, SAIS, Johns Hopkins University, U.S.A.
1997	Visiting Professor, International Affairs, George Washington
	University, U.S.A.
2002-2004	Visiting Professor, The National Graduate Institute for Policy
	Studies, Tokyo, Japan
2004-2015	Visiting Professor, KDI School of Public Policy and Management,
	Seoul, KOREA
2006-2009	Director of the Northeast Asian History Foundation

Kim Kyong-Dong, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth November 11, 1936
- Elected Date July 12, 2002
- Specialty Sociology

1959	College of	Liberal Arts	& Sciences,	Seoul	National	University

- 1959-1960 Graduate School, Seoul National University
- 1961-1962 University of Michigan, U.S.A. (M.A.)

1961-1967	Professor, Seoul Women's University
1965-1966	Research Fellow, East-West Center, Hawaii, U.S.A.
1968-1969	Professor, Seoul National University
1969-1971	Cornell University, U.S.A. (Ph.D. in 1972)
1971-1977	Professor, North Carolina State University, U.S.A.
1977-2002	Professor, Seoul National University
1983-1986	Director, Institute of Social Sciences, Seoul National University
1986-1987	Fellow, Woodrow Wilson Center for International Scholars,
	Washington, DC, U.S.A.
1987-1989	Dean of Planning and Coordination, Seoul National University
1989	President, Korean Sociological Association
1991-1993	Executive Director, SNU Development Fund
1991	Directeur Associe (Visiting Professor), l'Ecole des Hautes Etudes
	en Sciences Sociales, Paris, France
1993	Grand Prize for Scholarly Achievements, The 19th Joong-Ang
	Cultural Prize, The Joong-Ang Ilbo Daily
1996, 1998	Visiting Professor, Duke University, U.S.A.
1999-2007	Chairman, Korean Association for Information Society
2001-2012	Visiting Professor, KDI School of Public Policy and Management
2001	The 16th Sung-God Academic Culture Prize in Humanities and
	Social Sciences, The Sung-Gok Academic Culture Foundation
2002-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2007-2014	Distinguished Visiting Professor, Graduate School of Practical
	Theology
2009-2013	President, Korea Forum of Volunteerism
2011-2015	Visiting Professor, KAIST College of Business
2013	The Carbon Culture Grand Prize, for Advancement of Science
	for Society, the Korea Chemistry Society
2014	The 28th Inch'on Prize in Humanities and Social Science, The
	Inch'on Memorial Association, the DongA Ilbo
2015-2017	Visiting Professor, Graduate Institute of Peace Studies, Kyung
0017	Hee University
2017	The 13th Kyung-Ahm Prize in Humanities and Social

Science, Kyung-Ahm Education and Culture Foundation2018-presentVisiting Professor, Incheon National University

Kim, Yong Koo, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth • Elected Date • Specialty	
1961	B.A., Seoul National University
1961-1964	M.A., Seoul National University
1964-1979	Ph.D. in International Relations, Seoul National University
1969-2002	Professor, Seoul National University
1971-1972	Visiting Scholar, Toyo Bunko, Tokyo, Japan
1975-1977	Research at Paris II, Paris, France
1979-1985	Director, Institute of International Affairs, Seoul National
	University
1985	Dean, Office of Student Affairs, Seoul National University
1986-1991	Director, Seoul National University Press
1988-1989	President, Korean Association of International Relations
1994-1995	Dean, College of Social Sciences, Seoul National University
1998	Visiting Scholar, University of California, Santa Barbara, U.S.A.
2002-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2003-present	Distinguished Professor, Director of Hallym Academy of Sciences, Hallym University
	· 5 5

Jin, Duk Kyu, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 17, 1938
- *Elected Date* July 16, 2004
- Specialty Politics

1964	Graduated from Yonsei University (B.A.)
1964-1966	Studied at Graduate School, Yonsei University (M.A.)
1966-1978	Studied at Graduate School, Yonsei University (Ph.D. in Politics)
1970-2003	Professor, Ewha Womans University
1977-1978	Visiting Fellow, London School of Economics and Political Science
1988-1989	Associates, Harvard Yenching Institute, Harvard University
1995-1997	Dean, Graduate School, Ewha Womans University
2000-2002	Director, Korea Cultural Research Institute, Ewha Womans
	University
2003-2013	Chair Professor, Ewha Womans University

Paik, Wanki, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth November 9, 1936
- *Elected Date* July 13, 2007
- Specialty Public Administration

1959	Graduated from College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul
	National University (B.A.)

1959-1961	Studied at Graduate School of Public Administration, Seoul
	National University (M.P.A.)

- 1968-1972 Studied at Graduate School, Florida State University, U.S.A. (Ph.D. in Political Science)
- 1975-1978Professor & Dean of Academic Affairs, Kookmin University1978-2002Professor, Korea University
- 1981 Program Chairman in Korean Political Science Association
- 1983-1985 Editor, The Korean Social Science Research Council
- 1985President, The Korean Association for Public Administration1988-1990Director, The Research Institute for Public Affairs, Korea
- University
- 1993 Visiting Professor, Indiana University, U.S.A.
- 1994-1996 President, The Korean Social Science Research Council
- 1996-1998 Dean, The College of Politics and Economics, Korea University
- 1998-2002 Director, The Institute for Governmental Studies, Korea University
- 2002-present Professor Emeritus, Korea University

Lee, Jung Bock, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 1, 1945
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- Specialty Political Science

1963-1967	Department of Political Science, College of Liberal Arts and
	Sciences, Seoul National University (B.A.)
1967-1969	Department of Political Science, Graduate School, Seoul
	National University (M.A.)
1970-1979	Department of Political Science, Graduate School, University of
	Washington, Seattle, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1980-1981	Assistant Professor, The Institute of Foreign Affairs & National
	Security, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Korea
1981-2010	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, and Professor,
	Department of Political Science, Seoul National University
1990-1991	Visiting Lecturer, Department of Political Science, University of
	Pennsylvania, U.S.A.
1992-1995	Director, University Newspaper, Seoul National University
1995-1999	Director, The Institute of Korean Political Studies, Seoul
	National University
1999-2001	President, The Korean Association for Contemporary Japanese
	Studies
2002-2003	President, The Korean Political Science Association
2010-present	Professor Emeritus, Department of Political Science and
*	International Relations, Seoul National University
	-

Kim, Hong Woo, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 31, 1942
- *Elected Date* July 11, 2008
- Specialty Political Thought

1962-1966	Department	of	Pol.	Science,	College	of	Liberal	Arts	and
	Sciences, Sec	oul	Natio	nal Unive	ersitv (B.	A.)			

- 1967-1969 Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
- 1967-1970 Instructor, Air Force Academy. R.O.K.
- 1971-1972 Graduate School, University of Georgia, U.S.A. (M.A.)

1972-1975	Graduate School, University of Georgia, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1977-1981	Assistant Professor, Department of Political Science, Kyung Hee
	University
1981-2007	Professor, Department of Political Science, Seoul National
	University
1993	Visiting Fellow, Princeton University
1993-1994	Visiting Fellow, Notre Dame University
2006-2007	President, the Association for Korean and Asian Political Thoughts
2007-2018	Honorary Rector, Center for the Reconstruction of Human
	Society, Kyung Hee University

Shin, Yong-Ha, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 14, 1937
- Elected Date July 13, 2012
- Specialty Sociology

1961	College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University (B.A.)
1961-1964	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.A.)
1967-1968	Visiting Scholar, Harvard-Yenching Institute, Harvard University
1975	Graduate School, Seoul National University (Ph.D.)
1965-2003	Professor, Seoul National University
1980-1994	President, Korean Social History Association
1993-1994	President, Korean Sociological Association
1996-2004	Chairman, Dokdo Research and Conservation Association
1996-2017	Chairman, Dokdo Research Institute
1998-2000	Dean, College of Social Sciences, Seoul National University
2001-2003	Chairman, The Council of Professors, Seoul National University
2003-2007	Chair Professor, Hanyang University
2003-2009	Chairman, Korean Association of Territorial Studies
2003-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

2007-2010Distinguished Professor, Ewha Womans University2011-2018Chair Professor, Ulsan University

Lim, Hyun-Chin, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	April 26, 1949
• Elected Date	July 10, 2015
• Specialty	Political Sociology
1971	B.A. in Sociology, Seoul National University
1973	M.A. in Sociology, Seoul National University
1982	Ph. D. in Sociology, Harvard University
1983-2014	Assistant to Full Professor of Sociology, Seoul National University
1989-1990	Visiting Fellow, Center for Asian Studies, Chicago University,
	U.S.A.
1995	Fulbright Visiting Scholar, IRPS, UC, San Diego, U.S.A.
2001-2002	Visiting Professor of Sociology, Duke University, U.S.A.
2001	President, Korean Association of NGOs Studies
2004-2006	Dean, Faculty of Liberal Education, Seoul National University
2006-2010	Dean, College of Social Sciences, Seoul National University
2006	President, Korean Sociological Association
2008	President, International Development and Cooperation Association
2008-2014	Director, Asia Center, Seoul National University
2012-2015	Member, Executive Council, SASE
2012-2014	Visiting Lecturer, Vietnam National University, Hanoi, Vietnam
2014	Visiting Lecturer, Paris University, Diderot, France
2002-Present	Adjunct Professor, APSI, Duke University, U.S.A.
2011-2015	Co-Chair, Citizens' Coalition for Economic Justice
2013-2015	President, Korean Social Science Research Council
2014-Present	Professor Emeritus of Sociology, Seoul National University
2018-Present	Chairperson, Board of Directors, Academy of Korean Studies

Humanities & Social Sciences Division

• Subdivision VI

Lee, Hyun Jae, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 20, 1929
- Elected Date August 12, 1981
- Specialty Economics

1953	B.A. in Economics, Seoul National University
1961-1988	Professor of Economics, Seoul National University
1969	Ph.D. in Economics, Seoul National University
1971-1972	Visiting Professor, University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A.
1983-1985	President, Seoul National University
1983-1985	President, Korean Economic Association
1988	Prime Minister, Republic of Korea
1989-1992	Chairman, Presidential Commission on Education, R.O.K.
1989-1995	President, The Academy of Korean Studies
1995-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1996-2000	President, The National Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.
1996-2007	Chairman, Board of Trustees, Kookmin University
1997-present	Honorary Academy Member, Chinese Academy of Social
	Sciences
1997-2014	Chairman, The Ho-Am Foundation
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Liaoning University, China
2001-2005	Chairman, Board of Directors, The Academy of Korean Studies
2014-present	Honorary Member, The Japan Academy

Cho, Soon, Ph.D. in Econ.

- Date of Birth February 1, 1928
- Elected Date August 12, 1981
- *Specialty* Economics

1946-1949	College of Commerce (Commerce-Specialized Course), Seoul
	National University
1960	Bowdoin-College, U.S.A. (B.A. in Economics)
1961-1965	Graduate School, University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.
	(Ph.D. in Economics, 1967)
1965-1967	Assistant Professor, University of New Hampshire, U.S.A.
1968-1988	Professor, Seoul National University
1975-1980	Dean, College of Social Sciences, Seoul National University
1978-1980	President, Korea International Economic Association
1988-1990	Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Economic Planning
1992-1993	Governor, Bank of Korea
1994-1995	Professor (Chair), Ewha Womans University
1995-1997	Mayor, City of Seoul
2002-2007	President, Korea Institute of Classical Studies

Byun, Hyung Yoon, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 6, 1927
- *Elected Date* July 16, 1993
- *Specialty* Economics

1951	College of	Commerce,	Seoul Nationa	1 University
------	------------	-----------	---------------	--------------

- 1956-1992 Professor, Seoul National University
- 1963 Member, The Econometric Society

1964	Graduate School, Vanderbilt University, U.S.A.
1968	Ph.D. in Economics, Seoul National University
1970-1975	Dean, College of Commerce, Seoul National University
1986-1988	President, Korean Econometric Society
1989-1990	President, Korean Economic Association
1992-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1993-present	Chairman, Seoul Institute of Economic and Social Studies
1994-1995	President, Korean Economic Development Association
1996	Director, Pohang University of Sciences and Technology (POSTEC)
1996-2001	Chairman, Seoul Development Institute
1998-2000	Representative, The National Commission for Rebuilding Korea
1998-2001	Chairman, Hankuk University of Foreign Studies
2000-2003	Advisor, The National Commission for Rebuilding Korea
2004-2007	Chairman, SANGJI Foundation
2007-present	Chairman, Korean Economic Development Association

Kim, Dong Ki, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth June 28, 1934
- Elected Date July 11, 1997
- Specialty Business Administration (Marketing)

1958	Business Administration, Korea University (B.A.)
1963	Business Administration, New York University, U.S.A. (M.B.A)
1965-1999	Professor, College of Business Administration, Korea University
1971-1972	Harvard Business School (Diploma International Teachers Program)
1981	Eisenhower Fellow (Philadelphia, U.S.A)
1974	Graduate School, Korea University (Ph.D. in Management)
1981-84, 88-90	Dean, College of Business Administration, Korea University
1985-88	Dean, Graduate School of Business Administration, Korea University
1985	Advisor, Ministry of Trade & Industry, THAI Government

1985-1986	President, Korean Association of Business Administration
1987-1988	President, Korean Marketing Association
1988	"The Man of the Year" Award awarded by the 21st Century
	CEO's Club of Korea for Excellence in Management Education
1991-1996	Dean, Graduate School of International Studies, Korea University
1994-2006	Advisor, Federation of Korean Industries
1995-1999	Advisor, Korean International Trade Association
1996	Visiting Professor, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan
1997	The Academic Award of the Year awarded by Korea University
1997-present	Academic Advisor, Asia-Pacific University, affiliated with
	Ritsmeikan University, Beppu City, Japan
1998	"The Professor of the Year Award" awarded by Korea University
1998-2004	Chairman, Board of Directors, Hanaro Information &
	Telecommunication Company
1999-present	Professor Emeritus, Korea University
1999	Distinguished Professor, Choo-O University, Tokyo, Japan
2001-2010	Outside Director, Hyundai Motor Company
2005-2015	Chair Professor, Korea University
2005-2015	Teaching "Global Marketing Management" Course to Foreign
	Students at Graduate School of International Studies, Korea
	University
2008-2016	Editor-in-Chief, The Ko Woo Kyungjae (The Korea University
	Economic Journal), Korea University
2009-2011	Member, Management Rationalization Committee, The Korea
	National Red Cross
2009-2013	Advisor, Samchully Group
2011-2016	Outside Director, Iljin Group
2012-2016	Advisor, Iljin Group
2016-2018	Vice President, The National Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.
2018-present	President, The National Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.

Park, Kwang Soon, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth July 1, 1935
- Elected Date July 14, 2000
- Specialty Economics

1960	Graduated from Graduate School, Chonnam National University
1975	Ph.D. in Economics, Chonnam National University
1979-1980	President, Mokpo National University
1981-1982	Visiting Scholar, The University of Tokyo, Japan
1983	Awarded The Korea Economic Association Prize
1986-1987	Dean, Academic Affairs, Chonnam National University
1987	Awarded The Dasan Economics Prize
1988-1989	Professor, Saga University, Japan
1990-1998	Vice President and President, Korea Economic History Association
1992-1994	Dean, Graduate School, Chonnam National University
1997-2000	Vice Chairman, The Chonnam Committee for Expo 2010
2000	Awarded The Hwangjo Geunjong Decoration from President,
	R.O.K.
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Chonnam National University
2001-2002	Visiting Professor, Tohoku Gakuin University, Japan
2002-2006	Professor, Kurume University, Japan
2008-2014	Director, The Wang-In Research Institute
2010	Awarded The Honorable Yongbong Alumnus Prize, Chonnam
	National University

Yoon, Ki	i Jung, M.A.
• Date of Birth	December 19, 1931
• Elected Date	July 13, 2001
• Specialty	Economics
1956	Graduated from Department of Economics, Yonsei University
1956-1958	Studied at Graduate School, Yonsei University (Master's degree
	in Economics)
1961-1968	Assistant Professor, Hanyang University
1968-1997	Professor, Yonsei University
1977-1979	President, The Korean Statistical Association
1990-1992	Dean, College of Commerce and Economics, Yonsei University
1991-1992	President, The Korean Economic Association
1997-present	Professor Emeritus, Yonsei University
1999	Awarded Samil Cultural Prize

Kwak, Soo II, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	June	30,	1941
-----------------	------	-----	------

• Elected Date	July	13,	2001
----------------	------	-----	------

• Specialty Business Administration (Operations Management)

1963	Business Administration, Seoul National University (B.A.)
1965	Graduate School of Business, Columbia University, U.S.A. (MBA)
1966-2006	Professor, College of Business Administration, Seoul National
	University
1969	Graduate School of Business, Stanford University, U.S.A.
	(ICAME Fellow)
1974	Graduate School of Business, University of Washington, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)

1991-1992	President, Korea Operations Research & Management Science Society
1992	Award of Liberal Economy Publication
1992	Award of the Best Speaker, International Small Business Congress
1993-1994	President, The Korean Association of Small Business Studies
1993-1994	President, Korea Academy of Production & Operations Management
1993-1996	President, Korea Society of Management Information Systems
1993-1996	Member, Board of Directors, Korean Broadcasting System (KBS)
1994-1999	Chairman, National Computerization Agency
1995-1998	Member, Presidential Commission on Administrative Reforms
1997-1999	Dean, College of Business Administration, Seoul National University
1997-2002	President, Korea Cultural Economics Society
1997-2005	Chairman, Commission for Information and Communication
	Policy, Ministry of Information and Communication
1998	Order of Civil Merit Dongbaeg Medal, Republic of Korea
2005	Order of Service Merit Yellow Stripes, Republic of Korea
2006-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2007-present	Chairman, Hyunwoo Culture Foundation
2010	Sang-Nam Best Scholar Award, Korea Society of Business
	Administration
2015-2018	Chairman, Gangnam Welfare Foundation

Jeong, Ki-Jun, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 2, 1941
- Elected Date July 14, 2006
- Specialty Economics

1960-1964BE, Department of Economics, Seoul National University1964-1966ME, Department of Economics, Seoul Nationsal University1968-2006Instructor, Assistant Professor, through Professor. S.N.U.

1973-1976	Ph.D in Economics, Claremont Graduate University, U.S.A.
1985-1987	Chairman of the Economics Department, S.N.U.
1986-1989	Director General, The Korean Econometric Society
1987-1995	Member of the Standing Committee, FEM, Econometric Society
1989-1990	Director General, The Korean Economic Society
1989-1991	Co-Chair, The Far-Eastern Meetings of the Econometric Society
1991-1993	Director of the Institute of Economic Research, S.N.U.
1992-1994	President, The Korean Econometric Society
2004	Dasan Economics Award, Hangook Kyeongje Shinmun
2006-present	Professor Emeritus, S.N.U.
2016	Soodang Award, Soodang Foundation

Kim, Kee Young, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 7, 1937
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- Specialty Business Administration

1961	B.A. in Business Administration, Yonsei University
1966	M.S. in Business Administration, Yonsei University
1972	MBA, Washington University, St. Louis, U.S.A.
1975	Ph.D., Washington University, St. Louis, U.S.A.
1968-2003	Professor of Business Administration, Yonsei University, Korea
1981-1982	Visiting Professor, Center for Policy Alternatives, MIT, U.S.A.
1990-1991	President, The Korean Academy of Production and Operations
	Management
1991-1992	President, The Korean Academic Society of Business
	Administration
1991-1993	Dean, Graduate School of Business, Yonsei University, Korea

1993-1995	Visiting Editor, Special Issue of Decision Sciences Journal, U.S.A.
1993-1996	Vice President, Decision Sciences Institute, U.S.A.
1995-1996	President, The Korean OR/MS Society
1996-1998	Vice President, Yonsei University, Seoul Korea
1998-2004	Sangnam Chair Professor of Business Administration, Yonsei University
1998-present	Fellow, The Pan Pacific Business Association, U.S.A.
1999-present	Fellow, The Decision Sciences Institute, U.S.A.
2002	The 20th Chung Jin Ki Journalism and Culture Prize (Management
	Publication), the Maeil Business Newspaper, Korea
2003-present	Professor Emeritus of Yonsei University, Korea
2003	The Government Whangjo Merit Medal, Republic of Korea
2004	The Sangnam Distinguished Professor of Business
	Administration Prize. Korean Academic Society of Business
	Administration.
2004-2016	Affiliate Professor of Operations Management, University of
	Washington, U.S.A.
2005-present	Honorary Founding President, The Asia Pacific D. S. I. U.S.A.
2008-2009	Visiting Research Associate, The Korea Economic Research
	Institution
2009-2013	President, Kwangwoon University, Seoul, Korea
2012-present	Chairman, The Samil Foundation, Korea
2016-present	Chair Professor, Yongin University, Korea

Yoo, Jang-Hee, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 11, 1941
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- Specialty Economics
- 1972-1976 Professor of Economics, Clark University, U.S.A.
| 1976-1988 | Professor of Economics, Virginia Commonwealth University (tenured), U.S.A. |
|--------------|--|
| 1985-1986 | Visiting Professor of Economics, Seoul National University |
| 1991-1997 | President, Korea Institute for International Economic Policy
(KIEP) |
| 1988-2006 | President, APEC Studies Association of Korea |
| 1988-present | Executive Editor, Journal of Asian Economics and Board
Member, American Committee on Asian Economic Studies |
| 1992-1997 | Member of Presidential Council on Science and Technology |
| 1993-1995 | Member of Eminent Persons Group, APEC |
| 1994-1996 | President, Korea Association of Negotiation Studies |
| 1997-2004 | Dean, Graduate School of International Studies, Ewha Womans |
| | University |
| 1999-2000 | Chairman, APEC Knowledge-Based Economy Task Force |
| 2000-2002 | Chairman, Advisory Committee, Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade |
| 2001-2002 | President, Korean International Economic Association |
| 2001-2012 | Chairman, Policy Evaluation Committee, Ministry of Foreign |
| | Affairs and Trade |
| 2003-2004 | President, Korean Economic Association |
| 2004-2006 | Vice President, Ewha Womans University |
| 2004-2008 | Chairman, the Advisory Council of National Assembly Budget
Office, National Assembly |
| 2009-2011 | President, East Asian Economic Association, Japan |
| 2010-2011 | Vice Chairman, National Economic Advisory Council, Presidential
Office |
| 2010-2017 | Chairman, BBB Korea |
| 2012-2014 | Chairman, National Commission for Corporate Partnership (NCCP) |
| 2016-2018 | Director, Division of the Humanities and Social Sciences,
National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea |
| 2006-present | Emeritus Professor, Ewha Womans University |
| 2014-present | Executive Advisor, Maeil Media Group |

Rhee, Hak-Yong, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 5, 1935
- *Elected Date* July 10, 2009
- Specialty Economics

1955-1957	Seoul National Univ., Dept. of Educational Administration
1959-1964	The Univ. of Oregon, Dept. of Economics (B.S. and M.A.), U.S.A.
1969-1972	The Univ. of Kansas, Dept. of Economics (Ph.D.), U.S.A.
1972-1973	Assistant Professor, Washington University (St. Louis), U.S.A.
1973-1975	Senior Fellow and Visiting Fellow, Korea Dev. Institute (KDI)
1974-1977	Assistant and Associate Professor, Yonsei University
1978-2000	Professor of Economics, Korea University
1983-1984	Fulbright Visiting Prof. Univ. of Southern California, U.S.A.
1985-1987	Dean of General Affairs, Korea University
1987-1990	Director of Economic Research Institute, Korea University
1991	President, Korea International Economic Association
1995-1996	Visiting Professor, Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan
1996-1998	Dean, Graduate School of International Studies, Korea Univ.
1998	President, Korean Economic Association
2000-2002	Chair Professor, Sejong University
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Korea University
2005-2006	Visiting Prof., Joint Japan-World Bank Program, Tsukuba Univ.,
	Japan

Lee, Jisoon, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth September 15, 1949
- Elected Date July 11, 2014
- Specialty Macroeconomics

1968-1972	B.A. in Commerce, Seoul National University(SNU)
1972-1975	Military Services, Army, Republic of Korea
1976-1977	Economist, Bank of Korea
1977-1979	M.A.('81) in Economics, State University of New York at Stony
	Brook, U.S.A.
1979-1983	Ph.D.('84) in Economics, University of Chicago, U.S.A.
1983-1985	Assistant Professor, Brown University, U.S.A.
1985-2015	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, and Professor, SNU
1988-1989	Visiting Fellow, University of Chicago, U.S.A.
1990-1992	Chairman, Department of International Economics, SNU
1992-1999	Co-editor & Editor, Seoul Journal of Economics
1994-1996	Long-term Consultant, World Bank Institute, U.S.A.
2000-2001	Short-term Consultant, World Bank Institute, U.S.A.
2002-2003	President, Korean Econometric Society
2002-2004	Head, School of Economics, SNU
2005-2006	Senior Visiting Fellow, Asia Development Bank Institute
2006-2007	President, Korea Money & Finance Association
2012-2015	Member, (Presidential) Committee on Green Growth
2015-2016	President, Korea Economic Association
2015-present	Professor Emeritus, SNU



Subdivision I

Chang, Sei Hun, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 18, 1923
- Elected Date August 12, 1981
- *Specialty* Chemistry

1946	Graduated from Faculty of Chemistry, Kyungsung University
1954-1956	Associate Professor, Seoul National University
1956-1989	Professor, Seoul National University
1958-1960	Graduate School, University of Utah, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1980-1982	President, Korean Chemical Society
1989-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Ahn, Se Hee, Ph.D., D.Sc., LL.D.

- Date of Birth April 22, 1928
- Elected Date July 11, 1997
- Specialty Nuclear Physics

- 1951-1955 Instructor, Korean Air Force Academy
- 1953-1954 Graduate School, Yonsei University (M.S.)
- 1955-1959 Graduate School, Northwestern University, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
- 1959-1962 Associate Professor, Yonsei University
- 1962-1993 Professor, Yonsei University

1968-1969	Visiting Professor, Southern Illinois University, U.S.A.
1973-1975	Dean, Graduate School, Yonsei University
1975-1980	Vice-President, Yonsei University
1980-1988	President, Yonsei University
1981-1983	President, Korean Nuclear Society
1983	D.Sc.(honorary), Korea University
1984	D.Sc.(honorary), National Central University, Taiwan
1986	D.Sc.(honorary), Boston University, U.S.A.
1989-1991	President, Korean Physical Society
1990	LL.D.(honorary), Yonsei University
1993	Awarded the Order of Civil Merit of Mugungwha Medal
1993-present	Professor Emeritus, Yonsei University
1994-1999	Consultant, Daewoo Foundation
1994-2014	Chairman, Chambich Scholarship Foundation
1999-2003	Board Member, Asian Pacific Center for Theoretical Physics

Rho, Chae Shik, D.I.C., D.Sc.

- Date of Birth December. 2, 1930
- Elected Date July 11, 1997
- Specialty Atmospheric Science

1949-1957	College of Liberal Arts & Sciences, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1959-1960	Graduate School, Imperial College of Science & Technology,
	University of London (D.I.C.), U.K.
1960-1981	Director, Health Physics Division ('60-'73), and General
	Manager, Environment Department ('73-'81), Korea Atomic
	Energy Research Institute
1966-1967	Graduate School, Seoul National University (D.Sc.)
1968	Visiting Scientist, Norwegian Institute for Atomic Energy,

	Kjeller, Norway
1976-1988	Founding Chairman, Korea Environmental Affairs Forum
	(Currently Seoul Eco Club)
1978-1980	President, Korean Meteorological Society (Honorary President, '99)
1979-2003	Vice-Chairman, Environmental Preservation Assoc.
1981-1983	President, Korean Association for Radiation Protection
1981-1992	Senior Advisor, Korea Institute of Nuclear Safety
1989-1992	President, Korean Society for Atmospheric Environment
	(Advisor, '96)
1990	Laureate of Global 500 Award, UNEP
1991-1993	Chairman, Korea Research Council on Environmental Sciences
1992-1994	Founding President, Korea Environmental Technology
	Research Institute (Currently Korea Environment Institute)
1993-1995	Member, Presidential Council on Science & Technology
1995-present	Member, Korean National Committee for IGBP and
	Chairman of TEACOM of International START ('95-'99)
1997-2000	Invited Professor, Pusan National University
1999-present	Co-Representative, The Forest for Peace (1999-2009), Inc., and
	Honorary Advisor, The Forest for Life, the Northeast Asia Forest
	Forum, the Mature Society, and the National Trust of Korea
2008	Winner, the Asian Environmental Awards

Koh, Yoon Suk, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 13, 1927
- *Elected Date* July 10, 1998
- Specialty Physics, Theoretical Nuclear
- 1954 College of Liberal Arts & Sciences, Seoul National University (B.S. in Physics)
- 1954-1957 Lecturer, Chonnam National University

1959	University of Nebraska, U.S.A. (M.S. in Physics)
1963	University of Nebraska, U.S.A. (Ph.D. in Physics)
1963-1964	Assistant Professor of Physics, North Dakoda State University, U.S.A.
1965-1992	Assi. Prof., Professor, Seoul National University
1978-1979	Visiting Professor, University of Kansas, U.S.A.
1979-1983	Dean, College of Natural Sciences, Seoul National University
1983-1985	Vice-President, Seoul National University
1987-1989	President, Korean Physical Society
1989	Awarded the R.O.K. Presidential Science Prize
1992-1993	Visiting Professor, Lehigh University, U.S.A.
1992-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1995	Awarded Songok Science & Culture Prize
2002-2011	President, Won Institute of Graduate Studies, Pennsylvania,
	U.S.A
2011-present	President Emeritus, Won Institute of Graduate Studies
	Pennsylvania, U.S.A.

Park, Sehie, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth November 28, 1935
- Elected Date July 13, 2001
- Specialty Mathematics

1959	Seoul National University (B.S.)
1961	Seoul National University (M.S.)
1963-1975	Assistant, Instructor, Assistant Professor, Seoul National University
1970-1971	Head, Department of Mathematics, Seoul National University
1975	Indiana University, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1976-1981	Associate Professor, College of Natural Sciences, Seoul National
	University
1979-1980	Research Associate, Univ. of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.

1980-1992	Director, Mathematical Sciences Research Institute of Korea
1981	Cultural Prize, Seoul Metropolitan Government
1981-2001	Professor, College of Natural Sciences, Seoul National University
1982-1984	President, Korean Mathematical Society
1982-1984	Chairman, National Committee of I.M.U.
1986	Academic Award, K.M.S.
1987	Awarded the Order of Civil Merit of Dongbaeg Medal
1992-1993	Visiting Professor, Indiana University, U.S.A.
1994	Awarded the National Academy of Sciences Prize, R.O.K.
1996-2001	Honorary Professor, Univ. of Yanbian, China
2001-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Kwun, Sook-II, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth • Elected Date • Specialty	July 29, 1935 July 12, 2002 Condensed Matter Physics
1954-1960	Seoul National University (B.S. and M.S.)
1961-1965	University of Utah, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1965-1966	Research Associate, Univ. of Chicago, U.S.A.
1966-2000	Assistant, Associate and Professor, Seoul National University
1973-1974	Visiting Professor, CNRS in Paris, France
1978-1979	Visiting Professor, University of Southern California, U.S.A.
1989-1991	Dean of Research Affairs, Seoul National University
1991-1993	Dean, College of Natural Sciences, Seoul National University
1992-1997	Chairman, Korea-Japan Joint Committee for Basic Science
1994-present	Research, KOSEF Member('94~'05), Fellow('95~'05), Fellow Emeritus('05~), The Korean Academy of Science and Technology

1995-1997	President, Korean Physical Society
1996-1997	Vice President, Korea Federation of Science and Technology Society
1997-1998	Minister, Ministry of Science and Technology
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2002-present	Chair Professor, Myongji University
2002-present	Member, The National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea
2013-2014	Vice-president, The National Academy of Sciences, Republic of
	Korea
2014-2018	President, The National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea

Ki, U-Hang, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 2, 1936
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2002
- Specialty Mathematics, Differential Geometry
- 1957-1964 Kyungpook National University (B.S. and M.A.)
- 1967-1978 Instructor, Assistant and Associate Professor, Kyungpook National University
- 1972 Tokyo Institute of Technology (D.Sc.)
- 1978-2001 Professor and Dean of the Basic Integrated Science Institute, Kyungpook National University
- 1990-1999 Director of Topology and Geometry Research Center (TGRC-KOSEF)
- 1996-present Fellow of the Korean National Academy of Science and Technology
- 1997 Awarded the National Prize of the Sciences, Mathematics
- 2001 Awarded The Hwangjo Geunjong Decoration from President, R.O.K.
- 2001-present Professor Emeritus, Kyungpook National University

Kim, Yong Hae, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth July 27, 1939
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- Specialty Organic Chemistry

1964	B.S. Organic Synthesis, Okayama University
1966	M.S. Organic Chemistry, University of Osaka City, Japan
1969	Ph.D. Organic Chemistry, University of Osaka City, Japan
1969-1971	Postdoctoral Fellow, Vanderbilt University, U.S.A.
1971-1974	NIH Fellow, Stanford University, U.S.A.
1975-1978	Visiting Associate Professor, Tsukuba University, Tsukuba, Japan
1978-1979	Visiting Scholar, Stanford University, U.S.A.
1979-1980	Associate Professor, KAIST
1981-2004	Professor, KAIST
1984-1985	Guest Scientist, National Institute of Health, Bethesda, U.S.A.
1992	Invited Lecture-ship Professor, Strasbourg University, Strasbourg,
	France
1994	Life Member, The Korean Federation of Science and Technology
	Societies
1996-1996	Invited CNRS Professor, Paris University (IV), Paris, France
2000	Grand Sang-Hur Prize in Science Field
2001	Samil Culture Academic Prize in Science Field
2002-2004	KAIST Distinguished Professor
2003	Grand Academic Award of KAIST
2004	President Award (Hyuksin Award in Science)
2005	KAIST Emeritus Distinguished Professor
2007	
2007	Fellow, Korean National Academy of Sciences

Lee, Eun, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth August 20, 1946
- Elected Date July 9, 2010
- Specialty Organic Chemistry

1965-1969	B.S., Chemistry, Seoul National University
1969-1974	Ph.D., Chemistry, Yale University, U.S.A.
1974-1975	Research Fellow, Chemistry, Columbia University, U.S.A.
1975-1977	Research Fellow, Zoecon Corporation
1977-2011	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Professor, Chemistry,
	Seoul National University
1977-present	Member, The Korean Chemical Society
1979-present	Member, The American Chemical Society
1985-1986	Visiting Professor, Dyson Perrins Laboratory, University of
	Oxford, U.K.
1990-2017	Fellow, The Royal Society of Chemistry, U.K.
1995	The Korean Chemical Society Award
1996	Secretary General, The Korean Chemical Society
1996-1998	Chairman, Chemistry, Seoul National University
1997	Korea Science Award
2003-present	Member, Board of Consulting Editors, Tetrahedron &
	Tetrahedron Letters
2006	President, The Korean Chemical Society
2006	President, the 38th International Chemistry Olympiad
2006-2013	Member, International Advisory Board, Chemistry, An Asian Journal
2008	Co-Chair, the 17th International Conference on Organic
	Synthesis
2008-2010	Member, Advisory Board, Organic Letters
2011-2014	Distinguished Professor, Hanyang University
2012-present	Member, Honorary Board, Asian Journal of Organic Chemistry

Choh, Sung Ho, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth November 7, 1935
- *Elected Date* July 8, 2011
- Specialty Condensed-matter Physics

1954-1958	College of Liberal Arts & Sciences, Seoul Nat. Univ. (B.S.)
1958-1960	Graduate School, Seoul Nat. Univ. (M.S.)
1958-1961	Research Member, Research Institute of National Defense
1961-1963	Instructor, Physics Dept. College of SciEng. Yonsei Univ.
1963-1968	Graduate School, Phys. Dept. Brown University, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1961-present	Member, Fellow(72-), Vice-President & Editor-in-Chief(89-93),
	Board of Trustees (93-97), The Korean Physical Society
1966-present	Member, The American Physical Society, U.S.A.
1968-1971	Post-doc. Fellow, Phys. Dept. McMaster University, Canada
1970-2000	Member, The Association of Canadian Physicists, Canada,
1971-2001	Associate Professor, Professor(74-01), Korea University
1979-1980	Visiting Scientist, Clarendon Laboratory, Oxford University, U.K.
1980-present	Member, Fellow(97-), The Institute of Physics, U.K.
1987-1988	Visiting Professor, Physics Dept. Brown University, U.S.A.
1990	Samil Cultural Academic Award
1992-1994	Dean, College of Science, Korea University
1994-present	Member, Fellow(95-05), Emeritus(05-), The Korean Academy
	of Science and Technology
1996-1997	Visiting Professor, Physics Dept. Monash University, Australia
1996-present	Memb. President(00-02), The Korean Magn. Reson. Society
2000	Sungbong Physics Award, The Korean Physical Society
2001-present	Professor Emeritus, Korea University
2004	The National Academy of Sciences (Rep. of Korea) Award

Lee, Ho-In, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth May 17, 1947
- Elected Date July 11, 2014
- Specialty Applied Chemistry

1966-1972	Seoul National University (B.S. and M.S.)
1974-1979	The University of Texas at Austin, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1972-1974	Lecturer, Korea Military Academy
1979-1979	Research Associate, The University of Texas at Austin, U.S.A.
1980-2012	Assistant, Associate and Full Professor, Seoul National University
1994-1997	Associate Dean, College of Engineering, Seoul National University
1997-1998	President, Alumni Association of The University of Texas at Austin in Korea
1999-2000	Head, Research Institute for Environment and Safety, Seoul National University
2001-2013	Member, National Academy of Engineering of Korea
2002-2006	President, Korean Association of Photocatalysis Research
2003-2003	President, Korean Society of Industrial and Engineering
	Chemistry
2004-2006	Vice President, Seoul National University
2008-2008	President, Korean Union of Chemical Science and Technology Societies
2011-2014	Chairman, Chief Evaluation and Selection Committee of Brain Pool Program, KOFST
2012-2015	Trustee, Korea Institute for Shared Growth
2012-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2013-2015	Chairman, Steering Committee of "Hanji"(Korean Traditional Paper) Festival of Jeonju City
2013-present	Senior Member, National Academy of Engineering of Korea
2013-present	President, Jeonju University
2013-present 2014-2016	Chairman, Jeonbuk Council of Committee Members for
2014-2010	Unification Education, Ministry of Unification
2014-2016	Chairman, Audience Committee of Jeonju MBC

2014-2016	Vice Chairman, Korean Association of Private University Presidents
2014-present	Member, The National Academy of Sciences, ROK
2014-present	Trustee, National Polytechnic Institute of Cambodia
2014-present	Trustee, School Foundation of Sindongah
2018-present	Vice Chairman, Korean Association of Private University
	Presidents
2018-present	Vice Chairman, Korean Council for University Education
2019-present	Chairman, Audience Committee of Jeonju KBS

Kim, Dohan, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth May 15, 1950
- Elected Date July 22, 2016
- Specialty Mathematics

1968-1972	Seoul National University (B.S. in Electronics Engineering)
1972-1974	Seoul National University (M.S. in Mathematics)
1975-1981	Rutgers University. U.S.A. (Ph.D. in Mathematics)
1982-2015	Assistant, Associate and Full Professor, Seoul National University
2003-2005	Chairman, Department of Mathematics, Seoul National University
1999-2006	(Deputy) Director, BK21 Mathematical Science Division, Seoul
	National University
2007-present	Member, Korean Academy of Science and Technology
2016-2018	Division Chair, Division of Natural Sciences, Korean Academy
	of Science and Technology
1991-1992	Secretary, Korean Mathematical Society
1993-1994	Editor, Korean Mathematical Society
2005-2006	Vice President, Korean Mathematical Society
2007-2010	President, Korean Mathematical Society
2009	President, Federation of Korean Mathematical, Society, Korean
	Physical Society and Korean Chemical Society

2012-2013Chair, Organizing Committee, Asian Mathematical Conference 20132012-2014Chair, Advisory Committee, Seoul ICM 2014

Park, Sung Hyun, Ph.D.

 Date of Birth January 26, 1945 Elected Date July 14, 2017 Specialty Statistics 1964-1968 Seoul National University (B.S.) 1968-1970 R.O.T.C. Officer, Republic of Korea Army 1970-1972 North Carolina State University at Raleigh, U.S.A. (M.S.) 1972-1975 North Carolina State University at Raleigh, U.S.A. (Ph.D.) 1975-1977 Assistant Professor, Mississippi State University, U.S.A. 1977-2010 Assistant, Associate and Full Professor, Seoul National University 1995-1997 President, Korean Statistical Society 1995-1997 Director, The Research Institute for Basic Sciences, Seoul National University 1997-1998 Dean, Office of Student Affairs, Seoul National University 1999-2001 President, Korean Society for Quality Management 2000-2002 Dean, College of Natural Sciences, Seoul National University 2005-2007 Vice President, International Society for Business and Industrial Statistics 2005-2007 Chairman, Faculty Senate of Seoul National University 2007-present Academician of International Academy for Quality 2010-present Emeritus Professor, Seoul National University 2010-present Fellow, American Statistical Association 2010-2012 Director, Directorate for Basic Research in Science and Engineering, National Research Foundation of Korea 2011-2013 President, The Sustainability Science Society 2012-present Fellow, American Society for Quality

2012-2015	Chair Professor, Konkuk University
2013-2016	President, Korean Academy of Science and Technology
2013-2015	Member, Presidential Advisory Council of Science and
	Technology, Korea
2013-2017	Member, National Unification Advisory Council
2014-present	International Advisory Board Member, Tianjin University, China
2016-present	President, Social Responsibility and Management Quality Institute

Kim, Jihn Eui, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth July 30, 1946
- Elected Date July 14, 2017
- Specialty Particle physics

1971	Seoul National University(SNU) (B. Eng.)
1975	University of Rochester (Ph.D)
1775	Oniversity of Rochester (111.D)
1975-1977	Research Associate, Brown University
1977-1980	Research Investigator, University of Pennsylvania
1980-2011	From Assistant Professor to Professor, SNU
1994-Present	Lifetime member of Korean Academy of Science and Technology
1995-1997	Dean of Research Affairs, SNU
1983-1984	Paid Associate, CERN
1987-1988	Visiting Associate Professor, University of Michigan
1997-1998	Visiting Scientist, Harvard University
1998-1999	Professor, Korea Institute for Advanced Study
2002-2003	Visiting Professor, University of Bonn
2011-2013	Chair Professor, Gwangju Inst. Science & Technology
2011-Present	Professor Emeritus, SNU
2013-Present	Eminent Professor, Kyung Hee University

Choy, Jin-Ho, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth September 1, 1948 • Elected Date July 13, 2018 Specialty Inorganic Chemistry 1966-1970 Department of Chemical Engineering, Yonsei University, Korea (B.S.) 1970-1972 Department of Chemical Engineering, Yonsei University, Korea (M.S.) 1974-1975 UNESCO Post-Graduate Course in Chemistry and Chemical Engineering, Tokyo Institute of Technology, Japan (Diploma) 1976-1979 Chemistry (Dr. rer. nat.), Institute fuer Anorganische Chemie, Universitaet Muenchen, Germany (Ph.D.) 1979-1981 Post-Doctoral Fellow (DMFT Fellow), Institute fuer Anorganische Chemie, Universitaet Muenchen, Germany 1981 Post-Doctoral Fellow (EC Fellow), Inorganic Chemistry Laboratory, University of Oxford, Great Britain 1981-2004 Assistant, Associate and Full Professor, Department of Chemistry, Seoul National University, Korea 1985-1986 Visiting Professor, Laboratoire de Chimie du Solide du CNRS, Universit de Bordeaux I, France Apr. 1997 Academic Award, Korean Chemical Society 1997-2018 Regular Member, Korean Academy of Sciences & Technology (KAST) 7th National Science Award in Chemistry, President of Republic Mar. 2000 of Korea Oct. 2003 A Medal, Chevalier dans l'Order des Palmes Academique, Premier Ministre of the Republique Francaise 2004-2019 Distinguished Professor, Department of Chemistry and Nanoscience, Ewha Womans University, Korea 2005-2019 Director, Center for Intelligent Nano-Bio Materials, Ewha Womans University, Korea

Apr. 2006	1 st Class National Science Medal (ChangJo-Jang), President of
	Republic of Korea
Apr. 2007	Korea Best Scientist Award, President of Republic of Korea
Aug. 2007	A Role Model Award in Science, The Ministry of Korea Science and Technology, Korea
Mar. 2008	Award of Fellow (FRSC), Royal Society of Chemistry, UK
Dec. 2010	Culture Award in Natural Science, Mayor of Seoul City, Korea
May. 2012	EWHA Academy Award, Ewha Womans University, Korea
2012-2014	Executive Vice-President, Ewha Womans University, Seoul,
	Korea
2013-2015	Honorary Professor, Australian Institute for Bioengineering and
	Nanotechnology, The University of Queensland, Australia
Feb. 2014	Achievement Award, The Ministry of Science, ICT and Future
	Plannig, Korea
Nov. 2015	Sung-Ok Academic Award, Korean Ceramic Society, Korea
2014, 2016	European Research Council (ERC) Consolidator Grants
	Evaluation Committee Member, Belgium
July 2017	Academician (Professional Member), Science, World Academy of Ceramics, Italy
2018-Present	Fellow Emeritus, Korean Academy of Sciences & Technology (KAST)
2019-Present	Chair Professor, Dankook University, Korea
2019-Present	Specially Appointed Professor, Tokyo Institute of Technology (TIT)





● Subdivision Ⅱ

Cheong, Chang Hi, D.Sc.

- Date of Birth October 11, 1920
- Elected Date April 25, 1960
- Specialty Geology

1944	Graduated from the Department of Geology & Mineralogy,
	Hokkaido Imperial University, Japan
1952-1986	Assistant Professor~Professor, Seoul National University
1960-1962	Chief, Faculty of Sciences, College of Liberal Arts and Sciences,
	Seoul National University
1968	D.Sc. Hokkaido University, Japan
1974-1976	President, Geological Society of Korea
1977	Invited Professor, Dept. of Palaeobiology, Smithsonian
	Institution, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.
1978	Awarded the National Academy of Sciences Prize, R.O.K.
1987-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2014	Conferred the Order of Civil Merit of "Mugungwha" in
	commemoration of 60th anniversary of the NAS.

🕆 Lee, Sang Man, Ph.D

- Date of Birth February 11, 1926
- Elected Date November 8, 1988
- Specialty Geology (Petrology)

1950	Graduated from College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University
1955-1957	Studied at Michigan Technological University, U.S.A. (M.S.)
1958-1962	Studied at McGill University, Canada (Ph.D.)
1963-1964	Associate Professor, Yonsei University
1964-1991	Professor, Seoul National University
1972-1992	Chairman, National Committee, IUGS
1974-1975	Visiting Professor, Southern Methodist University, U.S.A.
1974-1986	Chairman, Metamorphic Facies Map of South and East Asia,
	CGMW, UNESCO
1985-1986	President, Geological Society of Korea
1985-1989	Director, Research Institute for Basic Sciences, Seoul National
	University
1989-1990	Dean, College of Natural Sciences, Seoul National University
1991-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1992-1993	President, The Petrological Society of Korea
2000-present	Honorary President, The Petrological Society of Korea

Kim, Soo Jin, Ph.D., Dr. rer. nat.

- Date of Birth January 15, 1939
- Elected Date July 8, 1994
- Specialty Geology (Mineralogy)

1957-1961	College of Liberal Arts and Sciences, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1961-1963	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
10((1071	Creative to Cale and Consul National University (Db D)

- 1966-1971 Graduate School, Seoul National University (Ph.D.)
- 1966-1968 Instructor, Assistant Professor, Inha University
- 1972-1974 Heidelberg University, Germany (Dr. rer.nat.)
- 1968-2004 Professor, Seoul National University

1976	Awarded the National Academy of Sciences Prize, R.O.K.
1978	Research Fellow, Harvard University, U.S.A.
1978-1979	Visiting Professor. The University of Chicago, U.S.A.
1979-1983	Member, Research and Development Committee, Korea Science
	and Engineering Foundation
1986-1994	President, Mineralogical Society of Korea
1989-1981	Policy Advisor to Prime Minister, R.O.K.
1990-1992	Director, Research Institute of Mineral Sciences, Seoul National
	University
1991-1994	Councillor, Korea Institute of Geology, Mining and Materials
	(KIGAM)
1991-1999	Councillor, Korea Mining Promotion Corporation
1994-1998	Vice-Chairman, Council, KIGAM
1995-2005	Member, Cultural Property Committee, Cultural Properties
	Administration, R.O.K.
2012-2014	Director, Natural Sciences Division, the National Academy of
	Sciences, R.O.K.

Lee, Jeong Woo, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth November 17, 1937
- *Elected Date* July 12, 1996
- *Specialty* Home Economics

1959	Graduated from Department of Home Economics Education, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1967-1969	Studied at Graduate School, Simmons College, Mass., U.S.A.
1969-1973	Instructor, Seoul National University and Korea University
1973-1975	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1973-2003	Professor, Sookmyung Women's University
1976-1980	Graduate School, Sookmyung Women's University (Ph.D.)
1980-present	Member of Non-standing Executive Council, Korean Home

	Economics Association
1983-1985	President, Korean Home Management Association
1986-present	Councillor, Korean Home Management Association
1988-1992	Dean, College of Home Economics, Sookmyung Women's University
1996-1998	President, Korean Family Resource Management Association.
1998-2002	Dean, Graduate School, Sookmyung Women's University
1998-present	Councillor, Korean Family Resource Management Association.
2001-2004	Member, The Advisory Council on Democratic and Peaceful
	Unification
2001-2006	Councillor, Korean Family Life Improvement Center (KFLIC)
2003-present	Professor Emeritus, Sookmyung Women's University

Park, Sang-Dai, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	August 20, 1937
• Elected Date	July 12, 2002
• Specialty	Molecular Cell Biology
1960	College of Liberal Arts & Sciences, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1962	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1967-2002	Professor, Seoul National University (SNU)
1974	Graduate School, St. John's University, New York, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1977-1978	Visiting Professor, University of California, San Francisco, U.S.A.
1984-1986	Chairman, Interdisciplinary Graduate Program for Molecular
	Biology
1985-1989	Director, The Institute for Molecular Biology & Genetics, SNU
1985-1998	Chairman, The Evaluation and Funding Committee for the
	Genetic Engineering Research, Ministry of Education, R.O.K.
1985-1998	Organizer, International Symposium on Molecular Biology &
	Genetic Engineering(1st~7th), MOE, KSMCB
1988-1990	President, The Genetic Society of Korea
1991-1992	President, The Korean Society for Molecular & Cellular Biology

1991-1995	Dean of Research Affairs, Seoul National University
1994-1997	Vice-President, Asian Federation of Toxicological Sciences
1995-1999	Chairman, Planning and Support Committee for International
	Vaccine Institute, SNU/MOE
1996-present	Fellow, The Korean Academy of Science & Technology (KAST)
2000-2001	President, The Korean Association of Biological Sciences
2001-2011	Special Advisor, The International Vaccine Institute
2002-present	Member, The National Academy of Sciences (NAS), R.O.K.,
2002-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2003-2006	Chairman, The Korea Research Council of Fundamental Science
	& Technology, Prime Minister's Office, R.O.K.
2006-present	Fellow, The Third World Academy of Sciences (TWAS)
2011-2014	President, The Korean Federation of Science & Technology Societies
2013-present	Chief Advisor, The Korean Support Committee for International
	Vaccine Institute
2013-2014	Vice-Chair, Presidential Advisory Council on Science &
	Technology (PACST), R.O.K.
2016-present	Vice-President, Pacific Science Association (PSA)
2018-present	Vice-President, The National Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.

Maeng, Won Jai, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 6, 1939
- Elected Date July 29, 2005
- Specialty Nutrition

1965	B.S. in Animal Science, Konkuk University
1971	M.Sc., University of Guelph, Ontario, Canada
1975	Ph.D., University of California, Davis, U.S.A.
1975-1976	Research Associate, Dept. of Dairy Science, Univ. of Illinois, U.S.A.
1976-1984	Assistant & Associate Professor, Chung-Ang University

1984-2004	Professor, Dept. of Animal Feeds & Nutrition, Konkuk University
1990-1993	Dean, College of Animal Husbandry, Konkuk University
1991-1993	President, Korean Society of Animal Nutrition & Feedstuffs
1993-1994	Dean, Graduate School of Agriculture & Animal Science,
	Konkuk University
1994-present	Fellow, the Korean Academy of Science & Technology
1996-2000	President, Korean Society of Rumen Function Studies
1997-1998	Visiting Professor, University of California, Davis, U.S.A.
1998-2002	President, Konkuk University
1999-2003	Member, the Advisory Council on Democratic & Peaceful
	Unification
2004-present	President, Nutrition Bank Research Institute
2010-2011	Chairman, Board of Trustees, Dongduk Women's Educational
	Foundation
2010-present	Professor Emeritus, Konkuk University
2011-present	Chair Professor, Konkuk University

Lim, Burn Jang, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 23, 1941
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- Specialty Sport Science

1964	College of Education, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1968	Graduate school, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1976	Graduate school, George Williams College (M.S.), U.S.A.
1986	Graduate school, Han-Yang University (Ph.D.)
1969-2006	Professor, Seoul National University
1982-1984	Director, The Research Institute of Physical Education, Seoul
	National University
1989-1994	Executive board member, The Korea Olympic Committee

1990-1997	President, The Korean Society for the Sociology of Sport
1991-1995	Vice President, The International Sociology of Sport Association
1992-1996	President, The Korean Society of School Sport
1997-1999	President, The Korean Alliance for Health, Physical Education,
	Recreation and Dance
2000-2001	Visiting Professor, University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.
2001-2002	Chairman, The Sports Forum 21C
2002-2005	President, The Korea Institute of Sport Science
2005-2008	Vice President, Korea Sport Council
2007-2010	Chairman, Korea Foundation for the Next Generation Sports Talent
2011-2013	Chair Professor, Dankook University
2006-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2011-present	Honorary Member, The International Sociology of Sport Association
2012-present	Adviser, Asian TaeKwonDo Federation
2015-present	Adviser, Korean Sport and Olympic Committee

Chang, Ho Wan, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 7, 1943
- Elected Date July 8, 2011
- Specialty Geochemistry

1969	Seoul National University (SNU), B.S. in Geology
1979	Louvain Catholic University, Ph.D. in Geological & Mineralogical
	Sciences, Belgium
1982-2008	Professor, School of Earth and Environ. Sciences, SNU
1995-1999	Dean, College of Natural Sciences, SNU
1996-1999	Member, Policy Council of Basic Sciences, Ministry of Science
	and Technology
1997-1998	Advisor to the Educational Reformation Committee, Ministry
	of Education
2000-2002	President, The Geological Society of Korea

2003-2006	Commissioner, The Korean Nuclear Commission
2004-present	Fellow, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology
2005-2011	Vice-President, The Korean Federation of Science and
	Technology Societies
2008-2011	President, Korea Institute of Geoscience and Mineral Resources
2011-2017	Member, Scientific Advisory Board of The Institute for Basic
	Science
2013-2016	Member, Board of Trustees, The Korean Academy of Science
	and Technology
2008-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Kim, Sang-Gu, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth May 27, 1946

• Elected Date	July 13, 2012
• Specialty	Biology (Plant Molecular Genetics)
1967-1974	Seoul National University, B.S. in Botany
1974-1976	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1977-1981	Graduate School, Oregon State University (Ph.D.)
1981-2011	Professor, Seoul National University
1986-1987	Visiting Professor, University of California, Davis, U.S.A.
1995-1997	Vice-Dean of Faculty Affairs, College of Natural Sciences, Seoul
	National University
1999-2000	Director, The Institute for Molecular Biology & Genetics, Seoul
	National University
1999-2006	Director, BK21 Division of Biological Sciences, SNU
2000-2001	The Evaluation and Funding Committee for the University
	Research Institute, Ministry of Education
2001-2002	President, The Genetic Society of Korea
2002-2003	Vice-President, The Botanical Society of Korea
2009-2010	President, The Korean Association of Biological Sciences

2011-present Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Chung, Chin Ha, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth May 26, 1951
- *Elected Date* July 11, 2014
- Specialty Molecular Biology

1969-1974	Department of Zoology, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1975-1977	Graduate School, University of Alabama, U.S.A. (M.S.)
1977-1979	Graduate School, University of Alabama, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1979-1983	Research Associate, Department of Physiology, Harvard
	Medical School
1982-1983	Fellow, Boston Medical Foundation, U.S.A.
1983-present	Professor, Seoul National University
1988-1989	Visiting Professor, The Institute for Enzyme Research,
	Tokushima University, Japan
1989-1992	Chairman, Department of Molecular Biology, Seoul National
	University
1996-1999	Advisory Board, Journal of Biochemistry (Tokyo), Japan
1998-2001	Chief Editor, Molecules and Cells
1999-present	Editor, Biochemical Biophysical Research Communication
1999-2002	Director, The Institute for Molecular Biology & Genetics, Seoul
	National University
2003-2005	Chairman, School of Biological Sciences, Seoul National
	University
2005-2015	National Chaired Scholar, The Ministry of Education and
	Sciences
2008-2009	President, The Korean Society of Zoology
2010-2011	President, The Korean Society for Molecular and Cellular Biology

Cho, Wan Kyoo, D. Sc.

- Date of Birth February 11, 1928
- Elected Date July 22, 2016
- Specialty Developmental Biology

1948-1952	Department	of	Biology,	Seoul	National	University	(B.S.)

- 1952-1956 Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
- 1957-1992 Full Time Instructor, Professor of Biology, SNU
- 1964-1966 Biomedical Fellow at University of Pennsylvania, USA
- 1969 D. of Sc., Seoul National University
- 1971-1973 WHO Fellow, at Johns Hopkins Univ., Harvard Med. School, Univ. of Cambridge, UK
- 1977-1978 Member, Steering Committee, Human Reproduction Unit, WHIO
- 1984-1987 President, Korean Federation of Science and Technology
- 1985-1987 Member, The Presidential Commission for Education Reform, ROK
- 1987-1991 President, Seoul National University
- 1988-1990 President, Korean Council for University Education
- 1989-1990 Chairman, Presidential Advisory Committee on Sci. and Tech., ROK
- 1990-1997 Member, Board of Directors, UNU/INTECH, Maastricht, Netherlands
- 1991-2008 President, Bioindustry Association of Korea (BAK)
- 1992-1993 Minister of Education, ROK
- 1992-2017 Member of Board, Korea-Australia Foundation (KAF)
- 1993-1994 Chairman, The Federation of Broadcast Culture (Full time)
- 1994-1998 President, Korean Academy of Science and Technology (KAST)
- 1998-2005 Chairman of Board, Korea Support Committee for International Vaccine Institute (IVI)
- 2005-present Executive Advisor, Korea Support Committee for IVI
- 2006 The International Award for Scientific Excellence 2006, Netzwerk fur RNA-Technologien Berlin, Germany
- 2006 The Inchon Award (Education), The Inchon Award Committee

Lee, Kie Hwa, Ph.D.			
• Date of Birth	May 28, 1941		
• Elected Date	July 22, 2016		
• Specialty	Geophysics		
1959-1963	Department of Physics, Seoul National University (B.S)		
1970-1975	Graduate School, University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A (Ph.D)		
1975-1977	Postdoctorate Fellow, Victoria Geophysical Observatory,		
	Canada		
1978-2006	Professor, Seoul National University		
2006-present	Emeritus Professor, Seoul National University		
1985-1987	Chairman, Department of Geological Sciences		
1989-1991	Associate Dean, College of Natural Sciences		
1998-2001	President, Korean Geophysical Society		
2002-2007	Honorary President, Korean Geophysical Society		
2009-present	Honorary President, Korea Society of Earth and Exploration		
	Geophysics		

An, Gynheung, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth June 5, 1947
- Elected Date July 20, 2018
- Specialty Biology

1968-1972	Department of Botany, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1975-1977	Department of Biology, Dalhousie University, Canada (M.S.)
1977-1980	Department of Biology, York University, Canada (Ph.D.)
1981-1982	Postdoctoral Fellow, Chick Children Hospital, Canada
1982-1884	Postdoctoral Fellow, University of Washington, USA
1984-1995	Professor, Washington State University, USA

1995-2010	Professor, Pohang University of Science and Technology			
1999-2010	Director, Functional Genomics Center, Pohang University of			
	Science and Technology			
2010-2017	Professor, Kyung Hee University			
2010-2017	Director, Crop Biotech Institute, Kyung Hee University			
2017-present	Research professor, Kyung Hee University			
2017-present	Emeritus Professor, Pohang University of Science and			
	Technology			
1995-present	Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology			
2005-2006	President, Korean Society of Plant Biologist			
2007-2015	Editor-in-chief, Journal of Plant Biology			
2013-present	Fellow, American Association for the Advancement of			
	Science			



Natural Sciences Division

● Subdivision Ⅲ

Kim, Sang Joo, Ph.D.

- Elected Date July 7, 1995
- Specialty Materials Engineering

1956	Graduated from Seoul National University (B.S.)
1956-1961	Research Metallurgist, Scientific Research Institute, The Ministry
	of National Defense
1962-1996	Professor, Seoul National University
1968	The Pennsylvania State University, U.S.A. (M.S.)
1971	Graduate School, Seoul National University (Ph.D.)
1982-1983	President, The Korean Institute of Metals and Materials
1984-1986	Chairman, Korea Chapter, American Society for Metals and
	Materials International
1986-1989	Dean, College of Engineering, Seoul National University
1991-1995	Vice-President, Seoul National University
1993	Awarded the National Academy of Sciences Prize, R.O.K.
1993-1996	Vice-President, The Korean Federation of Science and
	Technology Societies
1994	David Ford McFarland Award (Achievement of Metallurgist) by
	ASM International, The Pennsylvania Chapter, U.S.A.
1995-present	Honorary and Lifetime Member of the Korean Academy of
	Science and Technology (KAST), and the National Academy of
	Engineering of Korea (NAEK)
1996-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1999-2002	President, The Senior Consulting Corps of Science and Technology

2001	Awarded the Grand Award of National Academy of
	Engineering of Korea
2006-2013	Trustee of the Board, the Hoam Foundation
2008-2012	President, the National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea
2009-2013	Member, the Advisory Committee to the President
2011-2013	Member and Sub-Committee Chairman of the International
	Science Business Belt Committee of the Government
2012	Awarded the Highest Medal of the Sciences and Technology, ROK

Park, Chung Hyun, Dr. of Engineering

- Date of Birth August 11, 1933
- *Elected Date* July 9, 1999
- Specialty Civil Engineering

1957	Graduated from Seoul National University (B.S.)
1957-1962	The Ministry of Home Affairs
1959	Research Associate, Oregon State University, USA
1966-1999	Vice-President, The Union of Korean Water Engineering
1967	Tokyo University, Japan (Dr. of Eng.)
1969-1998	Professor, Seoul National University
1987-1999	President, The Korea Society of Water and Wastewater
1998	National Order of Civil Merit, Seogryu Medal
1998-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2003	Advisor, UNEP-SNU Rainwater Research Center
2009	The 3.1 Culture Award

Kim, Sang Yong, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth June 10, 1935
- *Elected Date* July 14, 2000
- Specialty Fiber & Polymer Physics

1958	College of Engineering, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1961	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1962-2000	Instructor~Professor, Seoul National University, Korea
1972	Graduate School, North Carolina State University, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1980-1981	Visiting Professor, North Carolina State University, U.S.A.
1989-1993	President, The Korean Society of Rheology
1990	Chairman, The Polymer Processing Society, International
	Regional Meeting
1994-present	Member~Honorary Member, The Korean Academy of Science
	and Technology
1996-1998	President, The Korean Fiber Society
1996-present	Member~Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering,
	Korea
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Rho, Oh Hyun, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth November 29, 1939
- Elected Date July 13, 2001
- Specialty Aerospace Engineering

1963 Graduated from College of Engineering, Seoul National University (B.S.)

- 1968 Graduate School, Tufts University, U.S.A. (M.S.)
- 1973 Graduate School, New York University, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)

1974-2005	Assistant Professor ~ Professor, Seoul National University
1980	Visiting Professor, University of Maryland, U.S.A.
1989-1998	Representative of General Assembly, The International Council
	of The Aeronautical Sciences (ICAS)
1992-1993	President, The Korean Society for Aeronautical and Space Sciences
1993-2005	Korean Aerospace Industrial Development and Planning
	Committee Member, Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy
1994-2005	Advisor for Military Acquisition Policy, Ministry of National Defence
1994-2005	Advisor, The Asian-Pacific Conference on Aerospace
	Technology and Science
1997-2011	Editorial Advisor, International Journal COMPUTERS and FLUIDS
2002-present	Associate Fellow, American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics
2005-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Lee, Choong Woong, Dr. Eng.

• Date of Birth	May	3,	1935
-----------------	-----	----	------

- Elected Date July 15, 2005
- Specialty Electronic Engineering

1954-1958	College of Engineering, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1958-1960	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1966-2000	Professor, Seoul National University
1969-1971	Graduate School, University of Tokyo (Dr. Eng.)
1988	President, Korean Society of Medical and Biological Engineering
1989	President, Institute of Electronics Engineering of Korea
1989-2000	Fellow, IEEE (Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers)
1990	Awarded the Order of Merit, Dong-Baeg Medal, Korea
1991-1994	Trustee, Korea Telecom
1991-1996	Director, Institute of New Media and Communications, Seoul
	National University.

1998-2002	President, Korea Society of Broadcast Engineers
2000	Awarded the Yellow Stripes Order of Service Merit, Korea
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2001-present	Life Fellow, IEEE

Yoon, Duk Yong, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	January 3, 1940
• Elected Date	July 15, 2005
• Specialty	Metallurgy and Materials Science
1962	Massachusetts Institute of Technology (B.S.)
1967	Harvard University (Ph.D.)
1967-1970	Research Associate, University of Illinois, U.S.A.
1970-1972	Assistant Professor, Wayne State University, U.S.A.
1972-2005	Professor, Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology (KAIST)
1977-1978	Visiting Scientist, Max Planck Institut fur Metallforschung, Germany
1981-1982	Secretary General, Korea Science and Engineering Foundation
1984-1985	Visiting Scientist, National Bureau of Standards, U.S.A.
1988-1989	Visiting Research Fellow, General Electric Corporate Research and Development Center, U.S.A.
1991-1995	Director, Center for Interface Science and Engineering of Materials, KAIST
1995-1998	President, The Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology
1996-1997	President, The Korea Powder Metallurgy Institute
2004	Visiting Professor, University of Tokyo, Japan
2005-present	Honorary Professor, Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology

Hyun, Byung Koo, Sc.D.

- Date of Birth February 11, 1930
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- *Specialty* Mineral and Petroleum Engineering (Geophysical Engineering)
- 1949-1954 College of Engineering, Seoul National University (B.S.)
- 1954-1957 Colorado School of Mines, U.S.A. (Gp.E.; Geophysical Engineer)
- 1957-1961 Colorado School of Mines, U.S.A. (Sc.D.)
- 1958-1961 Research Fellow, Colorado School of Mines, U.S.A.
- 1961-1962 Research Geophysicist, Texas Instruments, Inc., U.S.A.
- 1963-1995 Professor, Seoul National University
- 1975 Sam Il Medal of Patriotic Service Merit, Korea
- 1976-1981 President, Korea Research Institute of Geoscience and Mineral Resources
- 1981-1983 President, Korea Research Institute of Energy and Resources
- 1983-1985 President, Korea Institute of Mining and Mineral Engineers
- 1991-1994 Director, Research Institute of Energy and Resources, Seoul National University

1992 Moran Medal of Civil Merit, Korea

- 1994-present Senior Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology
- 1995-present Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
- 1998-1999 President, Korea Society of Exploration Geophysicists
- 2001 Awarded The May 16 National Prize, Korea
- 2009-present Honorary President, Korean Society of Earth and Exploration Geophysicists
Ra, Jung-Woong, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth July 10, 1941
- Elected Date July 11, 2008
- Specialty **Electro-Physics**
- 1959-1963 B.E. in Electronics Engineering, College of Engineering, Seoul National University (SNU)
- 1965-1971 M.S. and Ph.D. in Electrophysics, Polytechnic Institute of Brooklyn, U.S.A.
- Professor (-2006), Professor Emeritus (2006-present), Director, 1971-present Electrical Engineering Division ('83-'86), Dean of Faculty ('90-'91), Director, BK21 Division of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science ('99-'02), Chairman, Department of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science ('99-'02)
- 1984-1988 Board Member, KBS (Korea Broadcasting System)
- 1991-1993 Promotional Director, Gwangju Institute of Science and Technology
- 1993-1996 Commissioner, Korean Broadcasting Commission
- 1994-1996 President, International Union of Radio Science (URSI) of South Korea 1994-1996 President, Korean Society of Broadcast Engineers
- 1994-2007 General Chairman; Asia Pacific Microwave Conference '95, Korea-Japan Conference, KJJC-AP/EMC/EMT '95, '96, '98
- 1996 President, Institute of Electronics Engineers of Korea (IEEK) 1996-1998 Administrative Committee (Ad-Com) Member and Chairman of
- Trans-National Committee, IEEE MTT-S 2002-2006 President, Gwangju Institute of Science and Technology (GIST)
- 2002-present Member (Emeritus), Engineering Academy of Korea
- 2005-present Life Member, Korean Academy of Science and Technology
- 2009-2012 President, Korean Society of Industrial and Applied Mathematics
- 1959
- Governor's Prize for the First Honoring High School Graduate 1963 SNU President's Prize for the First Honoring Engineering College Graduate

1963	Prize of the Chief of the General Staffs, Korean Army for the
	First Honoring Second Lieutenant
1999	National Decoration, Moranjang
2008	Electronics Engineering Grand Prize (IEEK)
2009	Korea Engineering Prize (National Presidential Prize)

Hahn, Song-yop, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth March 14, 1939

 Specialty Electrical Engineering B.S. in EE., Seoul National University M.S. in EE., Seoul National University M.S. in EE., Seoul National University Assistant Prof. ~ Professor, Dept. of EE., SNU Ph.D. in EE., Institut National Polytechnique de Lorraine, France Head, Dept. of EE., SNU Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium Head, Dept of EE., SNU International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium Disector, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU Presidential Award in Engineering, Republic of Korea 	• Elected Date	July 9, 2010
 1967 M.S. in EE., Seoul National University 1968-2004 Assistant Prof. ~ Professor, Dept. of EE., SNU 1979 Ph.D. in EE., Institut National Polytechnique de Lorraine, France 1981-1983 Head, Dept. of EE., SNU 1992 Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU 1992 International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium 1992-1994 Head, Dept of EE., SNU 1993-2004 Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	• Specialty	Electrical Engineering
 1967 M.S. in EE., Seoul National University 1968-2004 Assistant Prof. ~ Professor, Dept. of EE., SNU 1979 Ph.D. in EE., Institut National Polytechnique de Lorraine, France 1981-1983 Head, Dept. of EE., SNU 1992 Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU 1992 International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium 1992-1994 Head, Dept of EE., SNU 1993-2004 Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 		
 1968-2004 Assistant Prof. ~ Professor, Dept. of EE., SNU 1979 Ph.D. in EE., Institut National Polytechnique de Lorraine, France 1981-1983 Head, Dept. of EE., SNU 1992 Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU 1992 International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium 1992-1994 Head, Dept of EE., SNU 1993-2004 Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1963	B.S. in EE., Seoul National University
 1979 Ph.D. in EE., Institut National Polytechnique de Lorraine, France 1981-1983 Head, Dept. of EE., SNU 1992 Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU 1992 International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium 1992-1994 Head, Dept of EE., SNU 1993-2004 Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1967	M.S. in EE., Seoul National University
 Head, Dept. of EE., SNU Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium Head, Dept of EE., SNU Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1968-2004	Assistant Prof.~Professor, Dept. of EE., SNU
 1992 Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU 1992 International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium 1992-1994 Head, Dept of EE., SNU 1993-2004 Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1995-1997 Dean, College of Engineering, SNU 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1979	Ph.D. in EE., Institut National Polytechnique de Lorraine, France
 1992 International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium 1992-1994 Head, Dept of EE., SNU 1993-2004 Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1995-1997 Dean, College of Engineering, SNU 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1981-1983	Head, Dept. of EE., SNU
 1992-1994 Head, Dept of EE., SNU 1993-2004 Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1995-1997 Dean, College of Engineering, SNU 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1992	Distinguished Professor Award, College of Engineering, SNU
1993-2004Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines and Devices1994Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium1995-1996President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers1995-1997Dean, College of Engineering, SNU1996Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea1998Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society1998-2001President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics1998-2002Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU	1992	International Steering Committee Member, ISEM Symposium
and Devices1994Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium1995-1996President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers1995-1997Dean, College of Engineering, SNU1996Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea1998Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society1998-2001President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics1998-2002Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU	1992-1994	Head, Dept of EE., SNU
 1994 Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1995-1997 Dean, College of Engineering, SNU 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1993-2004	Director, Center for Advanced Design of Electrical Machines
 1995-1996 President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers 1995-1997 Dean, College of Engineering, SNU 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 		and Devices
 1995-1997 Dean, College of Engineering, SNU 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1994	Symposium Chairman, ISEM Symposium
 1996 Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1995-1996	President, Korean Institute of Electrical Engineers
 1998 Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1995-1997	Dean, College of Engineering, SNU
 1998-2001 President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and Cryogenics 1998-2002 Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU 	1996	Dongbak Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea
Cryogenics1998-2002Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU	1998	Board Member, International COMPUMAG Society
1998-2002Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU	1998-2001	President, Korean Institute of Applied Superconductivity and
, 8 8 ,		Cryogenics
1999 Presidential Award in Engineering, Republic of Korea	1998-2002	Director, Research Center for Engineering Education, SNU
	1999	Presidential Award in Engineering, Republic of Korea

1999	Vice President, AEESEAP/International Steering Committee
	Member, IEEE Magnet Technology Conference
1999-2000	President, Korean Society for Engineering Education
2000-2004	Vice President, Accreditation Board for Engineering Education
	of Korea
2002-2004	Director, Korea Research Center for Engineering Education
2004	Whangjo Merit of Civil Order, Republic of Korea
2004	Conference Chairman, IEEE CEFC Conference
2004-present	Professor Emeritus, Dept of EE., SNU
2005	Haedong Award, National Academy of Engineering of Korea
2007	Soodang Award, Soodang Foundation

Choi, Hang Sun, Dr.-Ing.

• Date of Birth • Elected Date • Specialty	May 22, 1947 July 12, 2013 Naval Architecture & Ocean Engineering
1965-1970	Department of Naval Architecture, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1970-1972 1972-1974	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.) Institute of Naval Architecture, Hamburg University (equiv.
1772 1771	DiplIng.), Germany
1975-1976	Research Associate, Hamburg University, Germany
1976-1979	Research Associate, Technical University of Munich, Germany
1979	DrIng., Technical University of Munich, Germany
1980-2012	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor and Professor at the
	Department of Naval Architecture & Ocean Engineering, Seoul
	National University
1985-1986	Visiting Engineer, Department of Civil Engineering, MIT, U.S.A.
2000	Visiting Professor, RIAM, Kyushu University, Japan
2009	Visiting Professor, Ship Research Center, Norwegian TNU,

	Norway
1990-1993	Member, Environment Committee of the 10th ISSC
1993-1999	Member, Ocean Engineering Committee of ITTC
2000-2012	Editor, Journal of Marine Science & Technology
2002-2004	Board Member, International Society of Offshore & Polar
	Engineering
2004	President, Korea Association of Ocean Science & Technology
2004-2005	President, Society of Naval Architects of Korea
2005-2011	Chief Trustee, Korean Institute of Marine Science & Technology
	Promotion
2013-2016	Vice President, Korean Academy of Science & Technology

Lee, Jang Moo, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	May 14, 1945	
-----------------	--------------	--

- Elected Date July 11, 2014
- Specialty Dynamics of Machines

1967	Seoul National University (B.S.)
1975	Iowa State University (Ph.D.), U.S.A.
2009	Babes-Bolyai University, Romania (Honorary Doctorate)
2011	Hokkaido University, Japan (Honorary Doctorate)
1976-2010	Professor, Seoul National University
1982-1983	Visiting Scientist, M.I.T., U.S.A.
1993-present	Fellow, International Academy for Production Engineering
1996-1999	President, Korean Society for Precision Engineering
1997-2002	Dean, College of Engineering, Seoul National University
1998-1999	Member, National Advisory Council for Science & Technology
1998-2000	Chairman, Council of Higher Education, Ministry of Education
1999-2005	Chairman, Institute of Industrial Technology Evaluation
2000	President, Korean Society of Mechanical Engineering

2002	Fellow, American Society for Mechanical Engineers, U.S.A.
2004-2006	President, Korean Society for New & Renewable Energy
2005	Korean Academy of Science Award
2005-2007	Vice President of Korean Federation of Sci. & Tech. Societies
2006-2010	President, Seoul National University
2008-2009	President, Korean Council for University Education
2008-2009	Chairman, Advisory Committee for Recommendation of Justice
	of Supreme Court
2008-2009	Member of International Advisory Board, KAUST, Saudi Arabia
2010-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2010	Blue Stripes Order of Service Merit (First Degree)
2015-present	Honorary Chairman, (Foundation) Climate Change Center
2010-2016	Chairman, Kyung-Ahm Science Award Committee
2010-present	Advisory Board member, Hong Kong Polytechnic University
2013-present	Chairman, National Science and Technology Council
2013-present	Chairman, Board of Trustees, KAIST
2017-2019	Director, Division of Natural Sciences, National Academy of
	Sciences, Korea

Lee, Byeong Gi, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	May 12, 1951
• Elected Date	July 11, 2014
 Specialty 	Information and Communications
1974	Seoul National University (B.S.)
1978	Kyungpook National University (M.S.)
1982	University of California, Los Angeles (UCLA) (Ph.D.), U.S.A.
1974-1979	Full-time Instructor, Korea Naval Academy
1982-1984	Senior Engineer, Granger Associates, U.S.A.
1984-1986	Member of Technical Staff, AT&T Bell Laboratories, U.S.A.

1986-2016	Professor, Seoul National University
1997	Fellow of the IEEE
1997	Member of the National Acememy of Engineering (NAE)
2000-2001	Director, Institute of New Media and Communications, SNU
2000-2002	Dean, Research Affairs, SNU
2001	The 46 th National Academy of Sciences Award
2005	The 1 st Kyung-Am Academic Award
2002-2005	Editor in Chief, Journal of Communications and Networks
2003-2004	President, Korea Society for Engineering Education (KSEE)
2004-2007	Vice President, Accreditation Board of Engineering Education
	of Korea (ABEEK)
2005-2008	President, Citizens' Coalition for Scientific Society (CCSS)
2007	President, Korea Institute of Information and
	Communications Sciences (KICS)
2008-2010	Commissioner, Korea Communications Commission (KCC)
2010-2011	President, IEEE Communications Society (ComSoc)
2011	The Information and Communications Grand Award
2012	The Order of Service Merit with Yellow Stripe
2013	IEEE Donald W. McLellan Meritorious Service Award
2016-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2017	IEEE/KICS Exemplary Global Service Award

Whang, Kyu-Young, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 2, 1951
- *Elected Date* July 13, 2018
- Specialty Computer Science and Engineering

- 1973 Seoul National University President's Prize
- 1975 KAIST (M.S.)

1975~1978	Senior Engineer, Agency for Defense Development (ADD), Korea
1982	Stanford University (M.S.), USA
1984	Stanford University (Ph.D.), USA
1983~1991	Research Staff Member, IBM T.J. Watson Research Center, USA
1989~1990	IEEE Distinguished Visitor
1990~2016	Professor, School of Computing, KAIST
1990	Best Paper Award, IEEE 6th Int'l Conf. on Data Engineering
2008~present	KAIST Distinguished Professor
2016~present	Professor Emeritus, School of Computing, KAIST
1990~2003	Founding Editorial Board Member (Associate Editor), The
	VLDB Journal
1992	Visiting Associate Professor, College of Computing, Georgia
	Institute of Technology
1998	Scientist of the Month Award, Ministry of Science and
	Technology
1998~1999	Director, Academic Information, Computing, and Library, KAIST
1998~2003, 201	0~2015 Trustee, The VLDB Endowment
1000	
1999	Information and Culture Innovative Technology Award, Prime
1999	Information and Culture Innovative Technology Award, Prime Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication,
1999	
1999~2016	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research
	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence
	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea
1999~2016 2001~present	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology
1999~2016	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering
1999~2016 2001~present 2002~present	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea
1999~2016 2001~present	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea Associate Editor, IEEE Trans. on Data and Knowledge
1999~2016 2001~present 2002~present 2002~2006	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea Associate Editor, IEEE Trans. on Data and Knowledge Engineering
1999~2016 2001~present 2002~present	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea Associate Editor, IEEE Trans. on Data and Knowledge Engineering Editor-in-Chief (2007~2009 Coordinating EIC), The VLDB
1999~2016 2001~present 2002~present 2002~2006 2003~2009	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea Associate Editor, IEEE Trans. on Data and Knowledge Engineering Editor-in-Chief (2007~2009 Coordinating EIC), The VLDB Journal
1999~2016 2001~present 2002~present 2002~2006 2003~2009 2004	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea Associate Editor, IEEE Trans. on Data and Knowledge Engineering Editor-in-Chief (2007~2009 Coordinating EIC), The VLDB Journal The 2003 KAIST Professor of the Year Award
1999~2016 2001~present 2002~present 2002~2006 2003~2009	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea Associate Editor, IEEE Trans. on Data and Knowledge Engineering Editor-in-Chief (2007~2009 Coordinating EIC), The VLDB Journal The 2003 KAIST Professor of the Year Award Best Demonstration Award, IEEE 21st Int'l Conf. on Data
1999~2016 2001~present 2002~present 2002~2006 2003~2009 2004	Minister of Korea/Ministry of Information and Communication, June 1999 Director, Advanced Information Technology Research Center (AITrc), Engineering Research Center of Excellence (ERC), National Research Foundation (NRF) of Korea Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology Member/Senior Member, The National Academy of Engineering of Korea Associate Editor, IEEE Trans. on Data and Knowledge Engineering Editor-in-Chief (2007~2009 Coordinating EIC), The VLDB Journal The 2003 KAIST Professor of the Year Award

	Large Data Bases (VLDB 2006), Seoul, Korea, Sept. 13-15, 2006
2007	President, Korean Institute of Information Scientists and
	Engineers (KIISE)
2007	ACM SIGMOD Distinguished Database Profile
2007/2016~pres	sent IEEE Fellow/Life Fellow
2007~2011	Chair/Advisor, Steering Committee, DASFAA International Conference
2009~present	ACM Fellow
2011	Outstanding Contributions Award, DASFAA International Conference
2012	The Korea Engineering Award, The President of Korea
2013~2015/2015	5~2021 Chair/Advisor, IEEE Technical Committee on Data
	Engineering
2014	Distinguished Contributions Award, PAKDD International Conference
2014	ACM SIGMOD Contributions Award
2015~2019	Chair/Advisor, Steering Committee, Bigcomp International Conference
2017	The Korean Supreme Scientist/Engineer Award, The President
	of Korea

Yoo, Jung Yul, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 4, 1947
- Elected Date July 12, 2019
- Specialty Fluid Mechanics

1969	Seoul National University (B.S.)
1973	University of Minnesota (M.S.), USA
1977	University of Minnesota (Ph.D.), USA
1978-2012	Professor, Seoul National University (SNU)
1983-1984	Visiting Associate Professor, University of Minnesota, USA
1990-1992	Associate Dean of Academic Affairs, College of Engineering, SNU
1990	Academic Achievement Award, Korean Society of Mechanical
	Engineering (KSME)
1992-1995	Associate Dean of Academic Affairs, Seoul National University

1998-1999	Chairman, Fluids Engineering Division, KSME
1999-2001	Director, BK21 (Brain Korea 21) Project for Mechanical
	Engineering Division, SNU
2001-2003	Secretary General, Korea Research Foundation
2001-2003	President, Korean Society of Visualization
2002-present	Fellow, American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)
2003	Chairman, 5 th International Symposium on Particle Image
	Velocimetry
2003	Distinguished Faculty Award (Research), College of Engineering,
	SNU
2004	President, Korean Society of Mechanical Engineering
2005-2009	Director, Institute of Advanced Machinery and Design, SNU
2005-2009	University Council Member, Seoul National University
2007	Best Paper Award, ASME International Conference and
	Exhibition on Integration and Commercialization of Micro and
	Nanosystems
2008-2010	Vice-President, National Academy of Engineers of Korea
2008	Chairman, 5 th International Conference on Computational Fluid
• • • •	Dynamics
2010	Best Paper Award, Korean Society of Mechanical Engineering
2012-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2012	Green Stripes, Order of Service Merit, Republic of Korea
2012	The National Academy of Sciences Award
2013-2014	Vice-President for Academic Affairs, The Korean Academy of
	Science and Technology (KAST)
2014-2017	Auditor, Korea Institute of Industrial Technology (KITECH)
2015-2016	Executive Vice-President, KAST



• Subdivision IV

Lee, Ho Wang, M.D., Ph.D.

• Date of Birth • Elected Date • Specialty	October 26, 1928 August 12, 1981 Microbiology
1954 1954-1974	College of Medicine, Seoul National University (M.D.)
1934-1974	Assistant~Professor, College of Medicine, Seoul National University
1955-1959	Graduate School, University of Minnesota, U.S.A. (M.S., Ph.D.)
1971-1982	President, Korean Society for Virology
1974-1994	Professor and Chairman, Department of Microbiology, College
	of Medicine, Korea University
1976-1977	President, Korean Society for Microbiology
1980-2000	Director, WHO Collaborating Center for Virus Reference and
	Research (Hantaviruses)
1983-1984	Dean, College of Medicine, Korea University
1984-2000	Member, WHO Expert Committee on Viral Diseases, Geneva
1994-2000	Director, Asan Institute for Life Science, Asan Foundation
1995-1998	Vice-President, Korean Academy of Science and Technology
1995-1999	Director, Natural Sciences Division, The National Academy of
	Sciences, R.O.K.
1997-present	President, The Hantaan Life Science Foundation
1998-2000	President, Korean Society for Vaccinology
1998-present	Member, The American Philosophical Society
1998-present	Fellow, The Third World Academy of Sciences
2000-2004	President, The National Academy of Sciences, Korea

Kwon, E Hyock, M.D., Ph.D.

- *Elected Date* August 12, 1981
- Specialty Preventive Medicine

1947	College of Medicine, Seoul National University
1947-1951	Studied at Graduate School, Seoul National University
1955-1956	Studied at School of Public Health, University of Minnesota,
	U.S.A.
1956-1980	Professor, Seoul National University
1969-1969	Visiting Professor, University of California, Berkeley, U.S.A.
1976-2006	Fellow, World Academy of Art and Science
1979-1980	General-Director, Seoul National University Hospital
1981-1983	President, Seoul National University
1983-1985	Minister, Ministry of Education, R.O.K.
1985-1988	President, Korea National University of Education
1988-1988	Minister, Ministry of Health and Social Affairs, R.O.K.

1990-1992	President, The Korean Federation of Sciences & Technology
	Societies
1991-1992	Minister, Ministry of Environment, R.O.K.
1992-1996	President, The National Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.
1995-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1996-2007	Chairman, Board of Trustees, Sungkyunkwan University
2007-present	Honorary Chairman, Korea Foundation for International
	Healthcare

Lee, Sang Sup, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 24, 1931
- Elected Date August 12, 1981
- Specialty Pharmaceutical Biochemistry

1950-1954	College of Pharmacy, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1954-1956	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1954-1974	Assistant, Instructor, Assistant professor and Associate professor
1962-1966	University of Wisconsin (Madison), U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1973-1974	Visiting professor, College of pharmacy, University of
	Wisconsin (Madison), U.S.A.
1974-1996	Professor, Seoul National University
1978-1981	Dean, College of Pharmacy, Seoul National University
1981-1982	President, Biochemical Society of R.O.K.
1983-1984	President, Korean Pharmaceutical Society
1983-1989	Delegate, Federation of Asian & Oceanian Biochemists
1985-1988	Delegate, International Union of Biochemistry
1985-1989	Director, Research Institute of Pharmaceutical Sciences, Seoul
	National University
1987-1988	President, Environmental Mutagen & Carcinogen Society of Korea
1989-1992	Chairman, Fellowship Committee, Federation of Asian and
	Oceanian Biochemists

1990-1993	Chairman, Program Development & Review Committee, KOSEF
1992-1995	Director, International Union of Toxicology
1996-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1996-present	Advisor, Amore-Pacific R&D Center
1998-2001	Vice President, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology

Moon, Gook Jin, M.D., Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 9, 1925
- Elected Date August 28, 1987
- Specialty Legal Medicine

1955	Graduated from College of Medicine, Seoul National University
1955-1970	Head Forensic Pathologist, National Institute of Scientific Crime
	Investigation, R.O.K.

- 1970-1973 Associate Professor, College of Medicine, Korea University
- 1971-1990 Director, Institute of Legal Medicine, Korea University
- 1973-1974 Visiting Professor, Department of Legal Medicine, School of Medicine, New York University, U.S.A.
- 1973-1990 Professor and Chairman, Department of Legal Medicine, College of Medicine, Korea University
- 1990-present Professor Emeritus, Korea University
- 2004-2007 Director, Natural Sciences Division, The National Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.

Kim, Nak Doo, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 1, 1933
- *Elected Date* July 13, 2001
- Specialty Pharmacology

1953-1957	College of Pharmacy, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1958-1960	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1965-1999	Professor, College of Pharmacy, Seoul National University
1967-1972	University of Manitoba, Canada (Ph.D.)
1981-1988	Director, Pharmacy Dept., Seoul National University Hospital
1983-1988	President, Korean Society of Hospital Pharmacists
1989-1990	President, Korean Society of Toxicology
1991-1993	Dean, College of Pharmacy, Seoul National University
1995-1996	President, Korean Society of Pharmacology
1995-1997	Director, Research Center for New Drug Development, Seoul
	National University
1997-1998	President, The Korean Society of Ginseng
1999-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Kim, Byung Soo, M.D., Ph.D., DH.Hon., LL.D.Hon

- Date of Birth May 8, 1936
- Elected Date July 12, 2002
- Specialty Medicine (Oncology)

1955-1961	College of	Medici	ine, Yons	ei Universi [.]	ty (M.D.)		
1965-1966	Internship,	The Mi	ichael Ree	ese Hospital	Medical (Cent	er, Chicago
	Medical Sc	chool, U	J.S.A.				
1966-1968	Resident,	Cook	County	Hospital,	College	of	Medicine,

	University Illinois, U.S.A.
1968-1970	Oncology Fellow, Boston Children's Hospital Medical Center,
	Dana-Farber Cancer Institute, Harvard Medical School, U.S.A.
1970-1974	Instructor, Harvard Medical School, U.S.A.
1970-1974	Assistant Faculty Oncologist, Dana-Farber Cancer Institute,
	Harvard Medical School, U.S.A.
1974-2001	Professor, College of Medicine, Yonsei University
1978-1993	Director, Yonsei Cancer Center, Yonsei University
1982-1985	National Okayama University, Japan (Ph.D.)
1985	Advisor, Western Pacific Region, WHO
1993-1994	President, Korean Society For Head and Neck Oncology
1995-2005	Chang Gang Jae Chair Professor of Oncology, Yonsei University
1994-1996	Vice President, Yonsei University
1996-2000	President, Yonsei University
2002-2009	President, CHA University
1999-2002	Honorary President, The Korean Federation of Science and
	Technology Societies
1995-present	Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology
1989-1992	Chairman, Korean Cancer Association
1999-2000	President, Korean Cancer Association
1998	State University of New York (Hon. DH)
1998	Korea University, Seoul (Hon. LL.D.)
1998	Awarded the Order of Civil Merit of Mugunghwa Medal (First
	grade)
2002	Awarded Order of Service Merit Blue Stripes (First grade)
2012-present	Member of National Academy of Sciences, Republic of
	Korea
2007-2015	Trustee, Board of Directors Soon Chun Hyang University
2008-present	Trustee, Board of Directors CHA University
2009-present	Professor Emeritus, Yonsei University
2015-2017	Director, Division of Natural Sciences, National Academy of
	Sciences, Republic of Korea

Lee, Soon-Hyung, M.D., Ph.D.

- Date of Birth September 5, 1936
- *Elected Date* July 11, 2003
- Specialty Medical Parasitology

1962	Seoul National University, College of Medicine (M.D.)
1962-1967	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S., Ph.D.)
1969-1975	Instructor & Assistant Professor, Seoul National University,
	College of Medicine
1971-1972	Visiting Scientist, Tulane University, U.S.A.
1975-1980	Associate Professor & Professor, Chungang University, College
	of Medicine
1981-2002	Associate Professor & Professor, Seoul National University,
	College of Medicine
1982-1983	President, Korean Society for Parasitology
1984-1990	Associate Dean, Student Affairs & Academic Affairs, Seoul
	National University, College of Medicine
1986-1997	Director, Institute of Endemic Diseases, Seoul National
	University, College of Medicine
1994-1998	Dean, Seoul National University, College of Medicine
1995-2009	Vice President & President, Korean Association of Health Promotion
2002-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University, College of Medicine

Kim, Young Choong, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth April 4, 1946
- *Elected Date* July 16, 2004
- Specialty Pharmacognosy
- 1964-1968 College of Pharmacy, Seoul National University (B.S.)

1968-1970	School of Medicine, Indiana University (M.S.), U.S.A.
1970-1976	University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign (Ph.D.), U.S.A.
1978-2011	Professor, Seoul National University
1982-present	Member, The Central Pharmaceutical Affairs Council, Ministry of Health and Welfare
1989-2011	Director, Medicinal Plant Garden, Seoul National University
1994-1996	Editor-in-Chief, The Pharmaceutical Society of Korea
1994-present	Life member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology
1997	President, The Korean Society of Pharmacognosy
2001-2011	Member, The Policy Conference on Research and Development of New Drug from Natural Products, Ministry of Health and Welfare
2003-2004	President, The Council of Woman Faculty, Seoul National University
2005-2010	Vice-President, The Korean Federation of Science and Technology Societies
2007-2011	Member, Seoul National University Senate
2008-2011	Member, Board of Trustee, Korea Health Industry Development Institute
2009-2010	President, The Pharmaceutical Society of Korea
2011-2014	Standing Advisor, Medicinal Plant Garden, Seoul National University
2011-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Ko, Jea Seung, D.D.S., Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 23, 1942
- Elected Date July 13, 2007
- Specialty Dentistry (Oral Histology and Developmental Biology)

1967	Seoul National University College of Dentistry (D.D.S.)
1967-1974	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.D., Ph.D.)
1975-2007	Professor, Seoul National University College of Dentistry

1979-1980	Visiting Assistant Professor, UCLA School of Dentistry, U.S.A.
1984-1985	Visiting Associate Professor, The University of Michigan School
	of Dentistry, U.S.A.
1988	Visiting Scientist, Harvard Medical School, U.S.A.
1994-1995	Visiting Professor, UCLA School of Dentistry, U.S.A.
1994-1999	President, Korean Academy of Oral Anatomy
1995-1998	Chief, Department of Oral Anatomy, Seoul National University
	College of Dentistry
1996-2003	President, Korean Society for Maxillofacial Bone Research
1997-1999	Director, Dental Research Institute, Seoul National University
	College of Dentistry
1998-2000	Dean, Seoul National University College of Dentistry
2001-2002	President, International Association for Dental Research Korea Division
2001-2003	President, Korean Association of Basic Dental Scientists
2005-2007	Chief, Department of Oral Histology and Developmental
	Biology, Seoul National University College of dentistry
2007-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Shin, Hee-Sup, M.D., Ph.D.

- Date of Birth July 29, 1950
- Elected Date July 9, 2010
- Specialty Genetics and Neuroscience

1974	College of Medicine, Seoul National University, M.D. in Medicine
1983	Graduate School of Medical Sciences, Cornell University, Ph.D.
	in Genetics & Cell Biol., U.S.A.
1983	Frank Lappin Horsfall, Jr. Award, Cornell University, U.S.A.
1983-1985	Research Associate in Genetics, Sloan-Kettering Institute, U.S.A.
1985-1991	Assistant Professor, Dept. of Biology, MIT Associate Member,
	Whitehead Institute for Biomedical Research, U.S.A.

1991-2001	Associate Professor, Professor, Dept. Life Science, POSTECH
1994	Member, Korean Academy of Science and Technology
1996-1998	Director, Biotechnology Research Center, POSTECH
1997	Kumho Science Award, Kumho Foundation / Hantan Life
	Science Award, Hantan Foundation
1997-2003	Director, National CRI Center for Calcium and Learning
2000	Hamchun Medical Science Award, Hamchun Foundation
2001-2012	Principal Research Scientist, KIST
2004	Hoam Prize, Hoam Foundation
2004	Dongbaeg Medal, Order of Civil Merit, President of Korea
2004	AHF Lectureship Award, Calgary University
2005	Best Scientist Award, MOST
2005-2011	Director, Center for Neural Science, KIST
2006	National Honor Scientist, MOST
2009	Elected as Foreign Associate, National Academy of Science,
	U.S.A.
2011-2012	Director-General, Brain Science Institute, KIST
2012-present	Director, Center for Cognition and Sociality, IBS
2014-present	Member, Board of Directors, Samsung Life Foundation
2014-2015	Member, Presidential Advisory Council for Science &
	Technology
2014	NEBS Lectureship Award, New England Bioscience Society,
	U.S.A.
2015	Hotchkiss Brain Institute Lectureship Award, Canada
2018	AAAS Fellow, American Association for Advancement of Sciences,
	U.S.A.

Lee, Yong Soon, DVM, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 16, 1944
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2013
- Specialty Veterinary Pathology

1965-1972	Seoul	l Munio	cipal	College	of Agrie	culture	(B.S.)	
		. .	•.	(m 1	() (C)	т		

- 1973-1975 The University of Tokyo (M.S.), Japan
- 1975-1978 The University of Tokyo (Ph.D.), Japan
- 1979-2010 Professor, Seoul National University (SNU)
- 1994-1999 President, Korean Association for Laboratory Animal Science
- 1998-2000 President, Korean Society of Toxicology
- 1999-2001 Dean, College of Veterinary Medicine, SNU
- 2001-2003 President, Korean Society of Veterinary Public Health
- 2002-2003 Commissioner, Korea Food and Drug Administration
- 2002-2006 President, Korean Society of Toxicologic Pathology
- 2003-2005 President, Korean Society of Veterinary Science
- 2003-2006 President, Asian Society of Laboratory Animal Science
- 2005-2010 Director, Research Institute of Zoonoses, SNU
- 2014-2017 Vice President, The Korean Federation of Science and Technology Societies
- 2010-present Professor Emeritus, SNU

Lee, Sung-Gyu, M.D., Ph.D.

- Date of Birth Jan 11, 1949
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2013
- Specialty Surgery and Liver Transplantation
- 1973 College of Medicine, Seoul National University, M.D.

1978	Diplomate, Korean Board of General Surgery
1986	Graduate School of Medicine, Seoul National University, Ph.D.
1983-1989	Associate Professor, Dept. of Surgery, Korea University Medical School
1989-present	Professor of Surgery, Hepato-Biliary Surgery and Liver Transplantation, Asan Medical Center, Ulsan University Medical School
1995	Fellow of American College of Surgeon (FACS)
1999	The 1st Awards of Professor ChungYong Kim in Memory of HoAm Prize
2001	International College of Surgeons
2001	The 1st Scientific Awards (The Korean Society for Transplantation)
2005	The 1st Shering Prize in Clinical Medicine (Korean Academy of Medical Sciences)
2005-2007	President, Korean Association of Hepato-Biliary-Pancreatic Surgery
2005-2007	Chairman, Korean Society for Transplantation
2006	The 1st Academic and Research Awards from Asan Medical Center
2006	The 1st Il-Song Awards (Hallym University)
2008	The 3rd Dr. Gi-Ryo Chang Memorial Awards (InJe University and Pusan International Newspaper)
2008-2009	President, Korean Association for the Study of the Liver
2008	President, The 6th International Meeting of Hepatocellular Carcinoma: Eastern and Western Experiences, Seoul
2009-present	Member, Korean Academy of Science and Technology
2009-2013	Secretary, Asian-Pacific Hepato-Biliary-Pancreatic Association
2009-2014	Vice President, International Association of Surgeons, Gastroenterologists and Oncologists
2014-present	Honorary President, International Association of Surgeons, Gastroenterologists and Oncologists (IASGO)
2010	Honorary Member, Egyptian Society of Surgeons (IASGO)
2010	The 3rd Asan Medical Awards (Asan Social-Welfare Foundation)
2010	Recognition Awards for Innovation in Surgery and Technology

	(The 13th Transplantation Society, TTS)
2010-present	Councilor, International Hepato-Pancreato-Biliary Association
2011	Awards for the Proud KyungGi-High School Graduate Alumni
	in the year of 2010
2011-2017	Councilor, International Liver Transplantation Society
2012-present	Honorary Member, Japanese Society of Hepato-Biliary-
	Pancreatic Surgery
2012-2013	President, Korean Society for Transplantation
2013-present	Honorary Professor, Health Sciences University of Mongolia
2014-present	Honorary Professor, National Central Hospital of Mongolia,
	Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia
2014-present	Chair Professor of Surgery, Asan Medical Center, Ulsan
	University Medical School
2015-present	President & CEO, Asan Healthcare System
2015	KAMA US Proudly Award
2015-present	Honorary Member of Japan Surgical Society
2015-present	Honorary Member of European Society of Organ Transplantation
2016	ILTS Distinguished Sevice Award
2017-present	Honorary Professor, Nanjing Medical School, Nanjing, China
2018-present	Doctor of Philosophy, Ph.D., Ulsan University

Lee, Jong-Ho, D.D.S., Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 18, 1957
- Elected Date July 14, 2017
- Specialty Dentistry / Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Oral oncology and Microsurgical reconstruction)
- 1982 Seoul National University College of Dentistry (D.D.S.)
 1982-1985 Intern, Residency program, Department of Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery, Seoul National University Hospital(National Board)
 1983-1991 Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.D., Ph.D.)

1988-1996	Associate Professor, Chonnam National University and Hospital
1993-1994	Visiting Faculty, Eberhardt Karls Universitaet Tuebingen, Germany
1998-1999	Research Fellow, Children's Hospital, Harvard Medical School, USA
2008-2011	President, Korean Incorporated Association for Temporomandibular
	Joint
2012-2014	President, Korean Academy of Infection Control in Dentistry
2013-2015	Director, Korean Society of Oral Cancer
2012-2016	National Delegate, AOCMF(Cranio-Maxillo-Facial Arbeitsgemeinschaft
	für Osteosynthese)
2014-2017	President, Korean Association of Oral & Maxillofacial Surgeons
2017-present	President, Korean Academy of Dental Science
2005-Present	Director, Oral Cancer Center, Clinical Trial Center, Seoul
	National University Dental Hospital
2015-present	Director, Clinical Translational Research Center for Dental Science
1996-present	Professor, Department of Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery, Seoul
	National University and Dental Hospital



Subdivision V

Cho, Jae Yeung, D.Agr.

• Date of Birth	June 18, 1919	
-----------------	---------------	--

- Elected Date August 12, 1981
- Specialty Agronomy Science

1944	Studied at the Faculty of Agriculture, Kyushu Imperial University, Japan
1945-1955	Chief, Upland Crop Department, Crop Experimental Station, Office of Rural Development, Suwon, Korea
1955-1957	Associate Professor, College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1957-1984	Professor, College of Agriculture, Korea University
1957-1965	Director, Experimental Farming Station, Korea University
1963	Graduate School, Korea University (Ph.D.)
1972	The Korea Science and Technology Award
1977-1979	Vice President, Association of Korean Agricultural Science Societies
1977-1979	President, Korean Society of Crop Science
1981-1984	Director, Institute of Food Resources, Korea University
1981-present	Member, The National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea
1982	The Korean Society of Crop Science Distinguished Achievement Award
1983-1985	President, Korean Society of Environmental Agriculture
1984	The National Medal Mokryeonjang
1984-present	Professor Emeritus, Korea University
1991	The Korean Society of Breeding Distinguished Achievement Award

Ohh, Bong Kug, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 28, 1925
- Elected Date August 12, 1981
- Specialty Animal Science

1952	B.S. College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1953-1956	M.S. Graduate School, Seoul National University
1955-1957	M.S. Graduate School, University of Minnesota, U.S.A.
1958-1991	Professor, Dept. of Animal Science, Seoul National University
1965-1968	Ph.D. Graduate School, University of Sydney, Australia
1969-1970	President, The Korean Society of Poultry Association
1972-1976	President, Korean Society of Animal Science
1975	Science Award, The Korean Society of Animal Sciences
1978-1982	Director, Research Institute of Agri. Development, Seoul
	National University
1982	Sakryu Merit of Civil Order
1983-1985	President, Korean Breeding Society
1983-1987	President, Korean Society of Poultry Science
1987-1989	Dean, College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1988-1992	President, The Association of Korean Agricultural Science Societies
1990	Outstanding Achievement Award, University of Minnesota, U.S.A
1991	Moran Merit of Civil Order
1991	Science Award, The National Academy of Sciences
1991-1995	President, East & Pacific Federation, World's Poultry Science
	Association
1991-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
1995-present	Senior Member of Korean Academy of Science and Technology
2008-2010	Director, Natural Sciences Division, the National Academy of
	Sciences

Hong, Sung Gak, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth May 17, 1939
- Elected Date July 7, 1995
- *Specialty* Forestry

1964	Department of Forestry, Seoul National University
1964-1967	Research Assistant at the College of Agriculture, Seoul
	National University
1966	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1968-1974	Research Assistant at the School of Forestry, University of
	Minnesota, U.S.A.
1971	Plant Physiology at the University of Minnesota, U.S.A. (M.S.)
1974	Plant Physiology at the University of Minnesota, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1975	Post Doctorial Fellow at the Laboratory of Plant Cold Hardiness,
	University of Minnesota, U.S.A.
1975-2004	Professor, Konkuk University
1978-1979	Visiting Professor, School of Forestry, University of Minnesota,
	U.S.A.
1990-1998	Vice-President, The Korean Society of Forest Energy
1993-1994	Visiting Professor at Khartoum University, Sudan, Africa
1993-1998	Concurrent Research Official at the Forestry Research Institute,
	Office of Forestry
1994-1994	Visiting Professor at University of Minnesota and University of
	Missouri, U.S.A.
1996-1998	Member, Culture Assets Committee Office of Culture Assets
1996-1998	Head, Institute of Agricultural Resources Development
	Research, Konkuk University
1998-1999	President, Konkuk Academy of Life Science

Lee, Byoung Yil, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 17, 1937
- Elected Date July 14, 2000
- Specialty Horticultural Science

1963	College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1964-1969	Graduate School, The University of Tokyo, Japan
1970-2002	Professor, Seoul National University
1982-1986	Head, Experimental Farm, Seoul National University
1983	Visiting Scientist, The University of Tokyo, Japan
1987-1991	Chairman, Dept. of Horticulture, Seoul National University
1991-1996	President, The Korean Society for Bio-Environment Control
1991-1996	President, The Korean Society for Strawberry Research
1995-1997	President, The Korean Research Society for Protected Horticulture
1995-present	Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology
1996-1998	President, The Korean Society for Horticultural Science
1997-1999	Vice President, The Korean Association of Science Societies for
	Agriculture and Forestry
1998-2000	President, Korean Association of Organic Agriculture
1998-2002	Chairman, The Organizing Committee of the 27th International
	Horticultural Congress
2002-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2006-2013	President Emeritus, Korea Blueberry Association

Kim, Hyun Uk, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 5, 1939
- Elected Date July 11, 2003
- Specialty Animal Food Science

1962	College of Agriculture, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1964	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1965-1971	Instructor, Kangwon University
1968-1971	Graduate School, University of Wisconsin, U.S.A. (M.S.)
1971-1974	Graduate School, University of Wisconsin, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1974-2005	Professor, Seoul National University
1992	Visiting Professor, University of Illinois, U.S.A.
1996	President, The Korean Society of Dairy Science
1998	President, The Korean Society of Animal Science and Technology
2005-present	Emeritus Professor, Seoul National University

Hwang, Byung Kook, Ph.D.

 Date of Birth Elected Date Specialty 	March 3, 1947 July 15, 2005 Plant Pathology
1966-1970	College of Agriculture, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1970-1975	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1977-1981	University of George-August-Göttingen, Germany (Ph.D.)
1981-2012	Professor, College of Life Sciences and Biotechnology, Korea University
1988-1989	Visiting Professor, University of Göttingen, Germany (Research
	Fellow, Alexander von Humboldt Foundation)
1996	Distinguished Research Award from the Korea Science and
	Technology Association
1997	Korea University Distinguished Research Award
1997	The Hwa-Nong Research Award
1997-1999	President, The Korean Society for Molecular Plant-Microbe Interactions
1999-present	Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology
2000-2002	Director, Institute of Life Science & Natural Resources, Korea University

2002	The Korea Society of Plant Pathology Research Award
2002-present	Editor, Journal of Phytopathology
2003-2005	Vice-President, President, The Korean Society of Plant Pathology (KSPP)
2003-present	Fellow, The American Phytopathological Society
2005-present	Member, The National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea
2007	The Sam-il(3.1) Culture Research Award
2008-2011	Distinguished Professor, Hyundai-KIA Natural Sciences, Korea University
2008-present	Editor, PLANTA
2012-present	Professor Emeritus, College of Life Sciences and Biotechnology,
	Korea University
2013	The KSPP Distinguished Service Award
2013-2018	Editor, PeerJ

Yoo, Sun-Ho, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 25, 1934
- Elected Date July 11, 2008
- Specialty Soil Physics

1961	College of Agriculture, Seoul National University (B.S.)
1962-1971	Assistant, Instructor, College of Agriculture, Seoul National
	University
1963	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)
1971	Graduate School, Iowa State University, Ames, Iowa, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)
1971-2000	Assistant Professor, Associate Professor, Professor, College of
	Agriculture, Seoul National University
1985	Soil Science Research Award, Korean Society of Soil Science and Fertilizer
1985-1987	Dean, College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1986-1987	President, Asian Association of Agricultural Colleges and
	Universities
1994-present	Member, Fellow, Senior Fellow, The Korean Academy of Science

	and Technology
1996	President, The Korean Society of Soil Science and Fertilizer
1997	Chairman, Organizing Committee for the 6th Congress of East and Southeast Asian Federation of Soil Science Societies
1997	President, The Korean Society of Agricultural Chemistry
1998	Agriculture and Life Science Research Grand Award, College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, Seoul National University
1998-2000	President, The Korean Association of Societies for Agricultural Sciences
2000	Order of Service Merit (red stripes), Korean Government
2000-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University
2011	Outstanding Alumnus Grand Award, Alumni Association of College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, Seoul National University

Chang, Dong-Suck, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 28, 1940
- *Elected Date* July 10, 2009
- Specialty Fisheries Food Sanitation

1964 1964-1976	Graduated from Pukyong National University (B.S.) Microbiologist, National Fisheries Research and Development
	Agency
1976-2005	Professor, Pukyong National University
1977	Graduate School, Pukyong National University (Ph.D.)
1981-1983	Visiting Professor, Oregon State University, U.S.A.
1992	Nulwon Culture Prize (natural science field) from Nulwon
	Culture Foundation
1992-1993	Visiting Professor, Okayama University, Japan
1999	Won, Jong-Hoon Science Prize from The Korean Fisheries

	Society
1999-2000	President, The Korean Society of Food Hygiene and Safety
2001-2002	President, The Korean Fisheries Society
2001-2003	Director, Division of Agriculture and Fisheries, The Korean
	Academy of Science and Technology
2002	Development prize for the development of fisheries industry
	from Busan metropolitan city / Meritorious award from The
	Korean Society of Food Hygiene and Safety / Iilmek culture
	prize (science field) from Iilmek Culture Foundation
2002-2003	Vice President, Pukyong National University
2004-2005	President, The Korean Society of HACCP Research
2004-2007	President, Association of Korean Fisheries and Marine Science
2005	Meritorious award from The Korean Society of Fisheries Science
2005-present	Professor Emeritus, Pukyong National University

Lee, Hong Suk, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 27, 1932
- *Elected Date* July 8, 2011
- Specialty Crop Science

1956	B.S. from College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1958	M.S. from College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1960-1961	Studied at North Carolina University, U.S.A.
1963-1965	Assistant Professor, Choongnam National University
1967-1969	Ph.D. and Visiting Scientist from Hokkaido University, Japan
1966-1998	Professor, Seoul National University
1978	Post Graduate Courses on the Teaching of Agronomy field,
	India, Tamil Nadu Agriculture University
1978	Outstanding Achievement Award (Korea Society of Crop Science)
1982-1983	Director, Research Institute of Agriculture Development, Seoul

	National University								
1988	Mongnyeon Medal (National Medal of Civil Merit)								
1986-1988	Vice President, Korean Breeding Society								
1990-1992	President, Asian Crop Science Association (ACSA)								
1991-1992	Vice President, Korean Federation of Science and Technology								
	Society								
1991-1993	President, Korean Society of Crop Science								
1992-1994	President, The Association of Korean Agriculture Science Society								
1995-1998	President, The Association of Korean Agriculture and Fishery Sciences								
1998	National Award of the Korean Academy of Science and								
	Technology(Science) ROK								
2009	Award of the National Academy of Science								
1998-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University								

Kim, Yoon Soo, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth August 11, 1949
- *Elected Date* July 11, 2014
- Specialty Wood Biology

1971	Chonnam National University (CNU), B.Agr.							
1976	Graduate School of CNU, M.S. Forest Products.							
1983	Bodenkultur Universitat in Vienna, Austria. Dr. rer. nat. rerum							
1984-2014	Professor at CNU, Gwangju, Korea							
1987-1988	Visiting Scientist, Inst. fur Holzforschung, Munich Univ.,							
	Germany							
1988-1989	Visiting Scientist, Col. Forest Resources, Univ. Maine, U.S.A.							
1991.	Visiting Scientist, Swedish Univ. of Agr. Science, Sweden							
1991-1995	Working party Co-chair, IUFRO							
1993.	Visiting Scientist, CERMAV in CNRS, France							
1997-1998	Visiting Scienst, Forest Research Inst., New Zealand							

1997-2011	Editorial Board, Int. Ass. Wood Anatomists (IAWA) Journal							
1998	Organizer of the 4th. Pacific Regional Wood Anatomy Conference							
1998	Academy Fellow, Int. Academy of Wood Science							
2000	Visiting Scientist, Inst. fur Holzbiologie, Hamburg, Germany							
2001-2005	Deputy Coordinator of IUFRO 5.03.00.							
2001-2003	R&D Program Director, Korea Science and Engineering							
	Foundation							
2002	Academy Fellow, Korean Academy of Science & Technology							
2006-2010	Coordinator, IUFRO 5.03.00							
2006-2008	President, Korean Society of Wood Science and Engineering							
2008-2012	President, Chonnam National University							
2008-2011	Board, Korea Inst. of Sci. & Technol. Evaluation & Planning							
2009-2010	Member, National Council of Science, Rep. of Korea							
2010-Present	Int. Editorial Advisory Member, Journal of Wood Science							
2010-2011	Chairman, National University President's Council							
2011-2013	Advisory Member, National Council of Science, Rep. of Korea							
2011-2018	Science Advisory Board, Inst. of Basic Science (IBS) in Korea							
2012-2013	Visiting Scientist, Faculty of Agriculture, Univ. of Kyoto, Japan							
2013	High-End Foreign Expert, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, China							
2013-2017	Secretary, Int. Academy of Wood Science (IAWS)							
2014	Officer's Cross of the Order of Merit, Germany							
2014	Blue Stripes Order of Service Merit, Republic of Korea							
2014-Present	Professor Emeritus, CNU							
2017-2020	Vice President, Int. Academy of Wood Science (IAWS)							
2017-2020	Vice President, Korean Federation of Science and Technology							
2018-2022	Visiting Prof. of Southwest Forest University, Kunming, PR							
	China							
2019- present	Adjuncture Prof. of Fujian Agriculture and Forestry							
	University(FAFU), Fujian, PR China							

Park, Seung-Woo, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth December 22, 1949
- *Elected Date* July 10, 2015
- Specialty Agricultural Engineering

1967-1971	College of Agriculture, Seoul National University (B.S.)					
1973-1975	Graduate School, Seoul National University (M.S.)					
1978-1981	University of Illinois, U.S.A. (Ph.D.)					
1981-1983	Research Associate, University of Illinois, U.S.A.					
1984-1994	Assistant & Associate Professor, Seoul National University					
1994-2015	Professor, Seoul National University (SNU)					
1992	Visiting Professor, Virginia Polytech & Institute, U.S.A.					
2003	Visiting Professor, University of Kyoto, Japan					
1999-2012	Member, Central Commission for the Stream Management					
2001-2009	Member, The Saemangeum Environmental Protection Measures					
	Committee					
2004	Awarded the Order of Service Merit, Red Stripes, Korea					
2005-2006	President, The Korean Society of Rual Planning					
2012-2015	Director, Research Institute for Green Eco Engineering, SNU					
2009-2015	Member, The Saemangeum Committee					
2015-2018	Senior Researcher, Institute of Green-Bio Sciences & Technology,					
	SNU					
2015-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University					

Choi, Yang-Do, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth March 15, 1953
- *Elected Date* July 10, 2015
- Specialty Agricultural Biotechnology

1976	B.S., College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
1978	M.S., Korea Advanced Institute of Science
1985	Ph.D., Northwestern University, USA
1986-2018	Professor, Seoul National University
2001-2018	Director General, Crop Functional Genomics Center, The 21st Frontier Program of the Korean Ministry of Science
2003-2008	Member, GMO Safety Assessment Review Committee, Korea Food & Drug Administration
2005-present	Member, Korean Academy of Science & Technology
2005-present	Member, Advisory Board for GMO, Consumers Union of Korea
2005-2010	Chairman, Biology Subcommittee of the Korea-Japan Basic
	Science Promotion
2007	Vice President, the Korean Society for Applied Biological
	Chemistry
2008-2010	President, the Korean Society for Plant Biotechnology
2008-2010	Member, BioSafety Committee for Prime Miniter's Office
2009-2012	Member, Korean National Commission for UNESCO
2011	President, Korean Society for Molecular & Cellular Biology
2011-2018	Reviews Editor in Chief, Plant Biotechnology Reports
2011-present	Member, Board of Directors for Consumers Union of Korea
2013-present	Member, Steering Committee for Next-Generation BioGreen 21,
*	Rural Development Administration
2018-present	Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University

Hong, Sung Yun, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth February 28, 1941
- Elected Date July 14, 2017
- Specialty Marine Biology (Zooplankton)

1960-1966	Graduated from Pukyong National University (B.S.)
1966-1968	Graduated from Pukyong National University (M.S.)
1970-1972	Fulbright Scholarship Student at UCSD and USC, U.S.A.
1983-1987	University of Liverpool, U.K. (Ph.D.)
1996	Dean, College of Marine Science and Technology, PKNU
1997-1998	President, The Korean Society of Underwater Sci. and
	Technol.
1997-1998	President, The Korean Society of Oceanography
1998-1990	Editor in Chief, "Korean Journal of Fisheries Sciences"
2003-2004	Dean, Graduate School, Pukyong National University
1969-2007	Professor, Pukyong National University
2010-2011	Technical Consultant (Indonesia), Korea National Research
	Foundation
2003-2004	Editor in Chief, "Korean Journal of Fisheries Sciences"
2003-2004	Editor-in-Chief, "Fisheries and Aquatic Sciences"
2014-2018	Managing Editor, "Fisheries and Aquatic Science", Kor. Fish.
	Soc.
2007-present	Professor Emeritus, Pukyong National University
2017-present	Member, The National Academy of Sciences, Republic of Korea

Kim, Su il, Docteur Es Sciences Naturelles

- Date of Birth January 4, 1943
- *Elected Date* July 12, 2019
- Specialty Agro-Biological Chemistry

1961-1965	College	of	Agriculture,	Seoul	National	University	(BS)	3)

- 1965-1969 Graduate School, Seoul National University (MS)
- 1969-1969 Assistant, Instructor, College of Agriculture, Seoul National University
- 1970-1973 Researcher, Division of Food Resources and Technology, Korean
| | Institute of Science and Technology |
|--------------|---|
| 1973-1984 | Professor, College of Engineering, Ajou University |
| 1974-1978 | Universite Pierre et Marie Curie (Docteur Es Sciences Naturelles) |
| 1977-1978 | Research Fellow, Laboratoire d'Etude des Proteines, |
| | CNRA, Versailles, France |
| 1984-2008 | Professor, College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, Seoul |
| | National University |
| 1992 | The HwaNong Research Award, HwaNong Foundation, Korea |
| 1994-1995 | Visiting Professor, Institut National Agronomique |
| | Paris-Grignong, France |
| 1994-present | Senior Member, The Korean Academy of Science and Technology |
| 1995 | Distinguished Research Award, The Korean Federation of |
| | Science and Technology |
| 1998-2000 | Adjunct Senior Scientist, Rural Development Administration, |
| | Korea |
| 1999-2006 | Director, BK21 Division of Agricultural Biotechnology, SNU |
| 2002-2003 | President, The Korean Society for Applied Biological Chemistry |
| 2008 | Order of Service Merit (red stripes), Korean Government |
| 2008-present | Professor Emeritus, Seoul National University |
| 2014-2017 | Director, Research Center for Marine Biotechnology, Junnam |
| | Bioindustry Foundation, Korea |
| 2019-present | Member, The National Academy of Sciences, Korea |

List of Honorary Members

Noyori, Ryoji, Dr. Eng.

- Date of Birth September 3, 1938
- Elected Date March 11, 2005
- Specialty Organometallic Chemistry

1961	Bachelor, Kyoto University
1963	Master, Kyoto University
1963-1968	Instructor, Kyoto University
1967	Dr. Eng., Kyoto University
1968-1972	Associate Professor, Nagoya University
1969-1970	Postdoctoral Fellow, Harvard University
1972-2003	Professor, Nagoya University
1993	Tetrahedron Prize (UK), Asahi Prize (Japan)
1995	Japan Academy Prize
1997	Arthur C. Cope Award (American Chemical Society)
1997-1999	Dean, Graduate School of Science, Nagoya University
1998	Person of Cultural Merit (Japanese Government)
1999	King Faisal International Prize for Science (Saudi Arabia)
2000	Order of Culture (Japanese Government)
2001	Wolf Prize in Chemistry (Israel), Roger Adams Award
	(American Chemical Society), Nobel Prize in Chemistry
	(Sweden)
2002-2003	President, The Chemical Society of Japan
2002-present	Member, The Japan Academy
2003-present	University Professor, Nagoya University
2003-2015	President, RIKEN (2015- RIKEN Fellow)
2005-2015	Chair, Science and Technology Council, Ministry of

	Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology
2006-2008	Chair, Education Rebuilding Council
2010	Lomonosov Large Gold Medal (Russian Academy of
	Sciences)
2015-present	Director-General, Center for Research and Development
	Strategy (CRDS), Japan Science and Technology Agency
	(JST)
2015-present	Director, Science Museum, Japan Science Foundation
2018-present	Chairperson of Section II, The Japan Academy

Nagakura, Saburo, D. Sc.

- Date of Birth October 3, 1920
- *Elected Date* March 11, 2005
- Specialty Physical Chemistry

1943	B.Sc., Tokyo Imperial University
1949-1959	Associate Professor, The University of Tokyo
1953	D.Sc., The University of Tokyo
1955-1956	Visiting Researcher, Laboratory of Molecular Structure and
	Spectroscopy, The University of Tokyo
1956-1957	Visiting Researcher, Mathematical Institute, Oxford
1959-1981	Professor, The University of Tokyo
1961-1981	Head of Physical Organic Chemistry Laboratory, The Institute
	of Physical and Chemical Research
1966	Awarded the Prize of Chemical Society of Japan
1971	Awarded the Asahi Prize
1978	Awarded the Japan Academy Prize
1979	Member of International Academy of Quantum Molecular
	Science
1981-1983	President of the International Union of Pure and Applied

	Chemistry (IUPAC)
1981-1987	Director General, Institute for Molecular Science
1983	Member of Deutsche Akademie der Naturforscher Leopoldina
1984	Member of the Japan Academy, President of the Chemical
	Society of Japan
1985	A Person of Cultural Merit
1985-1988	President, Okazaki National Research Institute
1988	Honorary Member of Chinese Chemical Society
1988-1995	President, Graduate University for Advanced Studies
1989	Foreign Fellow of Indian National Science Academy,
	Honorary Member of the Royal Institution (London)
1990	Awarded Order of Culture, Foreign Member of the Royal
	Swedish Academy of Sciences
1991	Honorary Member of Chemical Society of Japan
1993-2001	President, Japanese Center for International Studies in Ecology
1994	Honorary Fellow of Indian Academy of Sciences, Honorary
	Doctor of Science Degree of the University of Nebraska
1995	Decorated with the First Order of the Sacred Treasure, Honorary
	Foreign Member of the Korean Academy of Science and
	Technology
1995-2003	Chairman, Kanagawa Academy of Science and Technology
1996	Awarded the Jawaharal Nehru Birth Centenary Medal
1997	Awarded the JHeyrovsky Medal
1998	Member of the third World Academy of Sciences
2000-2001	Chairperson of Section II, The Japan Academy
2001	Vice President, The Japan Academy
2001	Titular Member of the European Academy of Arts, Sciences
	and Humanities
2001-2007	President, The Japan Academy

Jan Eric Lindsten, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth January 23, 1935
- Elected Date March 11, 2005
- Specialty Human Cytogenetics

1956	B.Sc. Uppsala University, Uppsala, Sweden
1963	Ph.D. Karolinska Institutet, Stockholm, Sweden
1969	M.D. Karolinska Institutet, Stockholm, Sweden
1967-1969	Professor, Human Genetics at Aarhus University, Aarhus,
	Denmark
1970-2000	Professor, Medical Genetics at Karolinska Institutet
1970-1990	Founder and head of the Department of Clinical Genetics at the
	Karolinska Hospital, Stockholm, Sweden
1975-present	Member of The Royal Swedish Academy of Sciences
1979-1990	Secretary general of the Medical Nobel Committee and Nobel
	Assembly at Karolinska Institutet, Member of the Board of the
	Nobel Foundation, Stockholm, Sweden
1987-1990	Chief physician, The Karolinska Hospital
1990-1994	Chief Executive Officer, The Karolinska Hospital
1994-1996	Chief Executive Officer, The National University Hospital,
	Copenhagen, Denmark
1996-1998	Dean of the Medical Faculty, Karolinska Institutet
2003-2006	President, The Royal Swedish Academy of Sciences

Jürgen Kocka, MA, Dr. phil., Dr. h.c.mult.

- Date of Birth April 19, 1941
- Elected Date March 12, 2010
- *Specialty* History of Modern Germany and Europe, Social History, Comparative History

1960-1967	Studies of History, German Literature and Political Science
1965	in Marburg, Vienna, Chapel Hill, N.C., and Berlin M.A. in Political Science, University of North Carolina,
1905	Chapel Hill
1968	Dr. phil. in History, Free University Berlin
1973-1988	Professor for History (Social History), University of Bielefeld
1983-1988	Director of the Center for Interdisciplinary Research (ZiF),
	University of Bielefeld
1985-present	Member ('85-'15) International Advisory Board, Chair of the Senate ('16-) of the Swedish Collegium for Advanced Study (SCAS)
1988	Honorary Doctorate Erasmus University Rotterdam
1988-2009	Professor of History of the Industrial World at Free
	University Berlin
1990-1992	Member, German Science Council (Wissenschaftsrat)
1990-2000	Permanent Fellow, Wissenschaftskolleg zu Berlin
1992	Leibniz Prize, German Research Council
1992-1996	Founding Director, Center for Research on Contemporary
	History, Potsdam
1993-2009	Director, Center for Comparative Social
	History/Comparative History of Europe at Free University of Berlin and Humboldt- University Berlin
2000	Honorary Doctorate University Uppsala
2000-2005	President, International Committee of the Historical
	Sciences/Comitè International des Sciences Historiques (CISH)
2001-2007	President, Social Science Research Centre Berlin
2002-2008	Member, Research Council, European University Institute Florence
2003	Honorary Doctorate, Russian Academy of Sciences, Moscow
2003-2009	Member, Board, German Israeli Foundation (GIF)
2007-2009	Research Professor, Social Science Research Centre Berlin
2008-2011	Vice-President, Berlin-Brandenburg Academy of Sciences
2009	Distinguished Service Medal First Class of the Federal

	Republic of Germany
2010	Honorary Doctorate European University Institute Florence
2011	Honorary Doctorate State University for the Humanities
	Moscow
2011	International Holberg Prize (Bergen)
2012	Honorary Fellow, St Antony's College Oxford
2014-2018	Chair, Senate of the Swedish Collegium for Advanced
	Study, Uppsala
2009-present	Permanent Fellow, International Research Center for "Work and Human Life Course in Global History - Rework",
	Humboldt University Berlin
2009-present	Senior Fellow, Center for Research on Contemporary
2007 present	History, Potsdam
2014-present	Co-director of the research project "History of the Max
	Planck Society 1948-2002/05", Berlin
2016-present	Member, Senate of the Austrian Academy of Sciences, Vienna

Jan Drewes Achenbach, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth Jan 9, 1937

• Specialty Aeronautics and Astronautics

1953-1959	Aeronautical engineering, Technische Hogeschool, Delft, Netherlands
1959-1962	Aeronautics and Astronautics, Stanford University
1962	Ph.D., Stanford University
1963-1981	Assistant Professor / Associate Professor / Professor, Civil
	Engineering, Northwestern University
1981-present	Walter P. Murphy Professor Emeritus, Departments of Civil and
	Environmental Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, and
	Engineering Science and Applied Mathematics, Northwestern

	University
1975	ASEE Curtis W. McGraw Research Award, ASEE
1982	Member, National Academy of Engineering
1992	Member, National Academy of Sciences
1992	Timoshenko Medal, American Society of Mechanical Engineers
1994	Fellow, American Academy of Arts and Sciences
1996	McDonnell-Douglas Model of Excellence Award,
1997	Distinguished Service Award, American Academy of Mechanics
1999	Corresponding Member, Royal Dutch Academy of Arts and
	Sciences
2001	William Prager Medal, Society of Engineering Science
2002	Honorary Member, American Society of Mechanical Engineers
2003	U.S. National Medal of Technology
2004	Tutorial Citation Award, American Society for Nondestructive
	Testing
2005	SPIE-NDE Lifetime Achievement Award
2005	U.S. National Medal of Science
2009	Raymond D. Mindlin Medal, American Society of Civil
	Engineers
2009-2013	World Class Universities Fellow, Korean Sc. Found.
2010	Honorary Foreign Member, Nat. Ac. of Sciences Republic of
	Korea
2010	Member Academia Europaea
2010	Theodore von Karman Medal, American Society of Civil
	Engineers
2011	Honorary Doctorate, Zhejiang University, China
2012	ASME Medal
2013	Honorary Professor, Beijing Inst. of Technology

Christian Starck, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	Jan 9, 1937
• Elected Date	March 9, 2012
• Specialty	Constitutional Law, Comparativ Public Law, Jurisprudence
1971-2004	o. Professor, Juristische Fakultät der Universität Göttingen
1963	Dr. iur. utr. Universität Würzburg
1964-1967	Scientific collaborator Federal Constitutional Court
1969	Habilitation für Öffentliches Recht und Rechtsphilosophie, Universität Würzburg
1971-present	o. Professor des öffentlichen Rechts Universität Göttingen
1978-2006	Co-Editor of Juristenzeitung
1981-2003	Member of Executive Committee (since foundation), the International Association of Constitutional Law (IACL)
1982	Member, The Academy of Sciences Göttingen
1987	Visiting Professor, Université Paris I Panthéon-Sorbonne
1989	Visiting Professor, Nanjing University
1990-1991	Fellow Wissenschaftskolleg (=Institute for Advanced Studies) Berlin
1991 - 2006	Justice of the Constitutional Court of Lower Saxony
1993-2003	Vice president, the International Association of Constitutional Law (IACL)
2003-2007	President, the Societas Iuris Publici Europaei
2004-present	Honorary President, the International Association of Constitutional Law (IACL)
2005-present	Emeritus Professor, Juristische Fakultät der Universität Göttingen.
2007-present	Honorary President, the Societas Iuris Publici Europaei
2008-2012	President, Mitglied der Akademie der Wissenschaften zu Göttingen
2010-present	Corresponding Member of the Real Academia de Jurisprudencia y Legislación (Madrid)
2011	Visiting Professor, Taipei University

Sugimura, Takashi, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth April 20, 1926
- *Elected Date* March 9, 2012
- Specialty Biochemistry, Oncology

1949	M.D., The University of Tokyo
1957	Ph.D., The University of Tokyo
1962-1972	Chief, Biochemistry Division, National Cancer Center Research
	Institute, Tokyo
1970-1985	Professor, Institute of Medical Science, The University of Tokyo
1974-1984	Director, National Cancer Center Research Institute, Tokyo
1976	Japan Academy Prize and Imperial Prize
1978	A Person of Cultural Merit
1978	Order of Culture
1981	The Ernst W. Bertner Memorial Award, U.S.A.
1982	Foreign Associate of the National Academy of Sciences, U.S.A.
1982-present	Member of the Japan Academy
1987	Foreign Member of the Royal Netherlands Academy of Arts and
	Sciences
1987	Foreign Member of the Royal Swedish Academy of Sciences
1994-2000	President, Toho University
1996	Officier de l'Ordre National du Mérote. France
1997	The Japan Prize
2001-2007	Chairperson of Section II, The Japan Academy
2007-2013	Vice President, The Japan Academy
2013-2016	President, The Japan Academy

Peter Gruss, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	June 28, 1949
• Elected Date	March 15, 2013
• Specialty	Molecular Cell Biology
1968	University entrance diploma
1968-1974	Study of biology, Technical University Darmstadt
1973-1974	Diploma, Institute of Microbiology, Darmstadt
1974-1977	Institute of Virus Research, German Cancer Research Center, Heidelberg
1977	Doctorate, magna cum laude, University of Heidelberg
1977-1978	Postdoctoral Assistant at the Institute of Virus Research, German Cancer Research Center, Heidelberg
1978-1982	Postdoctoral Fellow, Laboratory of Molecular Virology, National Cancer Institute, NIH, Bethesda, Maryland, USA
1982-1986	Associate Professor of Microbiology, University of Heidelberg
1983-1986	Member of the Directorate of the Center for Molecular Biology, University of Heidelberg (ZMBH)
1986-2002	Director (Department of Molecular Cell Biology), Max Planck Institute for Biophysical Chemistry, Göttingen
1990-present	Honorary Professor, University of Göttingen
1992	Feldberg Lecture Award
1992-2000	Delegate, the EMBL Council
1993-1997	President of the International Society of Developmental Biology
1994	Leibniz Prize awarded by the German Research Foundation (DFG)
1995-present	Member of the German Academy of Natural Scientists "Leopoldina"
	Member of the Academia Europaea (European Academy of
	Sciences)
	Member of the American Academy of Arts and Sciences
	Member of the New York Academy of Sciences

1995	The Louis-Jeantet-Prize for Medicine, Geneve
1995	Carus Medal of the German Academy of Natural Scientists
	Leopoldina, Halle
1996	Member of the Academy of Sciences in Göttingen
1999	The German President's Prize for Technology and
	Innovation
2000-2002	President, the EMBL Council
2002-2014	President of the Max Planck Society
2003	Member of the American Academy of Arts and Sciences
2007	National Award for International Science and Technology of
	China
2009	Order of Merit of the Federal Republic of Germany - Cross
	of Merit, First class
2012	Ellis Island Medal of Honor
2012	Bavarian Maximilian Order for Science and Art
2017-present	President of Okinawa Institute for Science and Technology (OIST)
2017	Harnack Medal of the Max Planck Society

Shiono, Hiroshi, Ph.D.

• Date of Birth	June	13,	1931
-----------------	------	-----	------

- *Elected Date* March 13, 2015
- Specialty Administrative Law

1956	Graduated from Faculty of Law, The University of Tokyo (B.A.)
1963	Associate Professor, Faculty of Law, The University of Tokyo
1973	Professor, Faculty of Law, The University of Tokyo
1986	Dean, Faculty of Law, The University of Tokyo
1992	Professor, Faculty of Law, Seikei University

1992-present	Emeritus Professor, The University of Tokyo
1998	Medal with Purple Ribbon, Japanese Government
1999-present	Member of the Japan Academy
2000	Professor, Graduate School of Integrated Science and Art,
	University of East Asia
2009	A Person of Cultural Merit
2012-2013	Chairperson of Section I of the Japan Academy
2013-2016	Vice President of the Japan Academy
2015	Order of Culture
2016-present	President of the Japan Academy

Roger N. Beachy, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 4, 1944
- *Elected Date* March 11, 2016
- Specialty Agricultural Technology

1966	B.A. in Science, Goshen College, Goshen, IN
1972	Ph.D. Plant Pathology/Molecular Virology, Michigan State
	University, MI
1972-1978	Post-doctoral researcher at University of Arizona, Cornell
	University
1978-1991	Assistant, Associate and Full Professor, Department of
	Biology, Washington University in St. Louis, MO.
1987	Fellow, American Association for the Advancement of Science
1990	Ruth Allen Award, American Phytopathological Society
1991-1998	Professor of Cell Biology and Director of Program in Plant
	Sciences, The Scripps Research Institute, La Jolla, CA
1997	Elected Member, National Academy of Sciences, US
1999-2009	Founding Director, Donald Danforth Plant Science Center,
	St. Louis, MO
2000	Dennis Hoagland Award, American Society for Plant Biology

2001	Laureate, Wolf Prize for Agriculture
2008	Foreign Fellow National Academy of Sciences, India
2009	Foreign Associate, The World Academy of Sciences
2009	Foreign Fellow, Indian National Science Academy, Delhi
2009-2011	Director, National Institute of Food and Agriculture, and
	Chief Scientific Officer, US Department of Agriculture
2010	Peter Raven Lifetime Achievement Award
2011	Ind. Achievement Award, DBN Co., Beijing
2013	Founding Director, Global Institute for Food Security,
	University of Saskatchewan, Saskatoon, Canada
2014-2015	Founding Executive Director World Food Center, University
	of California, Davis, CA
2014-present	Professor, Department of Biology, Washington University, St.
	Louis, MO
2014-present	Chief Science Officer and Chair, Science Advisory Board,
	Indigo Agriculture, Boston, MA
2014-present	Chief Science Officer, Kultevat, Inc., St. Louis, MO

Harold Vincent Poor, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth October 2 1951
- *Elected Date* March 15 2017
- Specialty Electrical Engineering and Computer Science

1972	Bachelor's (EE), Auburn University
1977	Ph.D. (EECS), Princeton University
1977-1981	Assist. Professor, Electrical & Computer Engineering and in
	the Coordinated Science Lab, the University of Illinois
1981-1984	Assoc. Professor, Electrical & Computer Engineering and in
	the Coordinated Science Lab, the University of Illinois

1984-1990 Professor, Electrical & Computer Engineering and in the Coordinated Science Lab, the University of Illinois

1988-1990	Professor in the Beckman Institute for Advanced Science &
	Technology, the University of Illinois
1989-1990	Beckman Associate in the Illinois Center for Advanced
	Study, the University of Illinois
1990-present	Professor of Electrical Engineering, Princeton University
2001	National Academy of Engineering, US
2002	Guggenheim Fellowship (Guggenheim Foundation)
2002	Director's Award (US NSF)
2003-2005	George Van Ness Lothrop Prof. in Engineering
2005-present	Michael Henry Strater University Professor, Princeton
	University
2005	American Academy of Arts & Sciences
2005	James H. Mulligan, Jr., Education Medal (IEEE)
2006-2016	Dean of Engineering & Applied Science, Princeton University
2009	International Fellow of Royal Academy of Engineering, UK
2010	Ambrose Fleming Medal (IET)
2011	National Academy of Sciences, US
2013	Academia Europaea
2013	Corresponding Fellow of Royal Society of Edinburgh
2014	Royal Society, UK
2014	Booker Gold Medal (URSI)
2015	Fellow of TWAS
2015	National Academy of Inventors, US
2016	John Fritz Medal (AAES)
2017	Alexander Graham Bell Medal (IEEE)
2017	Foreign Member of National Academy of Engineering of
	Korea
2017	Foreign Member of Chinese Academy of Sciences

Jaegwon Kim, Ph.D.

- Date of Birth September 12 1934
- *Elected Date* March 16 2018
- Specialty Philosophy

1953	Entered Seoul National University
1958	Dartmouth College, A.B., summa cum laude
1961	Princeton University, 1958-61. Ph.D. (Philosophy)
1961-present	Member of Philosophy of Science Association
1962	Member of American Philosophical Association; elected
1963-1967	president of the Central Division, 1987-88
	Assistant Professor of Philosophy, Brown University
1967-1970	Associate Professor of Philosophy, The University of Michigan
1971-1988	Professor of Philosophy, The University of Michigan (Roy
	Wood Sellars Professor of Philosophy, 1986-88; the department
	chair, 1971-87)
1979-1987	Chairman, Department of Philosophy, The University of
	Michigan
1970-1971	Associate Professor of Philosophy, Cornell University
1987-2014	William Herbert Perry Faunce Professor of Philosophy,
	Brown University
1977-1978	Professor of Philosophy, Johns Hopkins University
1970-1971	Co-editor, Philosophical Review
1974-present	Board of Consulting Editors, Grazer Philosophische Studien
1978-1983	Member of the American Council for Philosophical Studies
1981-2014	Editorial Board, Philosophy and Phenomenological Research
1987-present	Board of Editorial Consultants, Philosophical Papers
1991-1999	Chair, Department of Philosophy, Brown University
1999-2005	Co-editor, Noûs
2002	Associate Editor, the Macmillan Encyclopedia of Philosophy, 2nd edition

2014-present	Emeritus William Perry Faunce Professor of Philosophy
2001	The KBS Compatriot Prize
2002	The Seowoo Philosophy Prize
2014	The Kyung-Ahm Prize (the Humanities and Social Science
	Division)
2017	The "Pride of Seoul National University" award

Former Presidents and Vice-Presidents

Former Presidents

Term	Name
1st to 6th	Yun, II Sun
7th to 17th	Yi, Pyong Do
18th	Shin, Tai Whan
19th to 21st	Shim, Chong Supp
22nd & 23rd	Suh, Ton Kak
24th & 25th	Kwon, E Hyock
26th & 27th	Lee, Hyun Jae
28th & 29th	Lee, Ho Wang
30th & 31st	Kim, Tae Kil
32nd & 33rd	Kim, Sang-Joo
34th	Park, Young-Sik
35th & 36th	Kwun, Sook II

Former Vice-Presidents

Term	Name
1st to 3rd	Yi, Pyong Do; Choi, Kyu Nam
4th	Yi, Pyong Do; Ahn, Tong Hyuk
5th & 6th	Choi, Hyun Bae; Ahn, Tong Hyuk
7th & 8th	Lee, Hi Seung; Ahn, Tong Hyuk
9th & 10th	Shin, Sok Ho; Ahn, Tong Hyuk
11th & 12th	Lee, Hi Seung; Ahn, Tong Hyuk
13th to 17th	Lee, Hi Seung; Park, Tong Kil
18th	Lee, Min Jai
19th to 21st	Zo, Ki Zun
22nd & 23rd	Kim, Zae Geun
24th & 25th	Cha, Chu Whan
26th & 27th	Kim, Chang Whan
28th & 29th	Kim, Tae Kil
30th & 31st	Ju, Jin Soon
32nd & 33rd	Park, Young-Sik
34th	Kwun, Sook-II
35th	Lee, Song Mu
36th	Kim, Dong Ki

Former Presidents



Yun, Il Sun President, 1st~6th (1954. 07. 17~1960. 06. 27)



Yi, Pyong Do President, 7th~17th (1960. 06. 28~1981. 08. 24)



Shin, Tai Whan President, 18th (1981. 08. 25~1983. 07. 08)



Shim, Chong Supp President, 19th~21st (1983. 07. 09~1988. 08. 25)



Suh, Ton Kak President, 22nd~23rd (1988. 08. 26~1992. 08. 25)



Kwon, E Hyock President, 24th~25th (1992. 08. 26~1996. 08. 25)



Lee, Hyun Jae President, 26th~27th (1996. 08. 26~2000. 08. 25)



Lee, Ho Wang President, 28th~29th (2000. 08. 26~2004. 08. 25)



Kim, Tae-Kil President, 30th~31st (2004. 08. 26~2008. 08. 25)



Kim, Sang-Joo President, 32nd~33rd (2008. 08. 26~2012. 08. 25)



Park, Young-Sik President, 34th (2012. 08. 26~2013. 11. 23)



Kwun, Sook II President, 35th~36th (2014. 04. 01~2018. 03. 31)

Deceased Members

Humanities & Social Sciences Division

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
Subdivision I	Kim, Helen	1899. 02. 27.	Philosophy	1954. 07. 28. \sim 1957. 04. 24.
	Lee, Chong Wu	1903. 08. 24.	Philosophy	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1974. 05. 03.
	Kim, Ki Sok	1905. 09. 13.	Philosophy	1954.04.06. \sim 1974.11.21.
	Park, Chong Hong	1903. 07. 01.	Philosophy	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1976. 03. 17.
	Lee, Sang Eun	1905. 07. 19.	Oriental Philosophy	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1976. 12 .29.
	Kim, Dong Hwa	1902. 08. 30.	Philosophy of Buddhism	1974. 06. 21. \sim 1980. 04. 05.
	Kim, Du Hon	1903. 12. 27.	Ethics	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1981. 10 .22.
	Choi, Jae Hui	1914. 08. 23.	Philosophy	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1984. 05. 04.
	Paik, L. George	1896. 03. 09.	History of Religion	1983, 02, 18, \sim 1985, 01, 13,
	Yoo, Hyung Jin	1926. 03. 05.	National Ethics	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1985. 06. 10.
	Rim, Han Young	1914. 03. 09.	Philosophy of Education	1981, 08, 12, \sim 1985, 03, 08, 1986, 02, 17, \sim 1986, 12, 24,
	Lee, In Ki	1907. 06. 01.	Education	1966, 04, 23, \sim 1987, 06, 28,
	Auh, Chun Suk	1901. 11. 12.	Pedagogy	1976, 06, 30, \sim 1987, 10, 31,
	Kim, Ke Sook	1905. 05. 09.	Philosophy	1960, 04, 25, \sim 1989, 01, 12,
	Kim, Sung Tae	1925. 08. 30.	Psychology	1985, 01, 28, \sim 1989, 01, 27, 1989, 03, 28, \sim 1991, 04, 28,
	Lee, Eui Chol	1913. 09. 12.	Psychology	1980, 07, 21, \sim 1995, 04, 30,
	Kim, Choon Sup	1913. 08. 01.	Philosophy	1976, 06, 30, \sim 1998, 07, 20,
	An, Ho Sang	1902. 01. 23.	Philosophy	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1999. 02. 21.
	Zoh, Jo Han	1926. 03. 06.	Aesthetics	1985, 01, 28, \sim 2002, 03, 04,
	Chung, Yang Eun	1923. 03. 13.	Psychology	1992, 04, 14, \sim 2004, 02, 08,
	Koh, Hyoung Kon	1906. 04. 16.	Philosophy	1954, 04, 06, \sim 2004, 06, 25.
	Yoon, Myong Ro	1922. 05. 03.	Western Philosophy	1986. 07. 26. \sim 2005. 10. 06.
	Kim, Jong Chol	1923. 10. 06.	Educational Administration	1990. 04. 20. \sim 2005. 12. 01.
	Suhr, Myong Won	1919. 10. 27.	Educational Administration	1981. 08. 12. \sim 2006. 04. 14.
	Kim, Choongyeal	1931. 03. 20.	Chinese Philosophy	2006. 07. 14. \sim 2008. 03. 04.
	Kim, Tae Kil	1920. 11. 15.	Ethics	1985. 01. 28. \sim 2009. 05. 27.
	Lew, Seung Kook	1923. 02. 17.	Eastern Philosophy	1977. 06. 30. \sim 2011. 02. 27.
	Park, Young Sik	1934. 01. 26.	Analytic Philosophy	1999. 07. 09. \sim 2013. 11. 23.
	Kim, Kyu Young	1925. 11. 11.	Western Philosophy	1981. 08. 12. ~ 2016. 01. 03.

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
Subdivision	Lee, Yang Ha	1904. 08. 24.	English Literature	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1963, 11, 29,
	Lee, Byong Ki	1891. 03. 08.	Korean Literature	1954.07.28. \sim 1968.11.29.
	Kim, Yun Kyong	1894. 05. 28.	Korean Language	1954, 07. 28. \sim 1969, 02. 04.
	Choi, Hyun Bae	1894. 10. 19.	Korean Language	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1970, 03, 20,
	Cho, Yun Je	1902. 03. 24.	Korean Literature	1969. 07. 03. \sim 1976. 04. 10.
	Yang, Ju Dong	1903. 03. 24.	Korean Literature	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1977, 02, 04,
	Chung, Byong Wuk	1922. 03. 25.	Korean Literature	1981.08.12. \sim 1982.10.12.
	Jeong, In Seung	1897. 05. 19.	Korean Language	1966. 04. 23. \sim 1986. 07. 07.
	Lee, Hi Seung	1897. 04. 23.	Korean Language	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1989, 11, 27,
	Kim, Dong Uk	1922. 02. 19.	Korean Literature	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1990. 01. 29.
	Cha, Sang Won	1910. 06. 10.	Chinese Literature	1970. 06. 30. \sim 1990. 11. 29.
	Lee, Sung Nyong	1908. 06. 07.	Korean Linguistics	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1994, 02, 02,
	Chang, Duk Soon	1921. 07. 09.	Korean Literature	1991. 04. 09. \sim 1996. 08. 21.
	Kim, Hyon Gyu	1911. 07. 21.	Korean Linguistics	1970, 06, 30, \sim 1996, 12, 06,
	Tong, Wan	1922. 05. 21.	Russian Linguistics	1989. 03. 28. \sim 1997. 08. 17.
	Lee, Ka Won	1917. 06. 01.	Korean Literature	1997. 07. 11. \sim 2000. 11. 09.
	Kwon, Joong Whi	1905. 03. 09.	English Literature	1954, 04, 06, \sim 2003, 09, 08,
	Son, Wou Sung	1904. 12. 06.	French Literature	1966, 04, 23, \sim 2006, 05, 19,
	Lee, Neung Wou	1920. 02. 04.	Korean Classical Literature	1986, 07, 26, \sim 2006, 08, 28,
	Cha, Chu Whan	1920. 12. 07.	Chinese Literature	1977. 06. 30. \sim 2008. 12. 02.
	Cho, Sung Shik	1922. 09. 02.	English Linguistics	1981, 08, 12, \sim 2009, 12, 23,
	Kang, Tou Shik	1927. 03. 25.	German Literature	1981. 08. 12. \sim 2013. 08. 01.
	Yoh, Suk Kee	1922. 03. 06.	English Literature	1977. 06. 30. \sim 2014. 06. 12.
	Kim, Hyun Chang	1935. 12. 29	Spanish Literature	1998, 07, 10, \sim 2016, 05, 30,
	Kim, Yong Jik	1932. 11. 30	Modern Korean Literature	2002, 06, 12, \sim 2017, 03, 14,
Subdivision III	Lee, Son Keun	1905. 05. 12.	Korean History	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1957, 04, 24,
	Lee, Hong Sik	1909. 08. 29.	Korean History	1960, 04, 25, \sim 1970, 05, 18,
	Hong, I Sop	1914. 12. 06.	Korean History	1967. 07. 04. \sim 1974. 03. 04.
	Kim, Sang Ki	1901. 11. 16.	Asian History	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1977, 03, 22,
	Cho, Ui Sol	1906. 06. 29.	Western History	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1978, 10, 16,
	Shin, Sok Ho	1904. 01. 22.	Korean History	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1981, 02, 13,
	Kim, Chol Choon	1923. 04. 15.	Korean Ancient History	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1989. 01. 17.
	Yi, Pyong Do	1896. 08. 14.	Korean History	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1989, 08, 14,
	Kim, Che Won	1909. 02. 22.	Archaeology	1954, 07, 28, \sim 1990, 04, 12,
	Kim, Won Yong	1922. 08. 24.	Archaeology	1981, 08, 12, \sim 1993, 11, 14,
	Ryu, Hong Ryeol	1911. 03. 21.	Korean History	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1995. 06. 14.
	Han, Woo Keun	1915. 12. 05.	Korean History	1974, 06, 21, \sim 1999, 09, 28,
	Min, Suk Hong	1925. 08. 11.	Western History	1988, 11, 08, ~ 2001, 07, 22,

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
	Lee, Chan	1923. 01. 24.	Human Geography	1989. 03. 28. ~ 2003. 01. 11.
	Yang, Byung Woo	1923. 12. 07.	Western History	1998, 07, 10, \sim 2003, 02, 07,
	Koh, Byong Ik	1924. 03. 05.	East Asian History	1970, 06, 30, \sim 2004, 05, 19,
	Lee, Ki Baik	1924. 10. 21.	Korean History	1979. 07. 04. \sim 2004. 06. 02.
	Minn, Young Gyu	1915. 01. 19.	Korean History	1999, 07, 09, \sim 2005, 02, 01,
	Lee, Kwang Rin	1924. 08. 29.	Korean History	1981, 08, 12, \sim 2006, 04, 11,
	Youn, Moo Byong	1924. 02. 09.	Archaeology	1991, 04, 09, \sim 2010, 08, 05,
	Hwang, Su Young	1918. 06. 10.	Art History	1994, 07. 08. \sim 2011. 02. 01.
	Lee, Du Hyun	1924. 04. 02.	Korean Folklore & Cultural Anthropology	1982, 06, 10, \sim 2013, 08, 17.
	Lee, Woo Sung	1925. 05. 08	Korean History	1992, 07. 31. \sim 2017, 05, 12.
	Chun, Hae Jong	1919.07.02	East Asian History	1977.06.30.~ 2018.01.05.
	Lee, Song Mu	1937.09.26	Korean History (Choson Period)	2005.07.15.~ 2018.01.29.
Subdivision IV	Kim, Pyong Ro	1887. 12. 15.	Law	1958, 07, 15, \sim 1964, 01, 13,
	Lee, Jong Kuk	1907.11.9.	Law	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1966. 04. 22.
	Ko, Byong Gook	1909. 01. 12.	Law	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1976, 05, 07.
	Chung, Kwang Hyon	1902. 05. 03.	Law	1966, 04, 23, \sim 1978, 04, 22,
	Lee, Geun Chil	1910. 01. 03.	Law	1954.04.06. \sim 1978.06.24.
	Yu, Ki Chon	1915. 07. 05.	Criminal Law	1968, 07. 21. \sim 1980, 07. 20.
	Park, Won Sun	1907. 01. 05.	Commercial Law	1966, 04, 23, \sim 1986, 06, 01.
	Yu, Chin O	1906. 05. 13.	Constitutional Law	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1987, 08, 30,
	Kim, Chung Han	1920. 06. 05.	Civil Law	1987. 08. 28. \sim 1988. 10. 07.
	Hwang, San Duk	1917. 06. 18.	Criminal Law	1985, 01, 28, \sim 1989, 10, 19
	Jeong, Young Suk	1916. 06. 23.	Criminal Law	1990, 04, 20, \sim 1990, 06, 24,
	Kim, Yong Han	1930. 05. 11.	Civil Law	1988, 11, 08, \sim 1992, 11, 07,
	Kim, Ki Du	1920. 08. 21.	Criminal Law	1992, 04, 14, \sim 1993, 09, 07,
	Park, II Kyong	1920. 10. 28.	Constitutional Law	1992, 04, 14, \sim 1994, 09, 06,
	Lee, Han Key	1917. 09. 05.	International Law	1977. 06. 30. \sim 1995. 02. 02.
	Kim, Chi Sun	1922. 08. 24.	Labor Relations Law	1989, 03, 28, \sim 1996, 11, 25,
	Kim, Hyun Tae	1918. 02. 28.	Civil Law	1993, 07, 16, \sim 1998, 04, 14,
	Yoon, Se Chang	1918. 06. 28	Administrative Law	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1999. 01. 31.
	Lee, Hi Bong	1916. 05. 30.	Civil Law	1979. 07. 04. \sim 2001. 03. 25.
	Suh, Ton Kak	1920. 11. 03.	Commercial law	1981, 08, 12, \sim 2004, 08, 24,
	Kim, Hong Kyu	1931. 12. 18.	Civil Proceedings Act	1997. 07. 11. \sim 2005. 09. 07.
	Sonn, Ju Chan	1923. 09. 22.	Commercial Law, Economic Law	1981, 08, 12, \sim 2005, 11, 20,
	Choe, Tae Young	1900. 03. 28.	Philosophy of Law	1954, 04, 06, \sim 2005, 11, 30,
	Moon, Hong Joo	1918. 06. 07.	Constitutional Law	1981.08.12. \sim 2008.08.02.
	Lee, Hang Nyong	1915. 07. 25.	Philosophy of Law	1960. 04. 25. ~ 2008. 09. 17.

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
	Nam, Heung Woo	1913. 06. 07.	Criminal Law & Criminology	1981.08.13. \sim 2012.10.06.
	Huang, Seok In	1929. 10. 07.	Economic Law & Civil Law	1998, 07, 09, \sim 2013, 08, 16,
	Kim, Chung Kyun	1926. 03. 21	Intl' Law, Philosophy of Law	1996, 07, 12, \sim 2015, 09, 28,
	Shim, Heon-Seop	1936. 02. 13	Law Philosophy	2010.07.09.~ 2018.02.10.
Subdivision V	Shin, Do Song	1918. 03. 07.	Political Science	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1957, 04, 27,
	Lee, Sang Back	1903. 08. 05.	Sociology	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1966, 04, 14,
	Choi, Mun Hwan	1916. 01. 05.	History of Economic Thought	1960, 04, 25, \sim 1975, 02, 09,
	Min, Byong II	1913. 02. 29.	Political Science	1954. 07. 28. \sim 1977. 11. 22.
	Chung, In Heung	1916. 12. 20.	Political Science	1967. 07. 03. \sim 1982. 08. 05.
	Kim, Dae Hwan	1928. 03. 24.	Sociology	1981, 08, 12, \sim 1985, 08, 11,
	Park, Bong Shik	1932. 01. 26.	Political Science	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1987. 08. 11.
	Shin, Ki Suk	1908. 05. 06.	International Politics	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1989, 02, 02,
	Kim, Sang Hyup	1920. 04. 20.	Political Science	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1995. 02 .21.
	Lee, Yong Hee	1917. 03. 23.	International Relation	1981, 08, 12, \sim 1988, 03, 22, 1989, 03, 28, \sim 1997, 12, 04,
	Koh, Whang Kyung	1909. 03. 06.	Sociology	1960. 04. 25. \sim 2000. 11. 02.
	Koo, Young Nok	1934. 07. 08.	International Politics	1995. 07. 07. \sim 2001. 05. 18
	Yoon, Chun Joo	1921. 07. 08.	Political Science	1978, 04, 23, \sim 2001, 09, 08,
	Kim, Woon Tai	1921. 11. 17.	Korean Public Administration & Political Science	1988, 11, 08, \sim 2005, 12, 18,
	Kim, Sung Hi	1920. 05. 12.	Political History	1960. 04. 25. \sim 2006. 04. 29.
	Bark, Dong Suh	1929. 07. 24.	Public Administration	1981, 08, 12, \sim 2006, 06, 26,
	Lee, Man Gap	1921. 02. 14.	Sociology	1975. 07. 03. \sim 2010. 06. 19.
	Hong, Sung Chick	1929. 06. 28.	Sociology	1988, 11, 08, \sim 2014, 08, 04,
	Cha, Ki Pyok	1924. 11. 28	Comparative Politics	1989.03.28.~ 2018.06.23.
Subdivision VI	Yuk, Ji Soo	1907. 10. 16.	Economic Geography	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1967. 06. 28.
	Kim, Sun Sik	1903. 12. 06.	Accounting	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1969. 02. 20.
	Yu, Jin Soon	1918. 12. 14.	Economic Policy	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1972. 04. 22.
	Kim, Hyo Rok	1904. 07. 22.	Commercial Science	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1972. 09. 20.
	Oh, Sang Lak	1928. 02. 27.	Marketing	1990. 04. 20. \sim 1993. 09. 21.
	Shin, Tai Whan	1912. 07. 09.	Economics	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1993. 12. 30.
	Koh, Sung Jae	1917. 02. 05.	Economic History	1954, 04, 06, \sim 1995, 12, 01,
	Kwun, Oh Ik	1905. 11. 15.	Commercial Economics	1972, 04, 23, \sim 1998, 10, 11,
	Park, Ki Hyuk	1922. 07. 25.	Agricultural Economics	1986. 07. 26. \sim 1999. 03. 17.
	Lee, Sang Koo	1919. 09. 29.	International Economics	1969. 07. 03. \sim 1999. 12. 07.
	Kim, Ouk Keun	1924. 09. 05.	Economics	1990. 04. 20. \sim 2000. 12. 20.
	Cho, Ki Jun	1917. 07. 02.	Economics	1960. 04. 25 \sim 2001. 02. 03.

Sub	division	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
		Chung, Byung Hyou	1923. 03. 03.	Economics	1996, 07, 12, \sim 2005, 07, 21,
		Rim, Won Taik	1922. 10. 29.	Economics	1986, 07, 26, \sim 2006, 04, 13,
		Chung, Soo Yung	1918. 07. 24.	Business Administration	1975. 07. 03. \sim 2006. 08. 27.
		Kim, Joon Bo	1915. 07. 21.	Agricultural Economics	1976, 04, 23, \sim 2007, 12, 12,
		Choi, Ho Chin	1914. 08. 01.	Economics	1954. 04. 06. \sim 2010. 09. 09.

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
Subdivision I	Choi, Yun Sik	1899. 10. 26.	Mathematics	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1960. 08. 03.
	Lee, Won Chol	1896. 07. 11.	Astronomy	1960. 04. 25. ~ 1963. 03. 14.
	Chang, Ki Won	1903. 06. 16.	Mathematics	1966. 04. 23. ~ 1966. 11. 25.
	Cho, Kwang Ha	1903. 09. 19.	Chemistry	1958. 07. 15. ~ 1967. 04. 25.
	Park, Chol Jae	1905. 10. 09.	Physics	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1970. 03. 22.
	Kwon, Nyong Dae	1908. 06. 28.	Physics	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1985. 12. 23.
	Sung, Chwa Kyung	1920. 02. 13.	Applied Chemistry	1967. 07. 04. \sim 1986. 07. 17.
	Choi, Kyu Nam	1898. 01. 26.	Physics	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1992. 04. 27.
	Chun, Poong Chin	1909. 12. 12.	Applied Chemistry	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1992. 09. 12.
	Ree, Tai Kyue	1902. 01. 26.	Physical Chemistry	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1992. 10. 26.
	Choi, Q Won	1921. 03. 23.	Physical Chemistry	1986. 07. 26. ~ 1993. 12. 02.
	Kim, Jung Soo	1924. 10. 31.	Mathematics	1986. 07. 26. \sim 1994. 07. 09.
	Kim, Chi Young	1916. 12. 24.	Mathematics	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1995. 04. 22.
	Choh, Soon Tahk	1925. 01. 04.	Physics	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1996. 04. 30.
	Kim, Dong II	1908. 03. 09.	Applied Chemistry	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1998. 07. 20.
	Park, Chung Ki	1915. 03. 24.	Mathematics	1967. 07. 04. ~ 2000. 10. 06.
	Pahk, Ha Wook	1912. 11. 17.	Appled Chemistry	1954. 07. 28. ~ 2000. 10. 19.
	Pac, Pong Youl	1926. 07. 30.	Theoretical Physics	1970. 06. 30. ~ 2001. 07. 31.
	Pak, Eul Yong	1925. 02. 17.	Mathematics	1990. 04. 20. ~ 2002. 01. 09.
	Ahn, Tong Hyuk	1906. 03. 14.	Applied Chemistry	1954. 04. 06. \sim 2004. 10. 14.
	Choi, Sang Up	1922. 04. 01.	Chemistry	1981, 08, 12, ~ 2004, 12, 30,
	Kim, Tae Rin	1926. 07. 02.	Chemistry	1993. 07. 16. \sim 2006. 10. 14.
	Yoon, Nung Min	1927. 11. 21.	Chemistry	2005. 07. 15. \sim 2009. 04. 01.
	Lee, Sang Soo	1925. 10. 04.	Physics	1981. 08. 12. ~ 2010. 05. 07.
	Yoon, Se Won	1922. 10. 15.	Physics	1991. 04. 09. \sim 2013. 03. 16.
	Shim, Jyong Sup	1926. 01. 25.	Polymer Chemistry	1987. 08. 28. ~ 2013. 05. 12.
	Park, Tai Won	1926. 10. 05.	Applied Chemistry	1994. 07. 08. \sim 2014. 05. 14.
	Yoon, Kap Byung	1926. 03. 08.	Mathematics	1995. 07. 07. \sim 2015. 09. 14.
	Song, Hee Sung	1937. 10. 21.	Particle Physics	2014. 07. 11. \sim 2016. 04. 12.
	Lee, Ikchoon	1929. 07. 19.	Chemistry (Physical Chemistry)	2005. 07. 15. ~ 2016. 09. 15.
Subdivision	Kim, Ho Sik	1905. 01. 02.	Nutrition	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1959. 08. 30.
	Cho, Bok Song	1905. 12. 03.	Biology	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1971. 03. 19.
	Jung, Tae Hyun	1883. 09. 21.	Botany	1954.04.06. ~ 1971.11.21.

Natural Sciences Division

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
	Lee, Byung Wee	1906. 02. 09.	Physical Education	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1973. 12. 23.
	Park, Tong Kil	1897. 07. 08.	Geological Mineralogy	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1983. 02. 20.
	Yun, Suc Kew	1920. 08. 04.	Mineralogy	1982. 06. 10. \sim 1986. 03. 18.
	Lee, Dae Sung	1921. 05. 26.	Geology	1986. 07. 26. \sim 1987. 06. 06.
	Hong, Soon Woo	1927. 10. 01.	Microbiology	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1988. 02. 16.
	Lee, Min Jai	1917. 02. 22.	Plant Physiology	1954. 07. 28. \sim 1990. 12. 27.
	Chung, Yung Ho	1924. 08. 19.	Plant Taxonomy	1986. 07. 26. \sim 1994. 03. 17.
	Chai, Re Suk	1908. 10. 30.	Nutritional Science	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1995. 06. 10.
	Kang, Yung Sun	1917. 05. 23.	Cytogenetics (Biology)	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1999. 02. 03.
	Son, Chi Moo	1911. 01. 07.	Geology	1954. 04. 06. \sim 2000. 01. 24.
	Kim, Sam Soon	1909. 02. 03.	Mycology	1976. 06. 30. \sim 2001. 12. 11.
	Kim, Bong Kyun	1920. 10. 19.	Geology	1982. 06. 10. \sim 2003. 04. 20.
	Kim, Ok Joon	1916. 08. 17.	Geology	1960. 04. 25. \sim 2004. 03. 29.
	Kim, O Joong	1919. 07. 03.	Physical Exercise, Recreation	1996. 07. 12. \sim 2005. 04. 19.
	Kim, Choon Min	1914. 01. 03.	Plant Ecology	1972. 04. 23. \sim 2010. 12. 03.
	Park, Hee In	1932. 07. 04.	Geology	2004. 07. 16. \sim 2011. 09. 11.
	Kim, Chang Whan	1920. 06. 09.	Entomology, Developmental Biology	1972. 04. 23. \sim 2013. 04. 05.
	Kim, Hoon Soo	1923. 04. 17.	Animal Taxonomy	1992. 04. 14. \sim 2015. 04. 22.
	Ju, Jin Soon	1921. 10. 20.	Nutrition	1982. 06. 10. \sim 2015. 11. 19.
	Lee, Yung Nok	1930. 05. 20.	Molecular Biology	1930. 05. 20. \sim 2017. 08. 25.
	Ha, Doo Bong	1931. 08. 14	Biology	1998.07.10.~ 2019.03.28.
	Kim, Joon Ho	1929. 11. 29	Botany	1996.07.12.~ 2019.07.14.
Subdivision III	Choi, Bang Jin	1915. 12. 10.	Electrical Engineering	1954. 07. 28. \sim 1957. 04. 24.
	Kim, Ki Dok	1898. 02. 13.	Mining Mineralogy	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1962. 12. 31.
	Choi, Ho Young	1907. 05. 22.	Metallurgy	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1972. 11. 01.
	Choi, Kyung Yol	1905. 04. 07.	Civil Engineering	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1975. 03. 11.
	Min, Han Sik	1987. 04. 04.	Civil Engineering	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1976. 04. 29.
	Won, Tae Sang	1903. 05. 22.	Civil Engineering	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1976. 06. 19.
	Lee, Chong II	1905. 05. 06.	Electrical Engineering	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1978. 04. 22.
	Kim, Mun Sang	1910. 11. 17.	Textile Engineering	1976. 06. 30. \sim 1980. 01. 10.
	Yun, II Jung	1892. 09. 04.	Electrical Engineering	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1981. 04. 07.
	Han, Man Chun	1921. 06. 26.	Electrical Engineering	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1984. 08. 05.
	Lee, Kyun Sang	1903. 10. 14.	Architecture	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1985. 06. 09.
	Choi, Keh Kun	1925. 02. 18.	Electronics & Communication	1985. 01. 28. \sim 1989. 01. 27. 1989. 03. 28. \sim 1991. 10. 16.
	Lee, Ryang	1915. 07. 06.	Mechanical Engineering	1977. 06. 30. \sim 1992. 06. 18.

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
	Yoon, Dong Suk	1918. 11. 02.	Metallurgical Engineering	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1993. 08. 01.
	Shin, Yung Kee	1921. 02. 22.	Civil Engineering	1977. 06. 30. \sim 1995. 04. 23.
	Kim, Chong Suk	1900. 10. 19.	Mining Engineering	1966. 04. 23. \sim 1997. 02. 07.
	Kim, Zae Geun	1920. 01. 20.	Naval Architecture	1966. 04. 23. \sim 1999. 04. 09.
	Chang, Suck Yoon	1916. 11. 11.	Textile Engineering	1980. 07. 21. \sim 1987. 11. 10. 1989. 03. 28. \sim 1999. 06. 26.
	Lee, Chae Hoh	1905. 06. 16.	Mechanical Engineering	1954. 07. 28. \sim 1999. 12. 15.
	Lee, Taik Sik	1924. 07. 08.	Mechanical Engineering	1993. 07. 16. \sim 2000. 02. 01.
	Oh, Hyun Wee	1918. 04. 23.	Electronic Engineering	1978. 04. 23. \sim 1984. 05. 25. 1989. 03. 28. \sim 2003. 12. 19.
	Choi, Hyung Sup	1920. 11. 02.	Metallurgical Engineering	1976. 06. 30. \sim 2004. 05. 29.
	Kim, Zai Kuk	1921. 03. 21.	Mine Engineering	1987. 08. 28. \sim 2005. 06. 26.
	Cho, Zang Hee	1936. 07. 15.	Physical Electronics & Applied Physics	1998. 07. 10. \sim 2006. 07. 09.
	Woon, Hyung Ju	1914. 12. 08.	Electrical Engineering	1993. 07. 16. \sim 2009. 11. 01.
	Hwang, Jong Heul	1928. 03. 04.	Naval Architecture	1999. 07. 09. \sim 2012. 03. 12.
	Rhee, Man Young	1924. 11. 30.	Electronic Communication Engineering	2000. 07. 15. \sim 2013. 03. 19.
	Cho, Sun Whi	1928. 01. 11.	Mechanical Engineering	2000. 07. 15. \sim 2013. 07. 13.
	Rhee, Sung Won	1923. 04. 30	Electrical Engineering	1985. 02. 28. \sim 2017. 08. 07.
	Kang, Myung Soon	1921. 11. 15	Mechanical Engineering	1981. 08. 12. \sim 2017. 11. 06.
	Yoon, Chang Sup	1925. 01. 07	Architecture	1981. 08. 12. ~ 2019. 01. 19.
Subdivision IV	Park, Myung Jin	1903.	Pharmacology	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1957. 04. 24.
	Park, Ho Pung	1900.	Chinese Medicine	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1960. 04. 13.
	Lee, Chong Ryun	1902. 06. 30.	Physiology	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1965. 07. 29.
	Lee, Chae Chun	1915. 10. 29.	Internal Medicine	1954. 07. 28. \sim 1966. 04. 22.
	Ki, Young Suk	1905. 05. 28.	Microbiology	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1974. 10. 13.
	Kim, Myung Son	1897. 07. 17.	Physiology	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1982. 04. 24.
	Lee, Young So	1916. 01. 13.	Veterinary Medicine	1981. 08. 12. ~ 1983. 08. 11.
	Han, Sim Sok	1913. 05. 23.	Internal Medicine	1966. 04. 23. \sim 1983. 10. 12.
	Rha, Sae Jin	1908. 10. 23.	Anatomy & Physical Humane	1975. 07. 03. \sim 1984. 03. 25.
	Lee, Chae Koo	1911. 01. 30.	Pathology	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1986. 06. 18.
	Lee, Se Kyu	1905. 07. 14.	Pharmacology	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1986. 12. 31.
	Yun, II Sun	1986. 10. 05.	Pathology	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1987. 06. 22.
	Kim, Doo Jong	1896. 03. 02.	Medicine	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1988. 07. 18.
	Kim, Ki Hong	1921. 02. 17.	Clinical Pathology	1986. 07. 26. \sim 1988. 12. 05.
	Seo, Byong Seol	1921. 11. 13.	Medical Parasitology	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1991. 10. 11.
	Lee, Jin Kee	1907. 08. 08.	Anatomy	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1996. 06. 12.

Subdivision	Name	Date of Birth	Specialty	Period of Term
	Chang, Shin Yo	1919. 01. 10.	Anatomy	1987. 08. 28. \sim 1999. 08. 12.
	Han, Koo Dong	1908. 10. 18.	Pharmacy	1954. 04. 06. \sim 2000. 10. 20.
	Kim, Yong Kwan	1917. 03. 26.	Dentistry	1982. 06. 10. \sim 2002. 01. 26.
	Lee, Ki Yung	1914. 07. 18.	Biochemistry	1989. 03. 28. \sim 2002. 01. 29.
	Park, Soo Sun	1920. 05. 25.	Pharmacology	1987. 08. 28 \sim 2002. 04. 14.
	Lee, Mun Ho	1922. 10. 06.	Medicine	1981. 08. 12. \sim 2004. 12. 05.
	Lee, Woo Choo	1918. 06. 06.	Pharmacology	1981. 08. 12. \sim 2007. 04. 25.
	Woo, Lin Keun	1914. 01. 17.	Natural Products Chemistry	1966. 04. 23. \sim 2011. 11. 22.
	Lee, Jang Nag	1925. 09. 17.	Veterinary Pharmacology	1985. 01. 28. \sim 2012. 10. 05.
	Kim, Ju Whan	1924. 02. 29.	Dentistry	1992. 04. 14. \sim 2015. 08. 28.
	Kim, Chung Yong	1935. 05. 09.	Internal Medicine, Hepatology	2005. 07. 15. \sim 2016. 10. 11.
	Kim, Yong II	1935. 06. 13.	Pathology	1998. 07. 10. \sim 2019. 09. 07.
Subdivision V	Woo, Chang Chun	1898. 04. 09.	Agriculture	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1959. 08. 10.
	Lee, Keun Tae	1901. 11. 25.	Animal Husbandry	1957. 04. 25. \sim 1965. 02. 06.
	Kim, Ho Jik	1905. 01. 02.	Zymological Chemistry	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1968. 12. 03.
	Chi, Yong Rin	1900. 05. 08.	Crop Science	1960. 04. 25. \sim 1973. 08. 22.
	Song, Jae Chol	1902. 11. 20.	Crop Raising	1954. 07. 28. \sim 1974. 09. 24.
	Hyun, Shin Kyu	1911. 12. 09.	Forestry	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1982. 12. 08. 1985. 01. 28. \sim 1986. 11. 21.
	Kang, Jae Won	1926. 09. 17.	Phycology	1981. 08. 12. \sim 1993. 05. 02.
	Lee, Chang Gu	1904. 12. 11.	Agriculture and Industry	1974. 07. 21. \sim 1993. 12. 03.
	Cho, Baik Hyun	1900. 12. 15.	Agricultural Chemistry	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1994. 07. 13.
	Yun, Sang Won	1900. 02. 28.	Animal Nutrition	1969. 07. 03. \sim 1994. 08. 31.
	Chyung, Moon Ki	1898. 09. 19.	lchthyology	1954. 04. 06. \sim 1995. 09. 27.
	Park, Byung Hui	1905. 01. 14.	Sericulture	1967. 07. 04. \sim 1995. 12. 26.
	Kim, Sung Won	1906. 01. 03.	Horticulture	1975. 07. 03. \sim 1998. 02. 25.
	Paik, Woon Hah	1917. 01. 13.	Entomology & Acarology	1982. 06. 10. \sim 2000. 01. 31.
	Park, Seung Mann	1904. 04. 24.	Cell technology	1960. 04. 25. \sim 2002. 12. 15.
	Chung, Hoo Sup	1930. 07. 05.	Plant Pathology	1981. 08. 12. \sim 2006. 10. 09.
	Park, Yeung Ho	1930. 05. 30.	Sea Food Science	1989. 03. 28. \sim 2008. 04. 30.
	Lee, Eun Woong	1924. 04. 09.	Crop Science	1981. 08. 12. \sim 2010. 02. 06.
	Koh, Chae Koon	1928. 12. 06.	Agricultural Civil Engineering	1985. 01. 28. \sim 2012. 03. 10.
	Shim, Chong Supp	1917. 08. 26.	Wood Science	1957. 04. 26. \sim 2012. 11. 04.
	Kim, Moon Hyup	1916. 02. 17.	Sericultural Science	1982, 06, 10, \sim 2013, 05, 18,
	Chun, Seh Kyu	1927. 07. 20.	Fish Pathology	1997. 07. 11. \sim 2016. 04. 07.
	Lee, Chun Yung	1917. 03. 27.	Agricultural Chemistry	1966. 04. 23. \sim 2016. 07. 31.
	Choe, Byong Hee	1922, 07, 26	Silk Engineering	1987.08.28.~ 2018.09.26.

V. APPENDICES

- 1. The National Academy of Sciences of
 - the Republic of Korea Act 209
 - 2. Regulations on the NAS Award 216
- 3. Regulations on the NAS Publications Committee 223

4. Regulations on the Provision of the NAS

- Academic Research and Policy Research Grants 226
 - 5. Regulations of the NAS International Exchange & Cooperation Committee
 - 229
 - 6. Regulations on International Academic Activities Participation Support Project 231
 - 7. Regulations on the Election of the NAS
 - Honorary Members 233

V. APPENDICES

1. The National Academy of Sciences of the Republic of Korea Act

Act No. 4045, December 31, 1988 Amended by Act No. 4268, December 27, 1990 Act No. 6400, January 29, 2001 Act No. 6740, December 5, 2002 Act No. 8852, February 29, 2008 Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011 Act No. 11690, March 23, 2013

Article 1 (Purpose)

The purpose of this Act is to establish the National Academy of Sciences of the Republic of Korea so as to treat favorably and support scientists who have made remarkable contributions to the development of sciences, and to carry out scientific research and supporting projects, and thus contribute to the development of sciences.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 2 (Function)

The National Academy of Sciences of the Republic of Korea (hereinafter referred to as the "National Academy of Sciences") shall be a representative organ of scientists at home and abroad, and shall carry out the following matters necessary for the development of sciences:

- 1. Consultations on policies for the promotion of sciences and proposals for the promotion of sciences;
- 2. Scientific research and support therefor;
- 3. Domestic and international academic exchanges and holding of academic events;
- 4. Conferment of the National Academy of Sciences Awards;

5. Other matters concerning the promotion of sciences.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 3 (Organization)

(1) The National Academy of Sciences shall be composed of the members of the National Academy of Sciences (hereinafter referred to as the "members").

- (2) The fixed number of members shall be 150.
- (3) The National Academy of Sciences shall establish the humanities and social sciences division and the natural sciences division, and each division shall have subdivisions for specialized fields of studies.
- (4) Each member shall belong to one of the subdivisions depending on his/her majors of study.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 4 (Qualifications of Members)

A Member shall be a citizen of the Republic of Korea falling under any of the following:

- 1. A person who had graduated from any of the schools referred to in Article 2 of the Higher Education Act or from an equivalent or higher level school, and has had a career of at least 20 years in scientific research and made a remarkable contribution to the development of sciences;
- 2. A person has had a career of at least 30 years in scientific research and made a remarkable contribution to the development of sciences. *[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]*

Article 4-2 (Grounds for Disqualification of Members)

- (1) A person who falls under any of the subparagraphs of Article 33 of the State Public Officials Act shall not become a member.
- (2) Where a member comes to fall under paragraph (1) or is found to have fallen under the same paragraph as at the time he/she is elected, he/she shall ex officio lose his/her status as a member.
- (3) A person who damages his/her honor and dignity as a member may be deprived of his/her status as a member in compliance with a resolution adopted by a general meeting.

[This Article Newly Inserted by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 5 (Election of Members)

(1) A member shall be a person who is, from among those recommended by the members or by academic organizations in the relevant fields which are designated by the National Academy of Science, decided upon at a meeting of the relevant division after a candidate screening by the member screening committee and then approved by a general meeting. (2) Matters necessary for the composition, etc. of the member screening committee shall be determined by a general meeting.
[*This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011*]

Article 6 (Term, etc. of Membership)

(1) The term of membership shall be lifetime.

(2) The members shall serve part-time.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 7 (Treatment of Members)

- (1) The State shall treat the members favorably and take the necessary measures for putting their knowledge and experience to practical use.
- (2) The members shall be paid allowances or pensions as prescribed by the Presidential Decree.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 8 (Election, etc. of President and Vice-President)

- (1) The National Academy of Sciences shall have a president and a vicepresident.
- (2) The president and the vice-president shall be elected at a general meeting.
- (3) The terms of office of the president and the vice-president shall be two years, and each term of office shall be renewable only once. *[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773] June 7, 2011]*

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 9 (Duties of President and Vice-President)

- (1) The president shall take charge of the affairs of the National Academy of Sciences and represent the said Academy.
- (2) The vice-president shall assist the president, and if the president is unable to perform his duties for an unavoidable reason, the vice-president shall act for the president.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June. 7, 2011]

Article 10 (Division Director)

- (1) Each division shall have a director of division under Article 3 (3), who shall be elected by and from among members of the division concerned.
- (2) The term of office of the director of division shall be one year and renewable.

(3) The division director shall manage the affairs of the division under his/her control.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 11 (Subdivision Head)

- (1) Each of the subdivisions referred to in Article 3 (3) shall have a subdivision head who shall be elected by and from among members of the subdivision concerned.
- (2) The term of the subdivision head is one year and renewable.
- (3) The subdivision head shall manage affairs of the subdivision under his or her control.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 12 (Meeting)

- (1) The meetings of the NAS shall be categorized into a general meeting, division meetings, and subdivision meetings.
- (2) A general meeting shall be the highest deliberative organ of the National Academy of Sciences, and if the president deems it necessary, or upon a request of at least one third of the members, the president shall convene it.
- (3) Division or subdivision meetings shall, if necessary, be convened by the director of a division provided for in Article 10 or the head of a subdivision provided for in Article 11.
- (4) The meetings of the NAS shall adopt resolutions by attendance of a majority of all members and with the concurrent vote of a majority of members present.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 12-2 (Honorary Members)

- (1) Foreigners with outstanding academic achievements may be appointed as honorary members of the National Academy of Sciences for the purpose of promoting academic exchanges and collaborations with foreign countries.
- (2) Matters necessary for the number, qualifications, membership term, appointment method, allowances, etc. of honorary members shall be prescribed by the Presidential Decree.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]
Article 13 (Support for Academic Activities)

The State may pay a bounty, subsidy, or monetary reward to scientists or academic organizations committed to their studies upon a proposal of the National Academy of Sciences.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 14 (Conferment of Awards)

The National Academy of Sciences may confer the National Academy of Sciences Award to a person who has made a remarkable contribution to scientific studies with his/her outstanding research.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 15 (Admission to International Science Organizations)

The National Academy of Sciences may be admitted to an International Science Organization.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 16 (Bearing of Expenses)

Expenses needed for the enforcement of this Act shall be borne by the State.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 17 (Support)

The Minister of Education shall support activities of the National Academy of Sciences. *Amended by Act No. 11690, Mar. 23. 2013>* [*This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011*]

Article 18 (Secretariat)

- (1) The National Academy of Sciences shall have a Secretariat.
- (2) The organization and fixed number of personnel of the Secretariat shall be prescribed by the Presidential Decree.

[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]

Article 19 (Detailed Rules of Operation)

The detailed matters necessary for the operation of the National Academy of Sciences shall be determined by a general meeting. *[This Article Wholly Amended by Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011]*

ADDENDA

- (1) (Enforcement Date) This Act shall enter into force on January 1, 1989.
- (2) (Repeal of Acts) The Culture Protection Act shall hereby be repealed.
- (3) (Transitional Measures concerning the National Academy of Sciences) The National Academy of Sciences of the Republic of Korea under the previous Culture Protection Act as at the time this Act enters into force, shall be deemed the National Academy of Sciences under this Act.
- (4) (Transitional Measures concerning Regular Members) Regular members of the National Academy of Sciences who were appointed under the previous Culture Protection Act as at the time this Act enters into force, shall be deemed elected as members under this Act, but their terms of membership shall be counted from the date on which they were appointed under the previous Culture Protection Act.
- (5) (Transitional Measures concerning Senior Members) Senior members of the National Academy of Sciences who were installed under the previous Culture Protection Act as at the time this Act enters into force, shall be deemed elected as members under this Act, but they shall be excluded from the fixed number of members as prescribed in Article 3 (2), and their terms of membership shall be lifetime notwithstanding Article 6 (1).

ADDENDA <Act No. 4268, December 27, 1990>

Article 1 (Enforcement Date)

This Act shall enter into force on the date of its promulgation. (Proviso Omitted.)

Articles 2 through 10 Omitted.

ADDENDA <Act No. 6400, January 29, 2001>

Article 1 (Enforcement Date)

This Act shall enter into force on the date of its promulgation. (Proviso Omitted.)

Articles 2 through 4 Omitted.

ADDENDUM <Act No. 6740, December 5, 2002>

This Act shall enter into force three months after from the date of its promulgation.

ADDENDA <Act No. 8852, February 29, 2008>

Article 1 (Enforcement Date)

This Act shall enter into force on the date of its promulgation. (Proviso Omitted.)

Articles 2 through 7 Omitted.

ADDENDA <Act No. 10773, June 7, 2011>

- (1) (Enforcement Date) This Act shall enter into force on the date of its promulgation.
- (2) (Applicability to Terms of Membership) The amended provisions of Article 6 (1) shall be applied as well to the members who were elected in accordance with the previous provisions as at the time when this Act enters into force.

ADDENDA <Act No. 11690, March 23, 2013>

Article 1 (Enforcement Date)

- (1) This Act shall enter into force on the date of its promulgation.
- (2) Omitted.

Articles 2 through 7 Omitted.

2. Regulations on the NAS Award

Formulated under NAS Regulation No. 20, December 31, 1974; 15th Amendment under NAS Regulation No. 83, July 8, 2016

Article 1 (Purpose)

These regulations are to prescribe matters concerning the prize to be awarded by the NAS to help promote the academic advancement in accordance with the provision of Article 14 of the NAS Act.

Article 2 (Name)

The prize shall be called National Academy of Sciences Award (hereinafter referred to as the NAS Award).

Article 3 (Date of Presentation)

- 1. The NAS Award shall be presented on September 17 every year. However, when the day falls on a public holiday, the presentation shall take place on the following day.
- 2. In special circumstances, the date of the presentation may be changed by the discretion of the President of the NAS (hereinafter referred to as the President).

Article 4 (Award Requirements and Categories)

- 1. The NAS Award shall be awarded to the nationals of the Republic of Korea whose original and concentrated research works on specific subject matters have made significant contributions to the academic development or have been recognized as having potentials for such contributions.
- 2. The NAS members are not eligible for the NAS Award, except those who become members of the NAS after having already been chosen as NAS Awardees.
- 3. In accordance with Paragraph (1), the NAS Award shall be presented to four separate fields, namely Humanities, Social Sciences, Basic Natural Sciences, and Applied Natural Sciences.
- 4. Award recipients are annually eight in number and up to two award candidates may be selected in each of the four fields specified in Paragraph 3 above.

Article 5 (Recommendation of Candidates)

- 1. The President shall request, not later than October 31 of the previous year of the presentation, the heads of the academic institutions and organizations and the NAS Award Recommendation Committee to recommend eligible candidates for the NAS Award as specified in Attachment 1.
- 2. The President, in order to seek well-qualified NAS Award candidates and elevate objectivity and effectiveness of candidate selection, shall set up the NAS Award Recommendation Committee, whose function and management shall be separately stipulated.
- 3. The President shall receive a list of the recommended candidates for the NAS Award from those prescribed in Paragraph (1) not later than the end of December of the previous year of the presentation.
- 4. The President shall have the NAS Award Recommendation Committee consolidate the candidates and refer the candidate list to the related subdivisions.

Article 6 (Preview by Subdivision Meeting)

- 1. A subdivision meeting shall preview articles and/or publications, and other relevant matters of the candidates and notify the President the result of the preview, upon which the President shall refer it to the Screening Committee of each Division as prescribed in Article 9.
- 2. A subdivision meeting may recommend evaluating members relevant to the screening committee, and the preview by subdivision meeting shall be convened no more than twice.
- 3. The result of the preview will be decided by the attendance of a simple majority of the subdivision members and by the approval of the majority of the members attended.
- 4. Each subdivision shall choose not more than two from among the candidates and refer him/her or them to the Screening Committee.

Article 7 (Divisional Screening Committee)

- 1. There shall be four screening committees; namely the Humanities Division Screen Committee, the Social Sciences Division Screening Committee, the Basic Natural Sciences Division Screening Committee and the Applied Natural Sciences Division Screening Committee.
- 2. Under Paragraph 1 the screening committees aforesaid shall each be composed of 5 or more, 13 or less, including the chairperson of the

committee. The President, upon receiving the result of the subdivision meetings and the recommendation of the Director of each division, shall organize the Screening Committees. The Director of Humanities & Social Sciences Division shall serve as an ex officio member of the Humanities Division Screening Committee and the Social Sciences Screening Committee; the Director of Natural Sciences Division shall serve as an ex officio member of the Basic Natural Sciences Division Screening Committee and the Applied Natural Sciences Division Screening Committee.

- 3. Each Divisional Screening Committee shall conclude its screenings by May 15 every year.
- 4. Each Screening Committee shall review researches and academic and meritorious achievements submitted by each candidate and duly evaluate them.
- 5. The meetings of each Screening Committee shall be held three times; additional meetings may be convened, if necessary.
- 6. The Chairperson of each Screening Committee shall be named by the President from among the NAS jury members. The Chairperson shall preside at the committee meetings.
- 7. Each meeting of the Screening Committee shall be convened by the Chairperson of the committee. The attendance of more than two-thirds of the committee members and the concurrence of more than the majority of the members present shall be necessary for making any decision.
- 8. Each Screening Committee shall select not more than two prospective candidates for the NAS Award and notify the Chairperson of the result of the Comprehensive Deliberation Committee, as prescribed in Article 7.

Article 8 (Special Screening Committee)

The Vice-President shall serve as the Chairperson of the Special Screening Committee prescribed in Paragraph 4, Article 4. The Committee shall be composed of six or less members recommended by the Chairperson and appointed by the President. It shall conclude its screenings by May 31 every year.

Article 9 (Comprehensive Deliberation Committee)

1. The meeting of the Comprehensive Deliberation Committee shall conduct the comprehensive deliberation for the prospective candidate prescribed in Article 7, Paragraph 8.

- 2. The Comprehensive Deliberation Committee shall be composed of President and Vice-president, two Division Directors and eleven subdivision Heads of the NAS. The President shall serve as the Chairperson.
- 3. The attendance of more than two-thirds of the Committee members and the concurrence of more than two-thirds of the members present shall be necessary for the decision of the Committee to be made.
- 4. The Committee shall conclude the deliberation by June 30 of the year and the Chairperson should notify, without any delay, the decision of the Committee to the Directors of both the Humanities and Social Sciences Division and the Natural Sciences Division.

Article 10 (Selection of Awardees)

- 1. Each Division Meeting shall select, with the attendance of a simple majority of the members and the concurrence of a simple majority of those present, recipients of the Award from among the candidates as prescribed in Article 7, Paragraph 4. The number of recipients cannot exceed that which is prescribed in Article 4, Paragraph 4.
- 2. Each Division Director shall, without any delay, report to the President the prospective candidates thus selected.

Article 11 (Ratification of Awardees)

- 1. The President shall refer the list of Awardees notified by the Division Directors as prescribed in Article 10, Paragraph 2, to the General Assembly of the NAS for the ratification not later than thirty days before the date of the Award Ceremony.
- 2. The ratification as prescribed in Paragraph 1 shall be effective with the concurrence of the simple majority of the NAS members present.

Article 12 (Exclusion)

Under Article 4, Paragraph 2, no member of the NAS nominated as a candidate for the Award shall participate in its decision-making of the Divisional meeting and the General Assembly.

Article 13 (Supplementary Prize, etc.)

The recipients of the NAS Award shall be presented with the Letter of Citation, an emblem and a monetary award.

ADDENDA

(NAS Regulation No. 20, December 31, 1974)

Article 1 (Enforcement Date)

These regulations shall enter into force on January 1, 1975.

Article 2 (Abolishment of Regulation)

The Regulations governing the NAS Award Screening shall be abolished with the enforcement of these Regulations.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 28, October 16, 1981)

These Regulations shall come into force on January 1, 1982.

ADDENDA

(NAS Regulation No. 36, February 20, 1986)

Article 1 (Enforcement Date)

The regulations shall enter into force on March 1, 1986.

Article 2 (Interim Measure)

The time of the request for recommendation of candidates for the Prize for the year of 1986 and the deadline for the receipt of the recommendations shall be determined separately by the President of the NAS.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 40, August 18, 1988)

These Regulations shall be in force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 42, January 24, 1989)

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 51, July 29, 1993)

These Regulations shall enter into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 55, July 29, 1996)

These Regulations shall enter into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 57, July 11, 1997)

These Regulations shall enter into force on October 1, 1997.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 58, July 9, 1999)

These Regulations shall enter into force on October 1, 1999.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 61, September 10, 2002)

These Regulations shall enter into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 66, July 14, 2006)

These Regulations shall enter into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 71, October 19, 2010)

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 72, March 17, 2011)

These Regulations shall enter into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 75, August 3, 2011)

These Regulations shall enter into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 77, March 15, 2013)

These Regulations shall enter into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 83, July 8, 2016)

3. Regulations on the NAS Publications Committee

Formulated under NAS Regulation No. 16, July 25, 1972; 4th Amendment under NAS Regulation No. 48, July 26, 1990

Article 1 (Purpose)

The NAS Committee for Compilation of Publications (hereinafter "Committee") shall be established to deliberate and decide on matters related to the compilation of publications to be issued by the NAS.

Article 2 (Function)

The Committee shall deliberate and decide on the preparation of basic plans, request and review of manuscripts, selection of publications to be translated and publishing of their translated versions, and other acts of compilation with respect to all publications to be issued by the NAS.

Article 3 (Composition)

- 1. The Committee shall be composed of President, Vice-President, Directors, and members selected from each subdivision of the NAS.
- 2. The Committee shall have a Chairperson, who shall be elected from among the Committee members.
- 3. The Chairperson shall represent the Committee and preside at Committee meetings.

Article 4 (Term of Office)

The term of office for the Chairperson and members is three years and is renewable.

Article 5 (Meeting)

- 1. A Committee meeting shall be convened when the Chairperson deems it necessary.
- 2. A Committee meeting shall be convened in case it is requested by the President of the NAS or by more than half of the Committee members.
- 3. The attendance of a majority of the Committee members and the concurrence of a majority of the members present shall be necessary for any decisions of the Committee to be made.

Article 6 (Specialist Members)

For the smooth execution of the Committee programs, the Committee may have a few specialist members.

Article 7 (Secretary, Clerk)

- 1. The Committee shall be provided with a secretary and a clerk.
- 2. The director of the NAS Science Promotion Division shall serve as secretary; the clerk shall be appointed by the Secretary General from among the officials of the NAS Science Promotion Division.
- 3. The secretary shall attend to the affairs of the Committee according to the instructions of the chairperson, and the clerk shall assist the secretary.

Article 8 (Allowance)

Allowance and travel expenses may be paid to the members and specialist members within the extent of the available budget.

ADDENDA

(NAS Regulation No. 16, July 25, 1972)

Article 1

These Regulations shall be enforced on the date of their promulgation.

Article 2

The appointment of the Publications Committee members and committee decisions made prior to the enforcement of these Regulations shall be construed as having been made nullified by these Regulations.

ADDENDA

(NAS Regulation No. 30, October 16, 1981)

Article 1 (Enforcement Date)

Article 2 (Interim Measure)

The appointment of Publications Committee members and committee decisions made prior to the enforcement of these Regulations shall be construed as having been made nullified by these Regulations.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 37, February 20, 1986)

These Regulations shall become effective on August 12, 1985.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 44, January 24, 1989)

These Regulations shall come into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 48, July 26, 1990)

4. Regulations on the Provision of the NAS Academic Research and Policy Research Grants

Formulated under NAS Regulation No. 33, December 28, 1981 3rd Amendment under NAS Regulation No. 45, October 19, 2010

Article 1 (Purpose)

The purpose of these Regulations is to govern matters related to the provision on the NAS academic research and policy research grants with a view to fulfilling the function provided for in Article 2 of the NAS Act.

Article 2 (Recipients)

Recipients of the NAS academic research and policy research (hereinafter referred to as research grants) shall be the members of the NAS. If a need for joint research by more than one person arises, a person or persons who are not members of the Academy may participate. In this case, however, a member of the NAS shall be the joint research team leader.

Article 3 (Selection of Projects, etc.)

- 1. Projects, subject to the receipt of the research grants, and their researchers shall be selected by the NAS Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as Board of Directors).
- 2. The President of the NAS shall assign research projects to those selected as prescribed in Paragraph (1).

Article 4 (Forwarding of Research Plan)

A person or persons to whom a research project has been assigned under the provisions of Article 3 shall furnish the President of the NAS with a research plan in the form given in Attached Sheet No. 1.

Article 5 (Payment of Research Grants)

1. Upon receiving a research plan as prescribed in Article 4, the President of the NAS shall determine the amount of research grants through deliberations by the Board of Directors.

2. Research grants shall be paid in two installments annually. However, they may be paid in a lump sum in case the Board of Directors so decides.

Article 6 (Prohibition of Using Research Grants for Other Purposes)

The research grants paid shall not be used for purposes other than approved research projects.

Article 7 (Change in Research Plan)

- 1. When persons who have been paid research grants wish to change the research team leader or research period, they shall submit a request for approval of the change in the form given in Attached Sheet No. 2 to the President.
- 2. The President shall refer the submitted request for approval of any change in research plans prescribed in Paragraph 1 to the Board of Directors for approval.

Article 8 (Interim Report)

- 1. Persons, who have been paid research grants, shall submit an interim report to the President within seven months from the time of the receipt of the grants by using the form given in Attached Sheet No. 3.
- 2. Upon the receipt of an interim report prescribed in Paragraph 1, the President shall determine whether to pay the second installment of the fund through deliberations by the Board of Directors.

Article 9 (Report on the Research Result)

- 1. Persons, who have been paid research grants, shall submit a summary report on the research result and the manuscript of their resultant theses to the President within a year from the time of the receipt of the grants by using the form given in Attached Sheet No. 4.
- 2. If persons, who have been paid research grants, fail to submit a summary report on the result of research and the manuscript of their resultant theses within the period prescribed in Paragraph 1 or within a period approved under the provisions of Article 7, they shall refund the research grant depending on the decision of the Board of Directors.

- 3. Persons who have been paid research grants shall not, without the approval of the Board of Directors, make public or publish the results of the research in a journal published by an organization other than the NAS.
- 4. When the result of research projects is printed in one of the NAS publications, there shall be no payment for it.

Article 10 (Disposition of Results of Research)

The President shall, through deliberations by the Board of Directors, take measures as follows:

- 1. To publish the research results either in the NAS Journal or in the NAS academic research report.
- 2. To make policy recommendation based on them.
- 3. To use them for an academic seminar sponsored by the NAS.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 33, December 28, 1981)

These Regulations shall come into force on the date of their promulgation.

ADDENDUM

(NAS Regulation No. 45, January 24, 1989)

5. Regulations of the NAS International Exchange & Cooperation Committee

Formulated under NAS Regulation No. 69, March 13, 2009

Article 1 (Purpose)

The purpose of these regulations is to prescribe overall matters of NAS international exchange activities such as international academic cooperation and the gathering of information on international academic awards in accordance with Article 15 of the Act of the NAS.

Article 2 (Function)

The Committee shall deliberate and decide the following matters:

- 1. The academic exchange and cooperation with foreign science academies and international science organizations
- 2. The dispatch of delegation to international science organizations
- 3. The nomination of candidates for international academic award and cooperation with relevant institutions.

Article 3 (Composition)

- 1. The Committee shall be composed of fourteen members including one chairperson.
- 2. The Vice-President shall be the chairperson of the Committee.
- 3. The directors of two NAS divisions shall be the ex-officio members of the Committee.
- 4. The President shall nominate one member each from the 11 NAS subdivisions.
- 5. The term of the members is two years and is renewable.
- 6. The President shall fill a vacancy by nominating a member from the relevant NAS subdivision and the newly nominated member shall serve for the remaining term.

Article 4 (Chairperson)

- 1. The chairperson shall preside over Committee affairs and represent the Committee.
- 2. The oldest ex-officio member shall preside at the meeting in case the chairperson is unable to do so.

Article 5 (Meeting)

- 1. A Committee meeting shall be convened by the chairperson when either the chairperson deems it necessary or it is requested by more than half of the Committee members.
- 2. The decision of the Committee shall be made by the attendance of a simple majority of the Committee members and the concurrence of a simple majority of the attendants. In case of a tie, the presiding chairperson shall exercise his casting vote.

Article 6 (Executive Council)

- 1. The Executive Council shall be composed of seven or less members including chairperson and ex-officio members and shall promote international academic exchange and cooperation in addition to dispatching delegation to international science conferences.
- 2. The term of Executive Council members is one year and is renewable.

Article 7 (Secretary, Clerk)

- 1. The Committee shall be provided with a secretary and a clerk.
- 2. The director of Science Promotion Division shall serve as the secretary and the President shall appoint a clerk from among the staffs of Science Promotion Division.
- 3. The secretary shall deal with the Committee matters according to the instructions of the chairperson, and the clerk shall assist the secretary.

ADDENDUM

- 1. These regulations of International Exchange and Cooperation Committee shall be enforced on the date of their promulgation.
- 2. (Repeal of existing related Regulations) The "Regulations on the NAS Korea Committees of International Academic Organizations (NAS Regulation No. 67, March 9, 2007)" as well as the "Regulation of NAS International Cooperation (NAS Regulations No. 61, April 1, 2002)" shall be repealed with the enforcement of these Regulations.

6. Regulations on International Academic Activities Participation Support Project

Established, February 8, 2018

Article 1 (Purpose)

These guidelines stipulate the matters required for the provision of the subsidy for the "International Academic Activities Participation Support Project" (hereinafter, referred to as the Subsidy).

Article 2 (Recipient)

The project is designed to support the NAS members who participated in various academic activities held abroad (thesis presentation, guest lecture, and designated debate) in their individual capacity other than through official international academic activities of the NAS.

- 1. 'Thesis Presentation' refers to where the member performed research in his or her own capacity and presented research results at an international academic conference regardless of the "International Academic Organization Project Support Program" of the NAS.
- 2. 'Guest Lecture' refers to where the member is requested by an overseas academic organization to give a lecture on a specialized field.
- 3. 'Designated Debate' refers to where the member gives his or her opinions as a debater designated by the host with respect to academic research presentation. The member should be able to document and submit the essentials of the debate.

Article 3 (Recommendation of Recipients)

The head of the special interest group shall recommend one candidate each year through consultation with the special interest group. However, if there is any carry-over in accordance with Article 7, it is possible to recommend additional candidates within the limitation of the carry-over accumulated in each group.

Article 4 (Submission of Application, etc.)

The person who was recommended by the special interest group in accordance with Article 3 shall submit the application form (Annex 1 Form) and an activity report (Annex 2 Form) to the President of the NAS before the deadline.

Article 5 (Review Committee)

A committee to review the International Academic Activity Participation Support Project shall be established (hereinafter, referred to as Review Committee).

- 1. The Review Committee shall be composed of the International Exchange and Cooperation Committee or the International Exchange and Cooperation Working Committee to review the activity report and so forth.
- 2. The head of the Review Committee assumes the head of the International Exchange and Cooperation Committee.
- 3. Items on the agenda at the meeting are resolved by the attendance of a majority of members and the majority vote of attending members.

Article 6 (Provision of Subsidy)

In accordance with Article 4, the President of the NAS shall receive application forms, which will be reviewed by the Review Committee, select prospective recipients for each special interest group, and provide 2,000,000 won for each person as a subsidy for participating in international academic activities.

Article 7 (Handling of Unused Subsidy)

The subsidy allocated to each group may be carried over to the next year for two consecutive years if there are no candidates, but if the carry-over is still not used in the third year as less than two candidates applied, thereby generating any unused amounts, such amounts shall be returned to the NAS.

Article 8 (Sharing of Outcome)

The research paper and manuscript of the funded activity will be published in the International Academic Exchange Report, and a manuscript fee is not separately provided.

ADDENDUM

(Enforcement Date) These guidelines shall come into effect from February 8, 2018.

7. Regulations on the Election of the NAS Honorary Members

Formulated under NAS Regulation No. 65, July 15, 2003

Article 1 (Purpose)

The purpose of these Regulations is to prescribe necessary matters concerning the composition and operation of the Honorary Member Qualification Screening Committee under Article 5 of the Regulation on the Appointment, etc. of the NAS Honorary Members (hereinafter referred to as the Appointment Regulations).

Article 2 (Composition)

- 1. The Honorary Member Qualification Screening Committee shall be composed of fifteen committeemen/committeewomen: President and Vice-President, 2 Division Directors, and 11 Subdivision Heads.
- 2. The Chairperson of the Honorary Member Qualification Screening Committee shall be the President of the NAS.
- 3. A majority of the committeemen/committeewomen of the Honorary Member Qualification Screening Committee shall constitute a quorum of the meeting thereof and the meeting shall make decisions by a simple majority of the committeemen/committeewomen present.

Article 3 (Functions)

The functions of the Honorary Member Qualification Screening Committee shall be as follows:

- 1. Designation of academic organizations to recommend honorary members
- 2. Comprehensive screening of candidates for the honorary membership
- 3. Other matters concerning the operation of the Honorary Member Qualification Screening Committee.

Article 4 (Qualification for Honorary Membership)

Qualified are foreign scholars who are internationally recognized to have produced an outstanding academic research achievement and who were awarded a prize of international authority or accomplished such an excellent research achievement as recognized internationally.

Article 5 (Recommendation of Candidates for Honorary Membership)

- 1. Any NAS member or the head of any relevant academic organization designated by the NAS may recommend a candidate for the honorary membership.
- 2. Any one who intends to recommend a candidate for the honorary membership shall submit a written recommendation as prepared in accordance with the attached Form I to the President of the NAS.
- 3. The Chairperson of the Honorary Member Qualification Screening Committee may, for the purpose of conducting any screening of a recommended candidate for the honorary membership, require recommenders of candidates to submit necessary materials.

Article 6 (Screening by Each Subdivision)

- 1. The President of the NAS shall require the related subdivision to conduct screening candidates recommended for the honorary membership, and a majority of the subdivision members shall constitute a quorum of the meeting thereof and the meeting shall make decisions by a simple majority of the members present.
- 2. The Head of the subdivision concerned shall notify the President of the result of the screening.

Article 7 (Screening by the Honorary Member Screening Committee)

The Honorary Member Screening Committee shall comprehensively screen the qualification of the honorary member candidates and select honorary members by vote. In case the number of qualified persons exceeds the quota allocated to the honorary members, which is due to the voting result of two or more candidates having acquired the same number of votes, another voting of those candidates involved shall be conducted. If and when this final vote turns out to be indecisive, the older (or oldest) candidate shall be chosen.

Article 8 (Decisions of the Division Meeting and General Assembly)

With respect to matters concerning the election at the meeting of the related Division and the ratification at the General Assembly, the provisions of Articles 11 and 13 of "the Regulations on the Election of Members of the NAS" shall be applied to them.

Article 9 (Notification of the Election of Honorary Members)

If any one is elected honorary member with the ratification of the General Assembly, the President of the NAS shall send a written notice as prepared in accordance with the attached Form II to the elected and ratified person within three months.

ADDENDUM

Application Form []] for Honorary Membership The National Academy of Sciences, R.O.K.

Candidate

Name : Dat	te :
NAS Division: () Humanities & Social S	Sciences
() Natural Sciences	
Subdivision :	
Name (Last, First, Middle):	
Nationality (Current Citizenship):	
Professional Title (Current):	
Affiliation :	
Mailing Address:	
Telephone : Home :	Office :

Academic Achievements

The statement should be within 50 words.

Curriculum Vitae

Provide the following information, limiting them to 15 lines:

date of birth (day/month/year/country), degrees (BA/BS, MA/MS, Ph. D., including institutions and conferment years, etc.), chronological listing of professional positions, institutions, and years held, post-doctoral fellowships (including years from - to -), significant memberships and major awards (including institutions and years).

Note: Do not include editorial board memberships and visiting or honorary professorships/fellowships.

Major Accomplishments

The statement is limited to some 250 words. Any collaborative works must be acknowledged.

Major Academic Contributions

List major publications. Do not exceed 12 books and/or articles. Co-authors, if any, should be recorded as they appeared in the original publications as shown in the following samples :

- 1968 Jones, L. J., Smith, M. C. and Dos J. D. Ionization and Relative Velocities. *Phys. Rev.* 97:787–90.
- 1969 Lee, H. W. and Moon, K. W. *Handbook of Mathematical Psychology*. New York: John Wiley and Sons.
- (In case of the humanities) Turner, R. K., and Williams, G. W. (eds), *Henry VI, Part Three* Pelican Shakespeare, Baltimore, MD., 1967.

Plane Figure of the NAS Building



2nd Floor



1st Floor



Address of the NAS: 59 Banpo-daero 37-gil, Seocho-gu, Seoul 06579, ROK Site: 6,610 square meters Floor Space: 4,950 square meters (a basement and three floors above ground.)

🚺 Facilities 🚺

Offices: 249 square meters (Offices of the President and the Vice-President included.) Grand Conference Hall: 362 square meters (one auxiliary room included.) Conference Rooms (2): 232 square meters Subdivision Meeting Rooms (11): 475 square meters Auxiliary Room: 172 square meters Library: 352 square meters VIP Room: 66 square meters Ground-breaking Date: November 25, 1985 Dedication: August 1987 Total Construction Cost: 2.4 billion won



The NAS Building



INDEX

Ahn, Byung Joon
Ahn, Hwi Joon
Ahn, Jong-Hyun ······ 40
Ahn, Se Hee108
Ahn, Tong Hyuk
An, Gynheung
An, Ho Sang
An, Soon-Il
Auh, Chun Suk
Bahk, Yong Whee
Bark, Dong Suh
Byun, Hyung Yoon
Cha, Chu Whan
Cha, Ha Soon
Cha, Jae-Ho
Cha, Ki Pyok 201
Cha, Sang Won
Chai, Re Suk
Chang, Dong-Suck
Chang, Duk Soon199
Chang, Ho Wan129
Chang, Ki Won 203
Chang, Sei Hun 108
Chang, Shin Yo 206
Chang, Suck Yoon 205
Chang, Suk-Jin
Cheong, Chang Hi
Chi, Je Geun
Chi, Yong Rin 206
Chin, Hong Sup
Chin, Pyung Ho
Cho, Baik Hyun
Cho, Bok Song
Cho, Chong Su

Cho, Dong-Il
Cho, I Whan
Cho, Jae Yeung 164
Cho, Ju Kwan 43, 61
Cho, Ki Jun 201
Cho, Kwang Ha 203
Cho, Min haeng40
Cho, Nam Hyun ······40
Cho, Pok Song
Cho, Soon
Cho, Sun Whi
Cho, Sung Ho
Cho, Sung Shik
Cho, Tae Kyung
Cho, Ui Sol
Cho, Wan Kyoo
Cho, Yun Je
Cho, Zang Hee 205
Choe, Byong Hee 206
Choe, Byoung Jo84
Choe, Joon Ho ······40
Choe, Tae Young
Choh, Soon Tahk
Choh, Sung Ho116
Choi, Bang Jin 204
Choi, Byonghyon40
Choi, Byung-Hyun70
Choi, Chae Hee
Choi, Doil ······40
Choi, Hang Sun143
Choi, Ho Chin
Choi, Ho Young 204
Choi, Hyeong In
Choi, Hyun Bae 35, 194, 199

Choi, Hyung Sup	205
Choi, Jae Hui	198
Choi, Jung-Yun	$\cdot \cdot 40$
Choi, Keh Kun	
Choi, Kyu Nam194,	203
Choi, Kyung Yol	204
Choi, Mun Hwan	
Choi, Q Won	
Choi, Sam Kwon	38
Choi, Sang Dun	$\cdot \cdot 40$
Choi, Sang Up	203
Choi, Yang Do	
Choi, Yun Sik	
Choy, Jin-Ho	
Christian Starck	
Chun, Hae Jong	200
Chun, Poong Chin	203
Chun, Seh Kyu	206
Chung, Bom Mo	·· 44
Chung, Byong Wuk	199
Chung, Byung Hyou	202
Chung, Chin Ha	131
Chung, Chin Hong	45
Chung, Dong-Yoon	·· 77
Chung, Hoo Sup	206
Chung, In Heung	201
Chung, Kwang Hyon	200
Chung, Soo Yung	202
Chung, Tae Hyun	·· 35
Chung, Yang Eun	198
Chung, Yung Ho	204
Chyung, Moon Ki	
Ha, Doo Bong	204
Hahn, Song-yop	142
Han, Jae Yong	$\cdot \cdot 40$
Han, Jun Sook	38
Han, Koo Dong	206

Han, Man Chun	
Han, Min Koo	
Han, Sang-Bok	· 69
Han, Sim Sok	205
Han, Woo Keun	199
Harold Vincent Poor	190
Hong, Chai-song	· 57
Hong, I Sop	199
Hong, Soon Hyung	· 39
Hong, Soon Woo	204
Hong, Sung Chick	201
Hong, Sung Gak	166
Hong, Sung Yun	175
Huang, Seok In	201
Huh, Soo-Youl	· 40
Hwang, Byung Kook	
Hwang, Jong Heul	205
Hwang, San Duk	200
Hwang, Seon Keun	· 39
Hwang, Su Young	200
Hyun, Byung Koo	140
Hyun, Shin Kyu 35,	206
Im, Hyug Baeg	· 40
Jaegwon Kim	192
Jan Drewes Achenbach	
Jan Eric Lindsten	181
Jang, Gyung-ryul	· 62
Je, Won Ho	· 39
Jeong, In Seung	199
Jeong, Ki-Jun	102
Jeong, Young Suk	
Jin, Duk Kyu	
Joh, Gung Ho	· 38
Joh, Jang Whui	· 38
Joo, Chung No	· 38
Ju, Jin Soon	204
Jung, Jin Ha	· 39

Jung, Kyu Bok ······ 38
Jung, Myong Hwan
Jung, Tae Hyun
Jürgen Kocka, MA
Kaang, Bong-Kiun 40
Kahng, Byungnam40
Kang, Chang-Yuil
Kang, Hyen Sam ······ 39
Kang, Il Koo
Kang, Jae Won 206
Kang, Myung Soon 205
Kang, Sin Hang
Kang, Sin Taek
Kang, Suk Ho
Kang, Tou Shik
Kang, Yung Sun
Keel, Hee-Sung
Keum, Jong Hae ······40
Ki, U-Hang
Ki, Young Suk
Kim Kyong-Dong ······ 88
Kim, Bong Kyun
Kim, Boong Ku ······37
Kim, Byung Chol
Kim, Byung Soo ······154
Kim, Byung-Yeon
Kim, Chang Whan 36, 194, 204
Kim, Che Won
Kim, Chi Sun
Kim, Chi Young 203
Kim, Chol Choon
Kim, Chol
Kim, Chong Suk
Kim, Chong-Keon 40
Kim, Choon Min
Kim, Choon Sup ······198
Kim, Choongyeal 198

Kim,	Chul Soo	35
Kim,	Chun Sop	36
Kim,	Chung Han	· 200
Kim,	Chung Kyun	· 201
Kim,	Chung Yong	206
Kim,	Dae Hwan	201
	Dohan	
Kim,	Dong Gyu	39
Kim,	Dong Hwa ······36,	198
Kim,	Dong II	203
Kim,	Dong Ki	194
Kim,	Dong Uk	199
Kim,	Doo Jong	205
	Du Hon	
	Hak-chu	
	Helen ·····	
	Ho Jik	
Kim,	Ho Sik	· 203
Kim,	Hodong	··· 72
Kim,	Hong Kyu	· 200
Kim,	Hong Woo	93
	Hoon Soo	
Kim,	Hyo Rok	201
Kim,	Hyo-Jeon	··· 81
Kim,	Hyon Gyu ·····	199
Kim,	Hyong Gyn	36
Kim,	Hyun Chang	· 199
Kim,	Hyun Tae	· 200
Kim,	Hyun Uk	· 167
Kim,	Jhong Won	·· 74
Kim,	Jihn Eui ······	· 120
Kim,	Jihyun ·····	··· 40
	Jin Bok	
Kim,	Jin Soo	··· 37
	Jong Chol	
Kim,	Joon Bo	202
Kim,	Joon Ho	204

	Ju Whan	
Kim,	Jung Soo	203
	Ke Sook	
Kim,	Kee Young	103
	Ki Dok	
	Ki Du ·····	
Kim,	Ki Hong	205
Kim,	Ki Sok ······	198
Kim,	Kyu Young	198
Kim,	Kyung Jin	39
Kim,	Moon Hyup	206
Kim,	Mun Sang ······	204
Kim,	Myung Son	205
	Nak Doo	
	Nam Jin	
Kim,	O Joong	204
Kim,	Ok Joon	204
	Ouk Keun	
Kim,	Pyong Ro	200
	Sam Soon	
Kim,	Sang Hyup	201
Kim,	Sang Joo	135
	Sang Ki 35,	
Kim,	Sang Yong 43, 79,	137
Kim,	Sang-Gu	130
Kim,	Sang-Joo 194,	197
Kim,	Se-Kwon ·····	··· 40
Kim,	Seung Kuk	··· 40
Kim,	Shin Hong	39
Kim,	Soo Jin	124
	Su il ·····	
Kim,	Sun Kyung	·· 35
Kim,	Sun Sik ······	201
Kim,	Sung Chol	39
	Sung Hi ·····	
	Sung Hoon	
Kim,	Sung Tae	198

Kim, Sung Won	206
Kim, Su-Young	·· 60
Kim, Tae Kil	198
Kim, Tae Rin	203
Kim, Tschol Su	
Kim, Wan Jin	. 55
Kim, Won Yong	199
Kim, Woon Tai ·····	201
Kim, Yong Hae	114
Kim, Yong Han	200
Kim, Yong Il	206
Kim, Yong Jik	199
Kim, Yong Koo	90
Kim, Yong Kwan	206
Kim, Yong Sook	·· 37
Kim, Yong Sop	·· 64
Kim, Yoon Soo	172
Kim, Young Choong	156
Kim, Young Han	66
Kim, Young-whan	·· 40
Kim, Yun Kyong	199
Kim, Zae Geun	205
Kim, Zai Kuk ·····	205
Ko, Byong Gook	
Ko, Jea Seung	157
Koh, Byong Ik	200
Koh, Chae Koon	206
Koh, Hyong Kon	
Koh, Hyoung Kon	198
Koh, Sang Ryong	·· 75
Koh, Sung Jae	
Koh, Whang Kyung	
Koh, Yoon Suk	110
Koo, Young Nok	
Kuk, Young	39
Kwak, Soo II	101
Kweun, Wook Hyun	

Kwon, Byong Tak
Kwon, E Hyock 37, 151, 194, 196
Kwon, Joong Whi
Kwon, Nyong Dae
Kwon, Ohseung
Kwun, Oh Ik 201
Kwun, Sook Il 112, 194, 197
Lee, Byeong Gi 39, 43, 145
Lee, Byong Ki ······ 199
Lee, Byoung Yil167
Lee, Byung Wee 204
Lee, Chae Chun 205
Lee, Chae Hoh 205
Lee, Chae Koo
Lee, Chan
Lee, Chang Gu 206
Lee, Chong Il 204
Lee, Chong Ryun
Lee, Chong Wu ······198
Lee, Chongmu40
Lee, Choong Woong138
Lee, Chun Yung
Lee, Chungmin 59
Lee, Dae Gil 39
Lee, Dae Sung 204
Lee, Don Hee ······ 48
Lee, Don Whui ······38
Lee, Du Hyun
Lee, Eui Chol
Lee, Eun
Lee, Eun Woong 206
Lee, Geun Chil 200
Lee, Gil Sung
Lee, Han Goo
Lee, Han Key 200
Lee, Hang Nyong 200
Lee, Hi Bong
-

	Hi Jun 36
Lee,	Hi Seung
Lee,	Ho Wang 37, 150, 194, 196
Lee,	Ho-In
Lee,	Hong Sik
Lee,	Hong Suk 171
	Hu Chul
Lee,	Hyun Goo 38
	Hyun Jae
Lee,	Hyung-kook ······82
	Hyun-Woo ···································
	Ikchoon ······ 203
	In Ki
Lee,	Jang Moo
Lee,	Jang Nag
Lee,	Jeong Woo ······125
	Jin Kee 205
Lee,	Jisoon
Lee,	Jong Kuk
	Jong-eun ······· 40
	Jong-Ho 162
Lee,	Jung Bock
	Ka Won 199
	Keun Tae
	Keun 40
	Ki Baik
Lee,	Ki Dong 43, 66
	Ki Moon
Lee,	Ki Yung 206
Lee,	Kie Hwa
	Ki-Suk
Lee,	Kiyong
Lee,	Kwang Rin
Lee,	Kwang Soo
Lee,	Kwang-Bok ······ 40
Lee,	Kyun Sang
Lee,	Kyung Shik 39, 40, 56

Man Gap
Man Young
Min Haeng
Min Jai
Mun Ho
Nam In
Neung Wou ······199
Phil Ho 40
Pyong Ki 35
Ryang 204
Sang Back 201
Sang Eun
Sang Koo
Sang Man
Sang Soo
Sang Sup
Sang Yeol
Se Kyu 205
Seong Moo
Sin-Doo 40
Son Keun 199
Song Mu 194, 200
Soon-Hyung ······ 156
Sung Jin
Sung Kyu ······ 67
Sung Nyong
Sung-Gyu160
Tae Young
Taik Sik
Won Chol
Woo Choo
Woo Sung 200
Yang Ha 199
Yong Hee
Yong Hie
Yong Il 40
Yong Soon ······ 160

Lee, Yong-Hwan ·····	· 40
Lee, Yoong-Nam	· 40
Lee, Young So	205
Lee, Yung Nok	204
Lew, Seung Kook	198
Lim, Burn Jang 43, 1	128
Lim, Chong Yul	· 82
Lim, Hong Bin	· 39
Lim, Hy Sop	· 86
Lim, Hyun-Chin	· 95
Lim, Seok Jae	
Maeng, Won Jai	127
Min, Byong Il	201
Min, Doo Ki ·····	· 37
Min, Han Sik	204
Min, Seong Ki	· 38
Min, Suk Hong	199
Minn, Young Gyu	200
Moon, Gook Jin	153
Moon, Hong Joo	200
Moon, Yin Hyong	· 38
Nagakura, Saburo	179
Nam, Chang Hee	· 39
Nam, Heung Woo	201
Nam, Hong Gil	· 39
Nam, Kwang Woo	· 38
Noyori, Ryoji	178
Oh, Byung Nam	$\cdot 47$
Oh, Hyun Wee	205
Oh, Keum Sung	· 39
Oh, Saeng Geun	· 40
Oh, Sang Lak	201
Oh, Woo Taek	· 39
Ohh, Bong Kug	165
Pac, Pong Youl	203
Pahk, Chung Ki	• 36
Pahk, Ha Wook	203

	Voon Hah
Paik, I	2. George198
Paik, V	Vanki43, 92
Paik, V	Voon Hah206
Pak, E	ul Yong203
Pak, U	'n Jong 39
Park, I	30ng Shik 201
Park, I	Byeong Uk ······40
Park, I	Byoung Ho78
Park, I	3yung Hui206
	Chol Jae
Park, C	Chong Hong
Park, G	Chong-Hyun
Park, Q	Choon Ho 38
Park, (Choong Seok40
Park, C	Chung Hyun
Park, G	Chung Ki 203
Park, I	Ha Wook 37
Park, I	Hee In
Park, I	Ho Pung
Park, I	1 Kyong 200
Park, I	Ki Hyuk 201
Park, I	Kwang Soon
Park, 1	Myung Jin 205
Park, S	Sam Ock 40
Park, S	Sang Dai
Park, S	Sehie
Park, S	Seong Hoe
Park, S	Seong Jong
Park, S	Seung Mann
Park, S	Seung-Woo
	500 Sun
Park, S	Sung Hyun
	Гаі Won
Park, 🛛	Гong Kil
Park, V	Non Sun
Park, Y	Yeung Ho 206

Park, Yong Han
Park, Yongwoon72
Park, Young-Sik 194, 197, 198
Peter Gruss
Ra, Jung-Woong
Ree, Tai Kyue
Rha, Sae Jin
Rhee, Hak-Yong106
Rhee, Man Young 205
Rhee, Sung Won 205
Rho, Chae Shik 109
Rho, Hyune Mo
Rho, Man Kyu
Rho, Oh Hyun 137
Rim, Han Jong
Rim, Han Young 198
Rim, Won Taik
Ro, Sung Tack
Roger N. Beachy 189
Ryu, Hong Ryeol
Seo, Byong Seol
Seo, Se Won
Shim, Bong Sup
Shim, Chong Supp 37, 194, 195, 206
Shim, Heon-Seop 201
Shim, Jyong Sup
Shim, Sang Chul
Shin, Changsoo 40
Shin, Do Song
Shin, Hee-Sup158
Shin, Ki Suk
Shin, Sok Ho
Shin, Sung Chul
Shin, Tai Whan 194, 195, 201
Shin, Yong Ha
Shin, Yung Kee 205
Shiono, Hiroshi

Yoo, Jang-Hee	
Yoo, Jung Yul	148
Yoo, Sun-Ho ·····	
Yoon, Chang Sup	205
Yoon, Chun Joo	201
Yoon, Dong Suk	205
Yoon, Duk Yong	139
Yoon, Kap Byung	203
Yoon, Ki Jung	101
Yoon, Kyung Byung	39
Yoon, Myong Ro	198
Yoon, Nung Min	203
Yoon, Se Chang	200
Yoon, Se Won	203
Youn, Moo Byong	200
Youn, Sa-Soon	·· 51
Yu, Chin O	
Yu, Jin Soon ·····	201
Yu, Ki Chon	
Yuk, Ji Soo	201
Yun, Il Jung	204
Yun, Il Sun 35, 194, 195,	
Yun, Kyong-Ku	$\cdot \cdot 40$
Yun, Sang Won	206
Yun, Suc Kew	204
Yun, Taik Koo	·· 38
Zo, Ki Zun	
Zoh, Jo Han ·····	198
Zoh, Myeong-han	·· 47